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Founded in 2001, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (“Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) achieved sound development in the past years and has now become
a pharmaceutical corporation with leading capabilities in sales and marketing,
production and research and development (“R&D”). Sihuan Pharmaceutical
has been the largest cardio-cerebral vascular (“CCV”) drug franchise in China’s
prescription drug market since 2007. It’s major products such as Kelinao,
Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu, Yeduojia and Guhong are widely used in the treatment
of various CCV diseases. The successful listing on the Main Board of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 28 October 2010 has fueled the Group’s rapid

development expansion with enhanced capital.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical marked its thirteenth year in 2013. The Group further
expanded its market share in the CCV prescription drug market and has grown
into the fourth biggest pharmaceutical company in the country’s prescription
drugs market in terms of hospital purchase. The Group’s current products
encompass the top five medical therapeutic areas in China: CCV system, control

nervous system (“CNS”), metabolism, oncology and anti-infectives.
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2001

° Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan”) was founded.

2002

®  Developed a differentiated sales and distribution model.

2003

° Kelinao was launched.

®  Acquired 28% interest in Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Sihuan”) and expanded the Company’s business into product

manufacturing.

®  Chuanqing was launched.

2004

®  Received a 20-year patent protection in the PRC for the synthesis process
of Kelinao and Anjieli.

2005

®  Hainan Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise”

status.

2006

®  Kelinao was granted “State Torch Programme” status by the Science and
Technology Ministry of the PRC.

®  Acquired the remaining interest in Beijing Sihuan which then became a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

®  Received a 20-year patent protection in the PRC for the improved

production method of Kelinao and Anjieli.

2007

. Sihuan Pharmaceutical was listed on the main board of the SGX-ST on
23 March 2007.

®  The Group has commanded the largest market share of the cardio-cerebral

vascular market in China.

®  Hainan Sihuan Cardiocerebral Vascular Drugs Research Institute Co.,
Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan CVD Research”) became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.
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Milestones

2008

° Acquired 60% interest in Xuanzhu Pharma Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu
Pharma”, “KBP BioSciences”, or known as “KBP BioSciences Co.,
Ltd.”) to enhance the Group’s research and development capabilities of

innovative drugs.
o GM1 was launched.

®  Received a 20-year patent protection in the PRC for the invention
and production method of non-solvated cinepazide maleate crystal for

producing Kelinao and Anjieli.

®  Beijing Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise”
status while Hainan Sihuan successfully had its “High and New
Technology Enterprise” status renewed. Both companies are entitled to a

preferential tax rate of 15% for three years as a result of the status.

2009

®  Qingtong was launched.

®  MSPEA II Cayman invested the Company. Subsequently the Group was
privatised and delisted from the SGX-ST.

2010
®  Listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 28 October 2010.

®  Ranked No. 4 in the Forbes 2010 list of the most promising enterprises

in the PRC and No. 1 among pharmaceutical companies.

®  Completed the construction of a pharmaceutical raw material plant,
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Gaobo
Jingband” or formerly known as “Langfang Sihuan Gaobo Pharmaceutical
Co., Led.”).

®  Obtained a 30-year exclusive distribution rights of Yimaining.

2011

®  Acquired Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”, formerly
known as Dupromise Pharmaceutical (China) Co., Ltd.) which owns three
exclusive drug products and various exclusive drug formulations mainly
focused on CCV diseases.

° Acquired 80% interest in Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Led. (“Changchun Xiangtong”), which owns both the manufacturing
facility and production license of the GMI injection and API.

VY B A I AR AT R 2 2013 4 JiE #i %
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2013

Acquired Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sichang”,
formerly known as Vinise Pharmaceutical Ltd.) which owns four
Traditional Chinese Medicine (“TCM”) CCV products with vast market
potential. Later in 2011 the Group sold at a premium of 19% equity
interest in Jilin Sichang to Shandong Buchang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Bucheng”), a leader in China's TCM market. The Group will
continue its cooperation with Jilin Sichang to develop more TCM CCV

products.
Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu, Yeduojia were launched.

Jilin Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise” status.

Langfang Gaobo Jingband was granted the “High and New Technology

Enterprise” status.

Obtained production approval for exclusive first-to-market generic
drug Roxatidine Acetate Hydrochloride for Injection and generic drug

Nalmefene Hydrochloride Injection.
Danshen Chuanxiongqin Injection was launched.

Acquired remaining 40% equity interest in Xuanzhu Pharma which then

became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Established cooperation with NeuroVive Pharmaceutical AB, a company
listed in Sweden, to develop, promote and sell innovative patent drugs,
CicloMulsion® and NeuroSTAT®.

Obtained clinical trial approval for innovative patent drugs Imiglitin

Dihydrochloride and Anaprazole Sodium.

The application for Clinical Trial Approval of Pirotinib (the first self-
developed oncology drug of the Group) was accepted by China Food and

Drug Administration.

Established cooperation with to-BBB technologies B.V., a company
principally engaged in the development of brain-targeted drug delivery
technologies and product, and has obtained the exclusive worldwide
rights to develop and deal in the G-Technology® brain drug delivery
technology.
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Financial Summary

2013 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue of the Group increased by 55.6% to RMB4,732.7 million in
2013 from RMB3,042.5 million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 44.1% to
RMB1,303 million in 2013.

Basic earnings per share increased by approximately 44.1% over 2012 to
approximately RMB25.18 cents in 2013.

A final dividend of RMB2.1 cents per share was recommended by the
Board together with a bonus issue of one bonus ordinary share for every

one existing ordinary share in return for shareholder’s support and are

IR A I SRR AR A R Z % — U AE A subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting
= BT R A E R BT - of the Company to be held on 30 May 2014.
AE®F T RMB’000 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
REEs Operating results
g Revenue 708,907 1,036,881 2,242,063 3,042,531 = 4,732,700
EF Gross profit 516,992 744743 1714464 2289415 3,699,714
A Operating profit 373,025 613313 990348 1,047,755 1,462,082
Wi B 45 A 1 Profic before income tax 381,026 635,083 1,044,856 1,165,541 1,567,451

A AR BEAT M MEAAF BE M B A
TN

Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year attributable to equity owners

of the Company 326,316 522,065 824,048 904,402 1,303,012
REES Profitability
T Gross magin 72.9% 71.8% 76.5% 75.2% 78.2%
A% Net profit margin 46.0% 50.3% 36.8% 29.7% 27.5%
BB A Earning per share
EARBEARES) Basic and diluted (RMB cents) 8.70 13.03 15.90 17.48 25.18
B Asset status
BERE Total assets LI73442 6902452 8854098 9459444 10,011,648
A AR A NG HE A Equity attributable to equity owners

of the Company 907,503 6,656,931 6,945,534 7,084,328 7,882,305
Bafk Total liabilities 249255 242,923 1860,155 2,272,189 2,013,858
BERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 612859 5851379 3,153,154 1543907 = 1,508,076
LR Quick ratio (¢imes) 3 26 3 2 3
RELE () Current ratio (zimes) 4 26 3 2 3
TEEEN () Inventory turnover ratio (days) 77 59 38 36 34
o EUR () Trade receivables turnover ratio (days) 2 2 24 42 36
BN EE /) Trade payables turnover ratio (days) 16 27 20 16 13

VY B A I AR AT R 2 2013 4 JiE #i %
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The year 2013 was a critical one for Sihuan Pharmaceutical. Our ability to
respond to policy changes and market competition was tested, requiring
Sihuan Pharmaceutical to tap the synergies from consolidating several acquired
companies. Backed by our strong marketing capabilities and excellent
integration capabilities, Sihuan Pharmaceutical overcame the challenges and
also grew bigger and stronger with a more solid foundation. In 2013, we
reaped the fruits of our labor, achieving rapid financial growth and outstanding
operational results. These achievements reflected the success of our previous
expansion strategy, which brought us more diversified and balanced revenue
sources and reinforced our market leading position. On top of that, we achieved
breakthroughs in our research and development for both innovative and generic
drugs, ensuring that our strong growth momentum will be sustained in the

long run.

In 2013, the Group's revenue surged 55.6% to RMB4.7 billion, while profit
attributable to owners of the Company jumped 44.1% to RMB1.3 billion.
Our two core products, Kelinao and Oudimei, recorded a sharp rebound
in their sales contribution. Our promising products were able to sustain
their rapid sales growth, and mature products also performed well, with its
extensive product portfolio contributing to our balanced growth. According
to IMS Health Incorporated (“IMS”), our market share in the CCV drug
market reached 9.3%, making Sihuan Pharmaceutical the fourth largest
pharmaceutical enterprise in the PRC hospital market in terms of hospital

purchases.

Encouraging results were also seen in the R&D of new drugs, which are the
interim outcomes of our ongoing investment of immense resources into building
an industry-leading platform for innovative and generic drug development.
The success of these efforts was evident in a number of major breakthroughs in
2013. After receiving approval for clinical trials for Category 1.1 New Drug
Benapenem towards the end of 2012, we received approval for clinical trials for
Category 1.1 New Drug Imiglitin Dihydrochloride and Anaprazole Sodium
in February and July this year respectively. So far, Sihuan Pharmaceutical has
obtained such approval for five Category 1 innovative drugs. With regard to
generic drug development, in addition to receiving production approval for
our exclusive first-to-market generic drug Roxatidine and Category 3.1 New
Drug Nalmefene, we have already filed applications for production approval for
over 20 drugs, which are expect to be granted within several coming years. We
expect to begin launching key patented innovative drugs from 2016 onwards,
with four to five of them expected to reach the market between 2016 and 2020.
Cooperation with international companies involving R&D of innovative drugs
broke new ground. We have established cooperation with Netherland’s to-BBB

technologies B.V. on the development of brain-target innovative drugs and

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Chairman’s Statement

commenced the R&D process. At the same time we are at the negotiation stage
with other international companies. These measures will help ensure that Sihuan
Pharmaceutical’s R&D is aligned with international standards, and is ahead of

its domestic peers.

In 2013, Sihuan Pharmaceutical finished upgrading all its production facilities
in compliance with the new Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) standards.
All the sterile preparation production companies and facilities of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical are certified under the new GMP standard. Leveraging the
opportunities from the Chinese government’s implementation of the new GMP
standards in the country, we finished building our production and R&D system
with a total gross floor area of over 300,000 square meters, which marks the

largest-scale construction in our history.

As market competition intensified in 2013, we introduced flexibility in our
sales and marketing by deploying different marketing strategies for our various
core products. We stepped up academic promotion for promising products, and
conducted clinical studies, which were recognized by the market, for our core
products Kelinao and Oudimei, to reinforce their market leadership position and
increase market penetration. Meanwhile, our mature products maintained sound

growth as we benefited from successful development into the low-end market.

The year 2013 was a bountiful period filled with achievements for Sihuan
Pharmaceutical. Our remarkable results for the year not only represented our
success in integrating our acquired companies, but also once more demonstrated
our marketing prowess, as well as its balanced and growing revenue stream on
the back of a more diversified product portfolio. As a result, this has given us
greater resilience against policy changes and market competition, and has the

strength to grow even further and stronger.

As we continue to develop, Sihuan Pharmaceutical has put in place a clearer
development strategy as well as effective business strategies which are more in
sync with market trends. In terms of our development focus, we will continue to
concentrate on product development and diversification. In terms of operations,
we will continue to be nimble in adapting to policy changes and the changing
market environment, to turn challenges into opportunities. In terms of product
strategy, we will continue to build a sustainable product pipeline focusing on
exclusive proprietary drugs in major therapeutic areas through R&D, cooperative
development, M&As, licensing, etc. These clear and focused strategies have

strengthened Sihuan Pharmaceutical and turned us into a market leader, not
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only in terms of market share but also in terms of our extensive portfolio of

products with distinctive attributes among industry peers.

Looking ahead, China will remain the fastest-growing pharmaceutical market in
the world. However, despite the rising inelastic demand in the pharmaceutical
market, the development of this industry still faces challenges with policy
changes and intense market competition, along with the deepening of healthcare

reforms.

In this context, Sihuan Pharmaceutical — as an innovative pharmaceutical
company endowed with rich product resources of exclusive and proprietary
drugs and strong capabilities in sales and marketing, R&D and resource
integration - is poised to capture opportunities for development from industrial

consolidation, and to achieve sustainable development going forward.

I have full confidence in Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s future development, as we
have established an effective operating system and a solid business foundation.
I firmly believe that we are poised for a new era of development and will be
able to achieve stable and sustainable growth in the long run. We are making
strides towards achieving our goal of becoming the most competitive Chinese

pharmaceutical company and developing a global reputation for excellence.

Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
10 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The successful internal integration in 2012 following previous expansion
strengthened Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s core competitiveness on the whole
and returned the Company to its rapid growth trajectory in 2013. These
were reflected in the outstanding financial performance and operational
development achieved in the Year, which delivered a more diversified and
balanced revenue stream and reinforced our market leadership. Sihuan
Pharmaceutical also made breakthroughs in its R&D by adding more
drugs with distinctive attributes and high growth potential to its product
pipeline. In addition, the Group completed the construction of its main
production and R&D base in Tongzhou, Beijing and the upgrade of all its

other production bases.

In 2013, the Group not only achieved a sharp sales rebound for its two
key products, Kelinao and Oudimei®”, but also recorded rapid growth

of its fast-growing promising products such as Yuanzhijiu®

, Yeduojia,
and Danshen Chuangxionqin. As a result, the Group's revenue surged
55.6% to RMB4,732.7 million, while profit attributable to owners of the

Company jumped 44.1% to RMB1,303.0 million.

As a result of the above achievements, the Group kept its lead in China’s
cardio-cerebral vascular (“CCV”) prescription drug market by growing its
market share in terms of hospital purchase to 9.3%, and further enhanced
its position in the China prescription drug market, making the Group the
fourth largest pharmaceutical company in the Chinese hospital market in
terms of hospital purchases during the year under review. (Source: IMS
Heath Incorporated (“IMS”)).

(1) Names of the Group's cattle encephalon glysoside and ignotin injection products
in different dosages are Oudimei, Oufutai and Waitong, collectively known as

Oudimei.

2) Names of the Group's troxeratin and cerebroproteinhydrolysate injection products

in different dosages are Yuanzhijiu and Xingwei, collectively known as Yuanzhijiu.
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Product

(B E LA EE S

Oudimei (Cattle encephalon

glycoside and

ignotin injection)

A

(FG AR ML RS 5

TEATR) (802 %)

Kelinao (Cinepazide
maleate injection)
(80 mg)

LR

(G AR MR DR 4

TS (3202 7%)

Anjieli (Cinepazide maleate

injection) (320 mg)

FAN

(M2 T & R

KR )

Yuanzhijiu (Troxerutin and
cerebropropteinhydr

olysate injection)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CCV Products
T Sales of key CCV products:

i S

O

ST

l:A]

2013

Contribution to

BRETTA=F—HIERE W% Sales of

For the year ended 31 December Change  CCV Products
“E-CF e S
2012 2013
AE#ETT)  (ABEFT)
(RMB000) (RMB000)

696,067 1,343,922 93.1% 29.8%

649,636 1,115,331 71.7% 24.8%

123,360 170,327 38.1% 3.8%

361,213 432,408 19.7% 9.6%

B AT

Product characteristics

e - IRASWABRAR - 2R AR

STHEERE » JoEIRAAIE 5 BR LRR
RO ARG ARG R e RS -

For promoting metabolism of the heart,

brain tissues, and neurons of the brain tissue

regeneration process, improving cerebral metabolic

functions; clinically used for the treatment of

dysfunction caused by cardiac and brain diseases.

o L AR A I A R ALK < B2 R
LU RSN A o

For improving ischemic tissue blood supply and
protecting ischemic tissue. Widely used in the
treatment of cardiovascular and cerebrovascular

and peripheral vascular diseases.

IR ISR
For the treatment of cardio-cerebral vascular

diseases.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013



B fh

Product
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GMI (Monosialotetrahex
osylganglioside sodium

injection)

RALIE S

(CREZR M R AL T AR

YT )

Guhong (Compound of
aceglutamide and

safflower extract)

k%
(FiTZ1 s AE AR
PRI SR
Yimaining (Alprostadil

3

lipid emulsion injection)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

=

fh O

EmHER

LA

2013

Contribution to

BETA=—HLER HiR% Sales of

For the year ended 31 December Change  CCV Products
Y Sy e S
2012 2013
A&HT) — (ARETT)
(RMB000) (RMB000)

217,098 219,827 1.3% 4.9%

205,475 328451 59.8% 73%

125,902 195,062 54.9% 4.3%

B Mt

Product characteristics

WEASARNRENGHEY  MREKES
MR - Kb EHER GRS - HeRK
JE o

For neural tissue cells protection and repairing
agents; for treatment of traumatic brain injuries,

cerebral vascular accidents and Parkinson’s disease.

PR R BAR LA NG AR ~ R 2 SR
ARSI 5 KPR - MAOMRLTT S A R
WREIET s BONBR - IR -

For the treatment of cerebrovascular problems
such as cerebral insufficiency, cerebral embolism
and cerebral hemorrhage recovery period;
dysfunction caused by the awareness of liver
disease, neurological surgery; mental deterioration,

and memory impairment.

WP MR > RER S ALARAT - JRiz
TR AR IREE M PR AE - A RRE O
i DUV » EIREG TR - BsEsE  Hh
SRR SR - B o A A B IRAG A
o

Used for targeting microcirculation and protecting
organs and tissue cells. Widely used to treat
chronic arteriosclerosis obliterans, unstable angina,
myocardial infarction, coronary artery bypass
surgery, cerebral infarction, ischemic spinal cord
injury, diabetes, peripheral neuropathy, diabetes

and kidney disease.
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B fh

Product

NE

(SRR 5 %)

Chuanging (Ligustrazine
hydrochloride for

injection)

fi &

(RS &K )

Qu’'Ao (Cerebroprotein
hydrolysate)

LEZES

(7 =HBan )

Yeduojia (Compound
trivitamin B for

injection (II))

BEFZH=—BiERE
For the year ended 31 December

“g--k | &=k
2012 2013
ARBTE)  (AREFE)
(RMB000) (RMB000)
93,010 97,609
92,485 103,555
73,531 239,485

HRR
Change

49%

12.0%

225.7%

=
0 B 1L
MBS

Bl He il

2013
Contribution to
Sales of

CCV Products

2.2%

2.3%

5.3%

B M

Product characteristics

JEAZ R R SR P O RSB HS - R0 - R
% RER - MEHRRS -

Widely used to treat ischemic cerebrovascular
disease, coronary heart disease, cerebral embolism,

vasculitis and vascular dementia.

RARERERRAHMEM - RERAESE
B o 2 R R A 5 R A0 1 4
IR - BRI - BEIRARS -

For promoting neural cell metabolism and
differentiation and synthesis of brain protein.
Widely used to treat brain cell dysfunction caused
by cerebrovascular disease, traumatic brain injuries

and Alzheimer’s disease.

O — 9 — 1 A A B R R
s R REERE - ZMAEL - =
> SRR - WAL - SURERI RN
AN BRAEAD -

Currently the only intravenous administration
of a vitamin B compound formulation; used
for peripheral nerve injuries, multiple neuritis,
trigeminal neuralgia, sciatica, radiation sickness,
antineoplastic-induced vomiting, pernicious

anemia, nutritional anemia.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



B fh BEFZH=E—HiEE
Product For the year ended 31 December
Y S

2012

(ARHTE) — (ARETFT)

(RMB000)

A2I5% 73,121
(P25 R 5K
Danshen Chuanxionggin

(Salviaemiltiorrhizae and

ligustrazine

hydrochloride injection)

i 67,019
(RERZES)
Qingtong (Edaravone

injection)

T AR DS B B
Weo.7% & NRH4,505.0 8 Bt 1
AR AR 95.2% - A IE R AR £
1 5 K Wi £ 2 TR o KR B R T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

=2
0 B 1L
7 g
B 1
2013
Contribution to
B Salesof  FE

Change ~ CCV Products  Product characteristics

83.9% 3.0%  HIU/MURE » M EFRAEE BIER - TR
TR ORI E AT - IhAERERE - I
BRIV - BB 5 BB O MRS > O
B LIRS -
Featuring anti-platelet aggregation, vasodilation
and improving microcirculation, it can be used
to treat occlusive cerebrovascular diseases such as
brain dysfunction, cerebral thrombosis, cerebral
infarction; and ischemic cardiovascular diseases

such as angina pectoris, myocardial infarction, etc.

13.1% 17%  EHEEERE - T RIAEO DR
R R L

An oxygen free radical scavenger widely used to
treat cardiovascular and cerebrovascular diseases,
as well as peripheral vascular disease (PDA) for

people with diabetes.

In 2013, sales of CCV products grew 60.7% to RMB4,505.0 million,
which accounted for 95.2% of the Group’s total revenue, continuing
to be the Group's largest revenue contributor. The significant growth
was mainly attributable to the exciting rebound in sales for its two key
products, Kelinao and Oudimei, and the rapid growth of its promising

products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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After experiencing a short-term impact from the higher ex-factory price of
Kelinao and the alignment of the product’s distribution channels in 2012,
the Group started to see positive results from an improved distribution
system in 2013. This, together with reinforced support to distributors for
academic promotion and the deepened penetration into low-end markets,
boosted sales of Kelinao by 71.7% to RMB1,115.3 million.

As for Oudimei, the successful integration of its distribution network
boosted its sales and marketing efficiency. The Group was able to deepen
penetration into existing markets and expand into new markets by
winning tenders or supplementary tender submissions at stable price
levels in more provinces. As a result, sales of Oudimei jumped 93.1% to
RMB1,343.9 million during the Year under review.

Promising products such as Yeoduojia, Danshen Chuanxiongqin,
Guhong, Yimaining and Yuanzhijiu maintained strong growth in sales,
which jumped up significantly by 225.7%, 83.9%, 59.8%, 54.9% and
19.7% to RMB239.5 million, RMB134.5 million, RMB328.5 million,
RMB195.1 million and RMB432.5 million, respectively. Sales volume of
Yuanzhijiu grew over 80%. Its slower growth in sales revenue was due to

the adjustment of product strategy.

The Group's established products achieved steady growth. Sales of
Qu'Ao, Qingtong, Chuangqing and GM1 grew 12.0%, 13.1%, 4.9% and
1.3% to RMB103.6 million, RMB75.8 million, RMB97.6 million and
RMB219.8 million, respectively. The Group's share in the Chinese CCV
prescription drug market share rose to approximately 9.3%, marking

another record high.
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Therapeutic area  Product
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Central nervous ~ Ren'Ao

system drug (Oxcarbazepine)
MERAHEN  wLka
Metabolism drug (&R )

Luoanming (Amino

acid injection)

WRRGEN bR

Respiratory (HRARE)
systemdrug  Bi'Ao (Ambroxol
hydrochloride)
LE
(HRARE)
Zhuo'Ao (Ambroxol
hydrochloride)
YL Lt
Anti-infective (BT AR
drug Pojia (Sulbenicillin
sodium)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Non-cardio-cerebral vascular products (“Non-CCV products”)

BREFZAZF—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-TH i S
2012 2013
AR¥TT)  (AR¥TFT)
(RMB000) (RMB000)
13,675 14,616
58,205 72,910
52,793 52,214
14,436 17,674
35,542 31,065

HR%
Change

6.9%

25.3%

-1.0%

22.4%

-12.6%

Sales of key Non-CCV products:

S
A0 B
EMAEH

fty L i

2013
Contribution to
Sales of
Non-CCV

Products

6.4%

32.0%

22.9%

7.8%

13.6%

B M

Product characteristics

UM - RAERA K RMR
BRRBEY -

New generation of antiepileptic drug with

piid

a broad spectrum that is highly effective
and safe. It can be used as an alternative to

carbamazepine.

FRMEE B MAE - & B AR BRI
B A AR -

Used for hypoalbuminemia, inadequate
protein intake or malabsorption, and protein

synthesis obstacles.

WK — SR (kg - ARt 18
YRR R BRI R T AR
VAR ESSNIE

Clinical first-line expectorant phlegm drugs.
Used for the expectorant treatment of acute
chronic respiratory diseases. It is also a
regular medication taken to prevent lung

infections after surgery.

RAEFHERREER - RAMERR  #
RG-S 2fRE Rt
HFEAER -

Broad-spectrum penicillin with a broad
antagonistic spectrum, strong antibacterial
activity, low-levels of drug resistance, and

which is safe and well-tolerated.
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Among the Company’s non-CCV products, Ren'Ao (used primarily to
treat epilepsy), Zhuo'Ao and Bi'Ao (both are respiratory system drugs)
maintained stable growth in sales volume while lower tender prices led to
slower growth of sales revenue. Sales of Ren'Ao rose 6.9% to RMB14.6
million while sales of Zhuo'Ao and Bi'Ao rose 22.4% and fell 1.0%
respectively, accounting for combined revenue of RMB69.9 million. Sales
of Luoanming (a metabolism drug) increased by 25.3% to RMB72.9
million, thanks to its exclusive formulation. Due to stricter restrictions
on the clinical use of anti-infective drugs, sales of Pojia decreased 12.6%
to RMB31.1 million.

The Group launched Roxatidine (exclusive first-to-market generic
drug, a digestive system drug) in the second half of 2013. As of 31
December 2013, Roxatidine has expanded its market by tender wins
in two provinces and supplementary tender submissions in another
province. In addition, it entered drug reimbursement list (‘DRL”) of one
province. This product is expected to generate significantly more revenue
with more extensive marketing and after winning tenders and entering

provincial DRL in more provinces.

Sales and Marketing

(i)  Expediting the recovery of two core products, Kelinao and
Oudimei, by stepping up academic promotion and incentives

to distributors

Under academic promotion, the Group conducted clinical studies
on Kelinao such as clinical cases collection and Real-World-
Research with large sample size to reinforce Kelinao's position as
a tier-one medicine in clinical use. For the same reason, the Group
commenced several clinical studies on Oudimei partnering with
reputable hospitals including The General Hospital of the People s
Liberation Army (“PLAGH”, "B A R fif iU 42 B Bt ), Beijing
Tiantan Hospital affiliated to Capital Medical University (‘BTH",
R RIS ALt RIERE B ) and Southwest Hospital (7§
i % BL). Over 2,000 academic promotion conferences and other
activities for these two products were held in 2013 with more than

20,000 doctors participating.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(if)

In addition, the Group boosted incentives to distributors for
Kelinao and Oudimei in order to motivate distributors to promote
the Group's products. The effectiveness of these measures was
reflected in a significant rebound in sales of the two products in the

Year.

Devising clear tendering strategies for its products

Horizontal expansion to increase market coverage through tender
wins in more provinces: provincial tender wins and supplementary

tender submissions

For its key product Oudimei and promising products such as
Yuanzhijiu, Yeduojia, Danshen Chuanxiongqin, the Group
expanded market coverage by provincial tender wins and

supplementary tender submissions.

Vertical expansion to penetrate low-end markets: entering
provincial Essential Drug List ("EDL") and provincial New Rural
Cooperative Medical Scheme List (‘NRCMSL”)

The Group further developed its major products in low-end

markets with provincial EDL tender wins and provincial NRCMSL.

A key achievement on this front is that Kelinao, Chuanging and
Yuanzhijiu have been included under the EDL of Guangdong
Province, one of the biggest drug markets in the country, and
won the recent EDL tender in the province at favorable prices.
In addition, Yuanzhijiu entered the EDL in Chonggqing City,
and Qudimei entered EDL in Hubei Province. The EDL of
Xinjiang Autonomous Region announced recently the inclusion of
Kelinao, Chuanging, Oudimei and Guhong in its EDL. Moreover,
Kelinao and Oudimei also entered the NRCMSL of ten provinces
respectively. The Group will continue to focus on making its
major products in the EDL and NRCMSL of more provinces.
This is expected to be a strong driver for deepening the products’

penetration in low-end market.
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iR Research and Development (“R&D”)
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Encouraging results were seen in research and development. Since
XuanZhu Pharma Co., Ltd. (“XuanZhu Pharma”) became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group in 2012, it has intensified efforts on
innovative drug projects that are in line with the Group's overall strategy
and redeployed resources to the Group’s areas of priority. As a result,
its innovative drug R&D made breakthroughs in 2013. Promising
results were also seen in generic drugs development. In addition, the
construction of the new R&D center located in Tongzhou, Beijing with
an area of approximately 20,000 square meters has completed, laying a

stronger foundation for the Group's product development.

Innovative drugs

To date, the R&D team has already submitted investigational new

drug (“IND”) applications for seven Category 1.1 innovative drugs

and has obtained Approval for Clinical Trial for five Category 1

innovative drugs. Achievements in innovative drug R&D in 2013

include:

In January 2013, the Group received Approval for Clinical
Trials for Benapenem (H#IER), a Category 1.1 innovative
patented drug. This new drug is a carbapenem drug, in a
class of broad spectrum-lactam antibiotics which are often

used to treat resistant bacteria in hospitals.

In February 2013, the Group received Approval for Clinical
Trials for Imigliptin Dihydrochloride (' F& {5 517T), a
Category 1.1 innovative patented drug. This new drug is a
DPP-4 inhibitor class oral hypoglycemic agent, a drug with

a brand new structure for treating Type II diabetes.

In July 2013, the Group received Approval for Clinical
Trials for Anaprazole Sodium (% #4 £ W §t), a Category
1.1 innovative patented drug. Anaprazole Sodium is a
new generation proton pump inhibitor (PPI) for treating

gastrointestinal ulcers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

®  In October 2013, the Group's application for Clinical
Trial Approval of Pirotinib ( Mk 2 & JE), a Category 1.1
innovative patented drug, was accepted by China Food and
Drug Administration. Pirotinib is a second-generation (pan-
HER) inhibitor for the treatment of lung and breast cancers.
The Group is preparing for the filing for FDA application in
the United States.

Clinical trial of Imigliptin Dihydrochloride has begun in
2013. Clinical trial of Benapenem and Anaprazole Sodium
are progressing as planned. In addition, L-Phencynonate
Hydrochloride (72 i€ B M A IR T B ), a Category 1.3 innovative
drug and Cinepazide Mesilate (7 it B 4 UK 7% %¥), a Category
IV exclusive new drug, which are in Phases IIT and II of clinical

studies respectively, are progressing as planned.

The collaborative innovative CCV drugs development project with
NeuroVive Pharmaceutical AB is also progressing as planned. Our
collaboration with Netherland’s to-BBB technologies B.V., which
is principally engaged in the development of brain-targeted drug
delivery technologies and products, has commenced during the

Year under review.

Moreover, both Benapenem and Imigliptin Dihydrochloride have

been awarded as The National Major Innovative Drug Projects (

R EIHZERANH B EREIA).
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(i)  Generic drugs

The Group has also made good progress in the development of
generic drugs. After securing production licenses for the exclusive
first-to-market generic drug Roxatidine and Category 3.1 new
drug Nalmefene Hydrochloride Injection at the end of 2012 and
start of 2013 respectively, the products have successfully passed on-
site inspections for production and were launched in the market.
Development of category 3.1 generic drugs such as Levetiracetam
injection (/5 & B 7 1 R ), Lacosamide (P 0 i %) and
Aprepitant (BT i At #H) are progressing as planned. In total, the
Group has seventeen Category 3.1 first-to-market generic drug
projects under development. By the end of 2013, production
license applications of twenty-two generic drugs were filed in total
and these products are expected to be launched progressively in the

coming years.

Production and Quality Management

In 2013, the Group completed the construction of its main production
and R&D base in Tongzhou, Beijing and the upgrade of all its other
production bases. These facilities are certified under the new GMP
standard and cover a total of over 300,000 square meters. These
construction projects mark the largest constructions in our history and set

a new industry record of total construction time taking only 1.5 years.

As the Group’s Active Pharmacentical Ingredients (“APIs”) production
base, Langfang Gaobo Jingband has been injected with production
licenses of four APIs products in 2013. In terms of international
collaboration, Langfang Gaobo Jingband made good progress by
establishing cooperation with the largest Canadian-based pharmaceutical
company Apotex Inc. The production facility passed on-site inspection
by the Food and Drug Administration (‘FDA”) of United States in July
2013. The FDA issued the Establishment Inspection Report (“EIR”)
recently, indicating its approval of the GMP operations system under

which the facility’s products can be exported to the United States.

In spite of rising raw material and labor costs, the Group maintained cost
efficiency in its production system through achieving economies of scale

from expanded sales and improved manufacturing process management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(II) FUTURE PROSPECTS

@)

Industry Outlook

Fueled by China’s growing economy, market potential released
form expanded national medical insurance coverage, accelerated
urbanization and ageing population, the management believes that
demand for pharmaceutical products will continue to drive China’s
pharmaceutical industry, enabling it to maintain fast growth in
2014.

During the country’s Twelfth Five-Year plan period, the bio-
pharmaceutical industry is now one of the national strategic
emerging industries and strong governmental support will be
provided to facilitate innovation in the industry. Nonetheless,
consolidation in the industry is intensifying due to medical reform,
tightening control of hospital medical budget, spiraling price
competition and the cost pressure from implementation of the new
GMP standard are all placing new challenges to pharmaceutical

companies.

The management believes that companies such as Sihuan
Pharmaceutical will reap benefits from the government’s policies
for encouraging innovation and industry consolidation, being an
innovative company with strong integrated capabilities, in R&D,
production and sales and marketing, with its focus on exclusive

and patented drugs.
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(i)

Growth Strategies

Continue to tap potential of strong existing product resources

Sihuan Pharmaceutical has the core advantage of a young and
diversified product portfolio that enjoys stable pricing. This
includes six key and potential blockbuster products which are
exclusive products, namely Kelinao, Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu,
Yeduojia, Guhong and Roxatidine. It also includes over ten
products with exclusive formulations or dosages, such as
Metronidzole injection (FF fil§ M OR # 7 5 ), cogether with
Clindamycin (FEM {2 ) and Nilestriol (JE #MERE ), which have
been included in the recently expanded national EDL; and products
such as Kelinao, Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu and Chuanqing which were
recently added to EDL or NRCMSL of many provinces. This is a
prestigious product mix which helps the Group to differentiate
itself amidst fierce market competition, and is expected to sustain

business growth in the coming years.

Maintaining outstanding sales and marketing capabilities

The Group’s unique sales and marketing model has given it
industry-leading sales and marketing capabilities, as shown in the
Group’s rapid market expansion and strong resilience in spite of
changes and challenges in the industry. The Group will continue
to reinforce its nationwide distribution network and optimize its

sales and marketing system.

Enriching product resources through R&D, acquisitions and

product collaboration

The Group has a strong track record of identifying and acquiring
new product resources. It will continue to build a sustainable
product pipeline through its established innovative and generic
drug development platform, product collaboration with
international companies as well as acquisitions. These measures all
come with proven track records. The Group’s long-term growth
momentum will be supported by a variety of patented drugs and
first-to-market generic drugs under development. These products

are expected to launch from 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1i1) Outlook

The Group's outstanding operational performance during the Year
not only reflected the success of the Group's internal management
integration, but also demonstrated its higher operational
efficiency and adaptability to market changes. Looking ahead,
the management firmly believes that leveraging its enhanced
competitiveness, the Group is poised to seize opportunities arising
from the industry consolidation and make strides into another new

stage of development.

(III) FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

In 2013, the Group continued to strengthen its CCV drug business while
promoting sales of its products of other therapeutic areas. Total revenue
increased by 55.6% from RMB3,042.5 million in 2012 to RMB4,732.7
million in 2013. The increase was mainly attributable to the sales growth
of our CCV drugs.

Revenue from sales of CCV drugs in 2013 amounted to approximately
RMB4,505.0 million, representing a growth of approximately 60.7%
over 2012 and accounted for approximately 95.2% of the Group’s
turnover in 2013. The increase was primarily due to the broadened
revenue base from a further diversified product portfolio, as a result of
the Group's two-pronged sales and marketing strategy to boost both its

established and promising products.

Due to stricter restrictions on their clinical use, revenue derived
from anti-infective drugs decreased by approximately 31.7% from
RMB59.7 million in 2012 to RMB40.8 million in 2013, accounting
for approximately 0.9% of the Group's total revenue in 2013. In view
of that, the Group focused on stepping up its efforts in the promotion of
other drugs, such as central nervous system, respiratory and metabolism
drugs. Revenue from sales of other drugs grew by approximately 12.1%
to RMB175.2 million, accounting for approximately 3.7% of the Group's

total revenue in 2013.
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Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales during the Year amounted to approximately
RMB1,033.0 million, accounting for approximately 21.8% of the total

revenue in 2013.

Gross profit

Our gross profit increased by 61.6% from RMB2,289.4 million in 2012
to RMB3,699.7 million in 2013. Overall gross profit margin increased
to 78.2% in 2013 from 75.2% in 2012, which was mainly due to an

increase in the sales of products with higher gross profit margins.

Other net gains
Other net gains increased from RMB271.4 million in 2012 to RMB399.0

million in 2013. This was mainly due to an increase in government

grants received by the Group.

Distribution costs

Distribution costs increased by 77.5% to RMB2,329.5 million in 2013
as compared to 2012. The increase mainly resulted from an increase in
marketing and promotion expenses due to enhanced sales of the Group’s
products and an increase in expenses related to increased efforts in the
academic promotion of promising products and the optimization of the

distribution network.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 58.2% from RMB206.6 million in
2012 to RMB326.8 million in 2013. The increase was primarily due to
an increase in administrative expenses related to the operational expansion
of the Group and an increase in the Group’s investment in research and

development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net finance income

Net finance income decreased from RMB124.1 million in 2012 to
RMB112.3 million in 2013. The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in

interest income received by the Group.

Profit before income tax

Based on the above factors, the Group's profit before income tax increased
by 34.5% from RMB1,165.5 million in 2012 to RMB1,567.5 million in
2013.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by 5.5% from RMB244.0 million in
2012 to RMB257.4 million in 2013.

Profit for the Year

Based on the above factors, the Group’s net profit increased by 42.2%
from RMB921.5 million in 2012 to RMB1,310.1 million in 2013.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests decreased from RMB17.1 million in 2012 by
RMB10.0 million to RMB7.1 million in 2013.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 44.1% from
RMB904.4 million in 2012 to RMB1,303.0 million in 2013.
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB1,508.1 million (31 December 2012: RMB1,543.9
million); and term deposits with maturities of over three months
amounted to RMB233.7 million (31 December 2012: RMB898.6
million); available-for-sale financial assets amounted to RMB776.1
million (31 December 2012: RMB717.9 million).

The Group generally deposits its excess cash in interest-bearing bank
accounts and current accounts. The Group may use extra cash as short-
term investments in order to obtain better returns. Therefore, the
members of the Group entered into agreements with certain PRC
state-owned banking institutions and reputable international financial
institutions outside of PRC to invest the extra cash. According to such
agreements, during the Year, the total investment principals of the
members of the Group amounted to RMB774.0 million. The investments
made by the Group according to these agreements were categorized as
short-term investments, which mainly consisted of financial planning
products purchased from certain state-owned banks and reputable
international financial institutions outside of PRC. For the said financial
planning products, the issuing banks of such financial planning products
can invest the Group’s funds into financial instruments such as treasury
bonds, discounted bank acceptances, commercial acceptance bills and
bank deposits. The investment principals of RMB774.0 million plus
interests of approximately RMB2.1 million amounted to approximately
RMB776.1 million, which recognized as available-for-sale financial assets
in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31 December 2013.
As at the date of the 2013 annual results announcement, sold/repaid total

investment principals amounted to RMB611.1 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other liabilities and bank

loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has sufficient cash as at 31 December 2013. The executive
directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the Group

does not have any significant capital risk.

Ro®-ZFE ROF
+oA=+ B A=t

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

N ST AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

BEG HEHER

Audited Audited

B KB %EY Cash and cash equivalents 1,508,076 1,543,907
W R Less: Borrowings (186,680) (773,114)
1,321,396 770,793

$2 5 B S At FE W B sk

AR W 52 5 IR e R B4 L 8 i
SO ICRE I BB K o AR E I
B R MR L A 6 4 1 5 5 AR O R R i
P~ WA BT TR A R O - 4%
BEREERERRR - R _F—ZF T2
H=T—HAEBEANE S KL ERE
R 2 AR W 1,398.0 H T © LR —
FT—THEF A=+ BRE S KA
MENCIR R BB R 9233 B ol T
N M 4747 6 B0 - 5 5ER 8 8 8 i
15 0 B A G o [T R 8 425 114 14 o
o F b R SR 88 T

B

REF—Z4F+ A=+ —H > BMW
GEEEHAREI03EEC(CE
—ZHFTZAZT-AGREESEL AR
WorsHEIL) - ZF— ZFRBMF
BRI A 189 H (T F — T4 184
H) o A F—ZFRAM A7 RWE -

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s trade receivables consist of the credit sales of its products to
be paid by its distributors. Other receivables consist of amount receivables
from partial disposal of Jilin Sichang, period taxes, prepayments to
suppliers, deposits and other receivables. The Group’s trade and other
receivables increased by RMB474.7 million from RMB923.3 million as
at 31 December 2012 to RMB1,398.0 million as at 31 December 2013.
The increase in trade and other receivables was mainly due to the increase

in credit sales, and other receivables, along with the increase in sales.

Inventory

Our inventory as at 31 December 2013 amounted to RMB101.3 million
(inventory as at 31 December 2012: RMB91.5 million). In 2013, the
inventory turnover days of our finished products was 18.9 days (2012:

18.4 days). We had no inventory impairments in 2013.
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Property, plant and equipment

Our property, plant and equipment consist of buildings, production
and electronic equipment, motor vehicles and construction in progress.
As at 31 December 2013, the net book value of property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB1,441.7 million, representing an increase
of RMB517.6 million, or approximately 56.0%, as compared with the
previous year. The increase was mainly attributable to the expanding or
construction of existing and new production facilities, and the purchase of

equipment.

Intangible assets

The Group’s intangible assets mainly consist of goodwill, customer
relationships, patents, deferred development costs and product
development in progress. The Group’s goodwill arose from the
acquisitions of the subsidiaries. The deferred development costs and
product development in progress mainly represent the acquisitions of
certain pharmaceutical R&D projects from external research institutions
and its own-developed R&D projects. As at 31 December 2013, net
intangible assets amounted to RMB2,880.6 million (31 December 2012:
RMB3,735.0 million).

Trade and other payables

The Group'’s trade and other payables primarily consist of trade payables,
accrued marketing service fee, deferred gain on partial disposal of Jilin
Sichang, advances from customers, taxes payables, other payables, accrued
expenses and amounts due to Directors. As at 31 December 2013, trade
and other payables amounted to RMB1,253.1 million, representing an
increase of RMB385.7 million as compared with 31 December 2012. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in advances from customers and

amounts due to Directors as at the end of 2013.

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities or guarantees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 31 December 2013, apart from the contingent liabilities disclosed,
the Group has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or
commitments to provide guarantees for any payment liabilities of any
third parties. The Group did not have any variable interests in any
unconsolidated entities that provide financing or liquidity, create market
risk or offer credit support to us or that engage in the provision of leasing,

hedging or research and development services to the Group.

Capital commitment

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had a total capital commitment
of RMB331.2 million, mainly set aside to acquire property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of a counterparty defaulting on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss for us. We have no significant
concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises mainly from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial assets
represent our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial

assets.

With respect to cash and cash equivalents, we manage the credit risk of
cash in the PRC by placing our bank deposits in large PRC state-owned
banks without significant credit risks. We manage the credit risk of cash
outside the PRC by placing our bank deposits in financial institutions

that have high credit quality.

With respect to trade and other receivables, we have policies in place to
ensure certain cash advances are paid by customers upon the agreement of
the related sales orders. We assess the credit quality of the counterparties
by taking into account their financial positions, credit histories and other
factors. We also undertake certain monitoring procedures to ensure that
proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. We regularly
perform ageing analysis, assess credit risks and estimate the recoverability
of groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit risks based on

historical data and cash collection history.

VY B A I AR AT R 2 2013 4 JiE #i %

31



32

W B w43 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

AR I HEAT A T B P DA AR R X
AR AT S8 s e R o AR EE
HUEEAT RS 0 A - W AN 5 £ B B AR YR
JEE: S o S B i B JER s A T T A0
5 B R B 9 52 5 B W i K AL ) T i e
‘ﬁo

Sl 0L <l 7 TR B A LR

A1 R J

AN w) K HC B 4 ) A Th e B s AR
W o A 4R ) T A WS 2 20 B R B R
AEMG M TAUNRBREN - A
A T I 4 B R A B M R B 0 R R A
5 [ 57 486 K B DA AN B I B 4 B
SR o SR > DL AR S A A1
W IR A5 8 S5 2 < o I O £ A1 T A
R - A= F— =+ " A=+~
H o> AR5 E AR ERE R AR 180.8
HOGR SR LU S A > H AR AN
JEB E A £ 4 N B W e R A THE
T B A o

B2 -Z =+ _HA=+—HI%E
BE > 7R S5 (B ROE S 0 AT AT SR - B R AT
A FE ORI B B T H -

LB BUR
A LG A ER R IR T 1R
i -

BABH

WA EAP L FEAFHEEYE - K
5 R > o T o Y
TR R E AP A N R
1,168.6 0 # 6 » Hrh - s Kkt
PR S B AR M s46.1 H # T > BEE KA
T EE M AR 2345880 +
i AR B S B N R 88.0 H T

The Group also undertakes certain monitoring procedures to ensure that
proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group
regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the
recoverability of groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit risks

based on historical data and cash collection history.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

RMB is the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
of the revenues of the Group are derived from operations in the PRC.
The financial instruments of the Group are denominated in RMB. The
Group is not subject to material currency risk as the Group has no major
cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currency. Nevertheless,
dividend payment of foreign currency converted from RMB is subject
to foreign exchange rules and regulations promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2013, the equivalent of approximately
RMB180.8 million of the Group’s outstanding borrowings were
denominated in US Dollar, of which the foreign exchange risk has been

set off with steadily appreciation of RMB against US Dollar over years.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not purchase any
foreign exchange, interest rate derivative products or relevant hedging

tools.

Treasury Policies

The Group finances its ordinary operations with internally generated

resources.

Capital expenditure

Our capital expenditure primarily consists of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. In 2013,
our capital expenditures amounted to RMB1,168.6 million, of which
RMB846.1 million was spent on property, plant and equipment.
Purchasing and self-developed intangible assets increased by RMB234.5
million, and the remaining RMB88.0 million was spent on land use

rights.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material acquisition and disposal

During the Year, there was no material acquisition and disposal by the

Group.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2013, none of our assets was pledged.

Human Resources and Remuneration of Employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the success of the Group in a
competitive environment. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to all employees. The Group reviews its own human resources
and remuneration policy regularly, to encourage employee to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the long-

term growth of the Company.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 2,560 employees. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, total salary and related costs of the Group was
approximately RMB240.5 million (2012: RMB122.7 million).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Che Fengsheng, aged 52, is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006. He is a co-
founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management, strategic
planning and business development of the Group and is instrumental to the
Group’s growth and business expansion since its establishment in 2001. Prior
to the Group's establishment, Dr. Che had more than 8 years of experience
as a medical doctor/neurologist and 20 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of pharmaceutical products and the management of pharmaceutical
companies. From 1997 to 2001 Dr. Che was general manager of Hainan Kang
Tong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd where he was in charge of the company’s overall
management. From 1995 to 1997, Dr. Che was the assistant general manager
and vice manager (marketing) of Shenzhen City New Special Pharmaceutical
Products Co., Ltd. where he was responsible for the marketing and overall
management of the company’s business. Between 1993 and 1995, Dr. Che was
the product promotions manager of Shenzhen City Healthcare Pharmaceutical
Company and East China Regional manager, in charge of sales and marketing.
From 1991 to 1993, Dr. Che held the position of chief neurologist and lecturer
in First Military Medical University, Zhu Jiang Hospital, Guangzhou City,
PRC. Dr. Che was a neurologist and an assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military
Medical University in Xi'an City, PRC from 1990 to 1991 and at the Fourth
Military Medical University, Xi Jing Hospital in Xi'an City, PRC from 1984
to 1987 respectively. Dr. Che is the vice-chairman of several committees and
associations including, China Political Science Training Centre, China Medical
Economics Magazine Board and the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association. Dr. Che
is also a deputy supervisor of the Hainan Food and Drug Working Committee
in the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association as well as a specially appointed research
member of the China Enterprise Reform and Development Research Institute.
In 2006, he was named as one of the Top 10 New and Enterprising Businessmen
in Hainan Province by the Hainan Province Commerce Association, the Hainan
Industry & Economics Association and the Evaluation Committee of Top
10 Leading Businessmen and Top 10 New and Enterprising Businessmen in
Industry and Commerce in Hainan. Dr. Che received his Bachelor of Medicine
(Aviation) and Master of Medicine (Neurology) from the Fourth Military
Medical University, Xi'an City, PRC, in 1984 and 1990 respectively. He also
received an Executive Master of Business Administration from China Europe

International Business School in 1999.
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Dr. Guo Weicheng, aged 50, is our deputy chairman and was appointed to our
Board on 18 May 2006. He is a co-founder of our Group. Dr. Guo is responsible
for the overall operations of our Group and our research and development
activities, with a focus on strategic planning, particularly in relation to mergers
and acquisitions and product collaborations. He has also become responsible
for Shenzhen Sihuan’s overall operations after it was acquired in 2007. Dr.
Guo is instrumental to our Group’s growth and business expansion since our
establishment in 2001. Prior to our establishment, Dr. Guo had more than 4
years of experience as a general surgeon and more than 20 years of experience
in the sales and marketing of pharmaceutical products. From 1992 to 1993,
Dr. Guo held the position of chief surgeon in Guangzhou Military 177
Hospital. Dr. Guo was a surgeon and assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military
Medical University, Tang Du Hospital, Xi'an City, PRC from 1986 to 1989.
Dr. Guo received his Bachelor of Medicine and Master of Medicine (General
Surgery) from the Fourth Military Medical University, PRC in 1986 and 1992,

respectively.

Mr. Meng Xianhui, aged 50, is our executive Director and deputy general
manager and was appointed to our Board on 18 May 2006. He joined our Group
in 2002 and is responsible for public and governmental relationships as well as
operations of the sales and marketing network of our Group in certain regions.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Meng had more than 7 years of experience in
the pharmaceutical industry in the areas of marketing, sales and distribution
of pharmaceutical products. Between 1987 and 1997, Mr. Meng was the
departmental head of Jilin Materials Bureau where he was responsible for
planning the allocation and distribution of production materials. Mr. Meng was
conferred the title of Economist by the Jilin Provincial Government in 1993.
Mr. Meng received a Graduate Certificate in Management Engineering from
Huazhong Engineering College (now known as Huazhong University of Science
and Technology) in 1987. He undertook a one-year Postgraduate Business

Administration course in Peking University from 2004 to 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Zhang Jionglong, aged 52, is our non-executive Director and was
appointed to our Board on 18 May 2006. He joined our Group in 2005 and has
more than 9 years of experience as a medical doctor. From 1983 to 1992, Dr.
Zhang worked as a medical doctor in Shenzhen City People’s Hospital, one of
the largest hospitals in Shenzhen City, PRC. Dr. Zhang received a Graduate
Certificate in Medical Treatment from Shantou Medical College, PRC (now
known as Shantou University Medical College) in 1983. In 1992, Dr. Zhang
was conferred the professional title of chief physician by the Shenzhen City

Conferment Reform Leadership Group.

Mr. Homer Sun, aged 43, is a non-executive Director and was appointed to
Board on 18 August 2011. Mr. Homer Sun is currently the Chief Investment
Officer of Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia and leads the China investments
for Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia. Mr. Sun is also a Managing Director
of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited and a member of the China Management
Committee which is comprised of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited’s most senior
business leaders within China. He is currently the non-executive director of
China Flooring Holding (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 2083), China XD Plastics (a company listed on the NASDAQ stock
exchange, ticker: CXDC) and Yongye International (a company listed on the
NASDAQ stock exchange, ticker: YONG). Mr. Sun was previously a non-
executive director of China Shanshui Cement Group Ltd. (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 0691) from October 2006 to October
2013. Mr. Sun joined Morgan Stanley Asia Limited in 2000, prior to which he
was a corporate attorney with Simpson Thacher & Bartlett in New York and
Hong Kong, specializing in mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Sun received a B.S.E.
in Chemical Engineering, magna cum laude, from the University of Michigan
in 1993 and a J.D, cum laude, from the University of Michigan Law School in
1996. He acted as a non-executive Director for the period from 13 December
2009 to 3 June 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Patrick Sun, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to our Board on 7 October 2010. Mr. Sun is currently an independent
non-executive director and non-executive chairman of Solomon Systech
(International) Limited (Stock Code: 2878), and has been an independent non-
executive director of China Railway Group Limited (Stock Code: 390) from
September 2007, an independent non-executive director of Trinity Limited
(Stock Code: 891) from October 2008, and an independent non-executive
director of China NT Pharma Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1011) from
March 2010 (all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Sun is currently
an independent non-executive director of China CNR Corporation Limited
(Stock Code: SH601299), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He
is currently a vice chairman of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
and was formerly its Honorary Chief Executive Officer from December 2002 to
September 2004. He was a member of the Takeovers & Mergers Panel and the
Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures Exchange from 1995
to 1997 and from 1999 to 2001, Deputy Convenor/Chairman of the Listing
Committee from 1996 to 2002 and a member of the Council of the Stock
Exchange from 1995 to 2000. He was previously the Senior Country Officer and
Head of Investment Banking for Hong Kong of JPMorgan Chase from 2000
to 2002. He also previously served as an independent non-executive director
of Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387) from
December 2011 to December 2012, an executive director and chief executive
officer of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 821) from August
2006 to October 2009, executive director of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 188) from September 2004 and May 2006 (all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange), group executive director and co-head of
Investment Banking of Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited from 1996 to 2000.
He was formerly an independent non-executive director of Link Management
Limited, Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387)
from December 2011 to December 2012, and Everbright Pramerica Fund
Management Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania, United States with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Economics in 1981. Mr. Sun is a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 62, is our independent non-executive Director
and was appointed to our Board on 4 September 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tsang was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong
Kong and China. He has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing
support for initial public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang is
currently an independent non-executive director of a number of companies,
including Agria Corporation (listed on the New York Stock Exchange); China
Merchants China Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 133.HK); PanAsialum
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2078.HK); TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 2283.HK) Mr. Tsang is also an alternate director of PGG
Wrightson Limited, a company listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange, and
was a director of PGG Wrightson Limited from November 2011 to December
2012. Mr. Tsang received a bachelor degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered Association

of Certified Accountants.

Mr. Zhu Xun, aged 56, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 20 February 2014. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhu has more than 20 years of experience in pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Zhu has been a non-executive director of Cathay International Pharmaceutical
Limited since August 2011. He has also served as a senior consultant of
the Pharmaceutical Research Institute of the Founder Group* (/5 1E 4 [
% % BF A Bt) since May 2011 and a consultant of Crown Bioscience since
November 2013. He is currently a member of the National New Drugs
Advisory Committee* ([ 5 7 4€ 3 7] % B &), the expert review group of
the Life Science Division of the National NaturalScience Foundation of China,
the expert advisory group in Biotechnology of the National Development
and Reform Commission, the review group of the Innovation Fund for SMEs
of the Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC and the editorial
committee of the Chinese Journal of Cancer Biotherapy. He is also the deputy
director of the enzyme and fermentation engineering committee of the China
Medicinal Biotech Association. Mr. Zhu was the special assistant to the mayor
of Changchun Municipal People’s Government, PRC from August 2003 to
July 2007. Mr. Zhu was awarded a doctorate degree in medicine from Norman
Bethune University of Medical Science ( E*%’%ﬂﬁ%) in April 1989.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Jia Zhongxin, aged 54, is our chief operating officer and the Chairman
at Xuanzhu Pharma starting from November 2012. Ms. Jia joined our Group
in 2007 and is a practising pharmacist and senior engineer. Ms. Jia received
a Bachelor in Pharmacy in 1982 from the Medical Department of Peking
University (formerly known as Beijing Medicine College, Beijing Medical
University) and a Master in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia in 2004. She had held various managerial positions in many
companies. Between January 2006 and November 2007, Ms. Jia headed
the biomedical department of China Baoan Group Co., Ltd. and was also
chairman of Shenzhen Daphne Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Prior to that, she was
the chief executive officer of Wuhan Ma Ying Long Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
and chairman of Wuhan Ma Ying Long Chained Pharmacies Co., Ltd. from
November 2002 to December 2005.

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, aged 40, is our chief financial officer and one of the
joint company secretaries. Mr. Choi joined our Group in 2006 and is responsible
for overseeing and managing the accounting and finance functions of our
Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Choi gained his finance and accounting
experience at a company listed on the main board of Bursa Malaysia (formerly
known as Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange) and at Deloitte and Touche. Mr. Choi
received a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) from Nelson Polytechnic (now
known as Nelson Marlborough Institute of Technology), New Zealand in 1997.
He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK)

and also a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.

Mr. Lin Guotan, aged 45, is our vice president starting from 21 January
2013. Mr. Lin joined our Group in 2005 and is in charge of improving and
maintaining internal business communications, and assisting the chairman
to drive annual business plans. He started his career in the pharmaceutical
industry in 1993 and joined our Group in 2005 as marketing director then
promoted as general manager of Hainan Sihuan. He received a Bachelor of
English from Luoyang Institute of Technology in 1993 and a Master of Business

Administration from Tongji University in 2002.
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Dr. Huo Caixia, aged 44, is the director of our R&D management center and
general manager of Beijing Ao He Research Institute Co. Ltd. (“Beijing Ao
He Research”). Dr. Huo joined our Group in 2004 and is responsible for the
registrations of pharmaceutical products and assists in overseeing the research
and development functions of our Group. Between 2002 and 2004, she was
an assistant researcher at the Chemistry Research Institution of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences. Dr. Huo received a Bachelor of Science (Pharmacy) from
Inner Mongolia Medical College in 1993, a Master of Science (Pharmaceutical
Chemistry) from Inner Mongolia Medical College in 1998 and a Doctor of

Science (Pharmaceutical Chemistry) from Peking University in 2002.

Dr. Gao Jianhua, aged 57, is our chairman at Langfang Gaobo Jingband
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and joined our Group in 2009. Dr. Gao has extensive
experience in drug research, particularly pharmaceutical API and intermediates
in chemical process. Dr. Gao received a Bachelor of Science (Pharmacy) from
Shanghai First Medical College (now known as Fudan University) in 1982 and
a Master of Medicine from the Academy of Military Medical Sciences in 1985.
Dr. Gao received his PhD in Pharmacy from the Chinese Military Academy of
Medical Sciences in the PRC in 1988 and the University of North Carolina in
the United States in 1994. From 1988 to 1990, Dr. Gao served as researcher
in pharmacy in Chinese Military Academy of Medical Sciences. From 1990 to
1998, Dr. Gao was the deputy director and then was promoted to researcher
at Beijing Sihuan (formerly known as Chinese Military Academy of Medical
Sciences Sihuan Pharmaceutical Factory). In the same year, Dr. Gao founded and
acted as the Chairman of Beijing Gao Bo Pharmaceutical Chemical Technical

Development Co., Ltd.

Dr. Wu Yongqian, aged 51, is the General Manager at Xuanzhu Pharma.
He joined our Group in 2011. He has more than 10 years of experience in
innovation drug R&D and management. Before he studied abroad in the U.S.A.,
Dr. Wu received his B.S. Degree of Chemistry from Nanjing University in
1985. He also received a Ph.D. in Medicinal Chemistry from Wayne State
University in 1993 and accomplished his postdoctoral program in Brandeis
University in 1995. Between 1996 and 2005, he was a senior scientist and
project director at Guilford Pharmaceuticals, engaging in innovation drug R&D.
From 2005 to the end of 2010, he was the chief scientist officer and project
director of Boehringer Ingelheim, and responsible for project management and

innovation drug R&D.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, is our chief financial officer and joint company secretary.

Please refer to this section headed “Senior Management” for his biography.

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, is our joint company secretary. Ms. Mok was appointed in
December 2013. Ms. Mok is a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited and has over
15 years of professional and in-house experience in company secretarial field. She
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the

Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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Good corporate governance is favorable for the improvement of the overall
performance, transparency and accountability of the Company and is crucial to
the modern corporate administration. The Board of Directors (the “Board”), in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), devotes
considerable efforts to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate

governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Company has throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”

or the “Reporting Period”), complied with all applicable code provisions under
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), save and except for the deviation from the
code provision A.2.1 of the Code. Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Currently, the Company does not comply
with such code provision as the roles of the Chairman and CEO have not been

separated.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Save for Dr. Che Fengsheng who is
the Chairman and CEO of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or
other material relationship among the members of the Board. The biographical
information of the members of the Board are set out on pages 34 to 38 in the

section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Group's strategic
development, determination of the Group's objectives, business strategies
and policies, and the supervision and control of the operation and financial
performance in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives. Our management
team, which possesses extensive operating experience and industry knowledge,
has been delegated by the Board with the authority and responsibility for the
day-to-day management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees, namely, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee. Further details

of these Board committees are set out below.
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The Board convened four regular meetings during the Reporting Period. All
Directors were sent a meeting notice, at least 14 days prior to such meeting,
with the Board meeting agenda. The views of independent non-executive
Directors were actively solicited by the Company even if they were unable
to attend the meetings of the Board. Minutes of the Board and the Board
committees are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings.
All Directors are provided with Board papers and related statistics on a timely
manner, which enable the Board to make informed decisions on matters
proposed. In addition, all Board members have regularly reviewed the business

documents and information related to the Group.

All Directors are entitled to access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries. The joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Choi
Yiau Chong, who is also the chief financial officer of the Company, and Ms.
Mok Ming Wai. Ms. Mok is a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited, a corporate
secretarial and accounting services provider in Hong Kong. The primary

corporate contact person of Ms. Mok at the Company is Mr. Choi Yiau Chong.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. Choi and Ms.
Mok, have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings, during the Reporting

Period, is stated below:

SV (el
HEHRTERKY
Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
Executive Directors
Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman and CEO) 4/4
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Meng Xianhui (Deputy General Manager) 4/4
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Zhang Jionglong 4/4
Mr. Homer Sun 4/4
Mr. Eddy Huang (resigned on 4 September 2013) 2/3
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Patrick Sun 4/4
Mr. Bai Huiliang (resigned on 20 February 2014) 4/4
Mr. Xu Kangsen (resigned on 4 September 2013) 3/3
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointed
on 4 September 2013) 11
Mt. Zhu Xun (appointed on 20 February 2014) 0/0
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance

coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

As regards the code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the issuer,
Directors has agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely

manner.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
CEO should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual,
but the Company does not meet this requirement currently. Given the Group's
current development under the circumstance, the Board considers that Dr. Che
Fengsheng, the Chairman and CEO as one of the main founders of the Company
and possessing extensive medical and pharmaceutical industry knowledge
together with unique strategic perspective is suitably qualified to lead the
Company and formulate effective strategies to react promptly to market changes
and new challenges. His continual service in both roles would be beneficial to
the stable and healthy development of the Company. Dr. Che Fengsheng held
the roles of both the Chairman and CEO of the Group, and his responsibilities
are clearly set out in writing and approved by the Board. The Board will review
the structure from time to time and will consider the appropriate adjustments

when the circumstance is suitable.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has appointed two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the three independent
non-executive Directors holds appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise set out in Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. More than one-third of the members of the Board are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Patrick Sun, being an independent
non-executive Director and Dr. Zhang Jionglong, being a non-executive
Director, have renewed their respective letters of appointment with the
Company on 27 October 2013 for a term of one year commencing from
28 October 2013. Mr. Homer Sun, being a non-executive Director, has
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 18 August 2013. Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu
Xun, being the independent non-executive Directors, have entered into the
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from 4 September 2013 and 20 February 2014 respectively. The non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws. Each
independent non-executive Director has submitted to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The bye-laws of the Company provide that all the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation and be eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In
addition, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting after his appointment and be subject to re-

election at such meeting.

Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. The retiring Directors are eligible for

re-election by the Shareholders at the respective general meetings.
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Mr. Meng Xianhui, Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Xu Kangsen were retired and re-
elected as Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31
May 2013. Mr. Meng Xianhui was re-elected as an executive Director, each of
Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Xu Kangsen was re-elected as an independent non-

executive Director.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before
the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which
such Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him
and the Company) provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for
the purpose of removing a Director shall contain a statement of the intention to
do so and be served on such Director fourteen (14) days before the meeting and,
at such meeting, such Director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for

his removal.

As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been put in place
to ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this aspect provides
sufficient protection for the interests of Shareholders to a standard commensurate

with the provision of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
year of 2013, there were two in-house seminars conducted covering the topics
of pharmaceutical industry and new inside information disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. All Directors

attended the above seminars.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in accordance with the requirements of the Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board to provide an independent view on the effectiveness of the
financial reporting procedures, internal control and risk management system
of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as by the Board. The Audit Committee currently comprises
one non-executive Director (Dr. Zhang Jionglong) and three independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu
Xun), and is chaired by Mr. Patrick Sun who has a professional qualification in

accountancy.
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During the Reporting Period, three meetings were held by the Audit
Committee. During the past year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
Group's financial reporting matters, reviewed the internal control system in
relation to finance and accounting and submitted improvement proposals to the
Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with the

provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the interim results
for the period ended 30 June 2013. As at the date of this report, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the auditor’s remuneration for 2013 and recommended
the Board to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor
for the year of 2014, which is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The attendance record of the committee members at the meetings held during

the Reporting Period was as follows:

815
ZEHRIH
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of Meetings held

Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman) 3/3
Dr. Zhang Jionglong 3/3
Mr. Bai Huiliang (resigned on 20 February 2014) 3/3
Mr. Xu Kangsen (resigned on 4 September 2013) 1/2
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointment

on 4 September 2013) 1/1
Mr. Zhu Xun (appointed on 20 February 2014) 0/0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among others, reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and making recommendation to the
Board on matters relating to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises of one executive Director (Dr. Guo Weicheng)
and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang
Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun). Mr. Xu Kangsen acted as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee for the period from 19 March 2012 to 4 September
2013 and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong has been appointed as the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee with effect from 4 September 2013. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the provisions
set out in the relevant sections of the Code. During the year, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in accordance with the
requirements as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the Board comprised
members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured check and

balance and safeguarded the interests of Shareholders as well as the public.

During the Year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify members of the Board.
The Company believes that a diversified perspective can be achieved through
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The following measurable
objectives were adopted: Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria,
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, two meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, considered the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors and assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee, had also taking into consideration of the
skills, experience and knowledge, the relevant requirements of the Company and
the structure and composition of the Board, identified, reviewed and nominated
with diligence and care candidates, suitability as board members of the Company
before making final recommendations to the Board for appointment of Mr. Tsang

Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun as independent non-excutive Directors.

The attendance record of the committee members at the meetings held during

the Reporting Period was as follows:

LYY i)
ZEHRIKH
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of Meetings held

Mr. Xu Kangsen (Chairman) (resigned on

4 September 2013) 1/2
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) (appointed

on 4 September 2013) 0/0
Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
Mr. Bai Huiliang (resigned on 20 February 2014) 2/2
Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
Mr. Zhu Xun (appointed on 20 February 2014) 0/0

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular

basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things, to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, and to
prevail market conditions. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
of an executive Director (Dr. Che Fengsheng) and three independent non-
executive Directors, (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu
Xun). Mr. Bai Huiliang acted as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
for the period from 19 March 2012 to 20 February 2014. Mr. Zhu Xun has been
appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
20 February 2014. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are

consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance
of executive Directors, reviewed the remuneration policy, reviewed and
approved the proposed 2014 director’ s fees for Executive Directors and made
recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fees for Non-executive Directors.
On 4 September 2013 and 20 February 2014, it reviewed and approved the
remuneration packages and appointment letters for Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
and Mr. Zhu Xun respectively. In addition, it reviewed and approved the new

vesting period of the Employee Share Award Scheme on 16 December 2013.

During the Reporting Period, three meetings were held by the Remuneration
Committee, during which the resolutions regarding the remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management of the Company in 2013 and the
remuneration policy for the executive Directors and senior management for

2014 were discussed and recommended to the Board for consideration.

The attendance record of the committee members at the meetings held during

the Reporting Period was as follows:

LIV e 2h)
ZERKH
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of Meetings held

Mr. Bai Huiliang (Chairman) (resigned on

20 February 2014) 3/3
Mzr. Zhu Xun (Chairman) (appointed on

20 February 2014) 0/0
Dr. Che Fengsheng 3/3
Mr. Xu Kangsen (resigned on 4 September 2013) 1/2
Mr. Patrick Sun 3/3
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointed on

4 September 2013) 0/1
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5, the
annual remuneration of members of the senior management by band for the year

ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

A

Remuneration band (HKD) Number of individual

Nil - HKD1,000,000
HKD1,500,001 - HKD2,000,000 4
HKD2,500,001 - HKD3,000,000

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Reporting Period. To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of
the Code, the Group has also established and adopted the Model Code as the
code of conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees to regulate the
dealings in the securities of the Group by certain employees of the Group who

are deemed to be likely in possession of the inside information of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirmed that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013. A statement on reporting
responsibility with respect to the external auditor of the Company is set out on

pages 77 to 78 of this Annual Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective internal
control system is maintained within the Group. The Company and its
subsidiaries have adopted internal control procedures and policies to safeguard
the assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting records, to carry out a
reliable financial reporting, and to guarantee compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The Company has an Internal Audit team which conducts
regular financial and operational reviews on the Group and reports its findings
and control weaknesses, if any, to the Audit Committee. The annual work plan
is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit team
monitors follow-up actions agreed upon in response to its recommendations.
In addition, the Board conducts annually, with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, a review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group and had reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 including the adequacy, of
resources, qualifications and experience of staffs of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget

and consider it effective and adequate.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Group had made remarkable improvements in investor relationship in 2013.
The Group has participated in a number of institutional investor conferences
and regularly communicated with many investors through various means. The
Group has also set to provide the highest standard and financial transparency
through publication of annual and interim reports, results announcements,
other announcements and circulars made through the Company’s and Stock

Exchange’s websites.

During the Year, the Company held an annual general meeting on 31 May 2013
(the “2013 AGM”). All directors and the external auditor were present at the
2013 AGM to answer Shareholder’s questions.
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The attendance record of the Directors at the general meeting is set out below:

g BT
Z kY
Meeting attendance/
held
Executive Directors
Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman and CEO) 1/1
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman) 1/1
Mr. Meng Xianhui (Deputy General Manager) 1/1
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Zhang Jionglong /1
Mr. Homer Sun 1/1
Mr. Eddy Huang (resigned on 4 September 2013) 11
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Patrick Sun 1/1
Mr. Bai Huiliang (resigned on 20 February 2014) 1/1
Mr. Xu Kangsen (resigned on 4 September 2013) 1/1
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointed on
4 September 2013) 0/0
Mt. Zhu Xun (appointed on 20 February 2014) 0/0

During the period from 1 January 2013 to the date of this Annual Report, there
has not been any change in the Company’s memorandum of association and bye-

laws.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Act”) and applicable legislation
and regulation. Shareholders who have enquires about the following procedures
or have enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) at Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

A. Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as a
director of the Company (a “Director”)

(1) Pursuant to Bye-laws 56 and 57, the Company holds an annual
general meeting (“AGM”) every year, and may hold a general

meeting known as a special general meeting whenever necessary.
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Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, Shareholder(s) holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request for notice of
any resolution intended to be moved at an AGM or a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting to be given to the Shareholders entitled

to receive notice of the AGM or general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
Shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office at Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton,
Bermuda HM11 with a copy to its principal office at Room 4905,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition for notice of a
resolution and not less than one week before the general meeting in

the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM and give
notice of the resolution; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by
the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will not

be circulated for the general meeting.
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B. Procedures for a Shareholder to propose a person for election

as a Director

@™

)

(3)

)

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of
Director(s), wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder
himself/herself) for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she
must deposit a written notice at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton, Bermuda HM11 and
its principal office at Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that
proposal, the written notice must state the full name of the person
proposed for election as a director, his/her biographical details as
required by rule 13.51(2) of the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and be
signed by the Shareholder concerned and accompanied by a notice

signed by that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

The minimum length of the period, during which such written
notice(s) may be given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of

such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior
to that general meeting, the Company will need to consider
adjournment of the general meeting in order to (i) assess
the suitability of the proposed candidate; and (ii) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation
to the proposal to the Shareholders at least fourteen (14) clear
days and not less than ten (10) business days prior to the general

meeting.
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C. Procedures for Shareholders to convene special general
meeting (“SGM”)

@™

)

3)

)

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office at Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton,
Bermuda HM11 and with a copy to its principal office at Room
4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of

such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general
meeting, be signed by the requisitionists and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those

requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be

convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionists at a SGM

varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

i at least twenty-one (21) clear days” and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company, which
cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical amendment

to correct a patent error; and

ii.  at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.
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(5)  If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Act.

(6)  In accordance with the provision of section 74(3) of the Act, if
the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the

expiration of three (3) months from the said date.

(7)  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall
be retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due
from the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect

of their services to such directors as were in default.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details

are as follows:

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Led.
Room 4905, Office Tower,

Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Rd.,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3628 3720

Fax: (852) 3101 0362

Email: ir@sihuanpharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries of the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Audit Committee is

authorised by the Board to perform the corporate governance duties as below:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management of the Company;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual to corporate governance matters (if any) applicable to employees

and directors of the Company; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with the Code and other related

rules and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the auditor of the Group provided

audit and non-audit services for the Group. The service fees for audit and non-
audit services in 2013 amounted to RMB3.5 million and RMB0.35 million
respectively. The non-audit service fees paid/payable to the external auditor were

for advices on accounting and taxation matters.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING
Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui, Dr. Zhang

Jionglong and Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (collectively, the “Convenantors”
and each a “Convenantor”) had provided an annual declaration in respect of
their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-competition undertaking
(as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 15 October 2010). Pursuant to
the deed of non-competition, each of the Convenantors has, among other things,
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the Company that at any time
during the relevant period, each of the Convenantors shall, and shall procure

that its associates (other than members of our Group):

(i)  not, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in, participate in, or attempt
to participate in or render any services to or provide any financial support
to or otherwise be involved in, whether on its own account or with each
other or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company,
any business which is the same as, similar to or in competition with the

business of the Group; and

(i)  not take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may interfere

with or disrupt the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by

the Convenantors with the deed of non-competition undertaking.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, income and segment information for the

year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 83 of this Annual

Report.

An interim dividend of RMB4.3 cents per ordinary share, totaling
RMB222,526,000, was paid during 2013.

The Board proposed to distribute a final dividend of RMB2.1 cents per ordinary
share and a bonus issue of one bonus share for every one existing ordinary
share to all Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 13 June 2014, being the record date. Such proposal is subject
to the consideration and approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 30 May 2014 (the “2014 AGM").

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group’s results and assets and liabilities for the last five

financial years is set out on page 7 of this Annual Report.
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Report of Directors

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

this year are set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
together with the reasons for such movements are set out in Note 19 to the

Financial Statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had total borrowings of approximately
RMB186.68 million, including borrowings of RMB5.88 million from
subsidiaries’ non-controlling shareholders and bank borrowings of RMB180.8

million.

SHARES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the shares and reserves of the Company during the
Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and also
in Notes 19 and 20 to the Financial Statements. As at the balance sheet date,
the Company'’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted to
RMB2,174,606,000 (2012: RMB1,400,702,000). The Company had not issued

any shares during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has not implemented any share option scheme.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management of the Group
(the “Employee Share Award Scheme”) has been adopted by certain Shareholders
of the Company (namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr. Che Fengsheng
and Dr. Guo Weicheng) on 25 October 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). Plenty
Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as
settlors (the “Settlors”) of a trust, has reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000
shares of the Company (the “Plenty Gold Shares”) for the Employee Share Award
Scheme. On 25 January 2013, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. contributed an
additional 3,750,000 shares of the Company (together with the Plenty Gold
Shares, the “Reserve Shares”) to the Employee Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co
(a private trust company established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-
owned by Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited) has been appointed as the trustee
(the “Scheme Trustee”) to hold the Reserve Shares under the Employee Share
Award Scheme, and the Scheme Trustee will, upon receiving instructions from
the remuneration committee of the Company, award to selected management
personnel and employees of the Group (excluding Directors) (a “Grantee”) the
rights to acquire the Reserve Shares (“Awards”) at a price to be determined by

the remuneration committee of the Company.

The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting of the existing shares of
the Company and no new shares will be issued by the Company pursuant to this
arrangement. The Reserve Shares will not be counted towards the public float
as Grantees of Awards will be selected management personnel of the Group
(excluding Directors) and the Settlors are connected persons. All related award
schemes (including this Employee Share Award Scheme) will not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company. The remuneration
committee of the Company shall determine which employee will be granted the
Awards, and Awards may be granted at any time during a period of three years
commencing from the Adoption Date. Subject to satisfying certain terms and
conditions for exercise of the Awards, including certain vesting conditions and
performance targets (if any), a Grantee may exercise any portion of his or her
Award accepted by him/her at any time before the deadline for exercising the

Award as stated in the offer letter from the Scheme Trustee to such employee.
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Report of Directors

On 27 September 2013, 234 employees of the Group were granted Awards
entitling them to acquire an aggregate of 19,750,000 shares of the Company
from the Trustee Co at an exercise price of HK$3.19 per share. On 21 October
2013, 6 employees of the Group were granted Awards entitling them to acquire
an aggregate of 2,050,000 shares of the Company from the Trustee Co at an
exercise price of HK$0.70 per share. Subject to certain vesting conditions and
the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), such Awards shall be
exercisable over a period of five years commencing from the date on which the
Awards were granted. On 16 December 2013, the Company, with the approval
of the Remuneration Committee, has notified 12 of the grantees of the Awards
the permission of the early vesting of Awards involving a total of 3,133,336
Option Shares so that these Awards can be exercised with effect from 16
December 2013 instead of 20 March 2014.

As of 31 December 2013, a total of 6 employees have exercised their Awards
involving 1,000,000 shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shates on a pro rata

basis to its existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2013, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers were 3.0% and 9.2% respectively of the Group's sales for
the Year.

In 2013, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
and five largest suppliers were 39.9% and 69.4% respectively of the Group's

purchases for the Year.

Neither the Directors or chief executive or any of their associates or any
Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the

Group's five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related-party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in Note 37 to the Financial Statements. None of
these transactions constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has not conducted any
other connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined
under the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review

requirements under the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary shares at a price
of HK$4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed
below, the net proceeds raised from such international placing and public
offer, being approximately HK$6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately
RMBS5,407.6 million), are used in accordance with the purposes disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 15 October 2010.

As at 31 December 2013, approximately RMB4,624.8 million raised from the
global offering of the Company was used for the purposes and approximately in

the amounts set out below:

®  approximately RMB256.4 million was used for our product development

and research;

®  approximately RMB98.6 million was used for the development of our

existing products;
®  approximately RMB74.5 million was used for acquisition of products;

®  approximately RMB494.8 million was used for funding the construction

of our two new production facilities located in Beijing and Langfang;

®  approximately RMB300.3 million was used for funding the construction

of production facilities in Jilin province and Liaoning province;

®  approximately RMB3,351.8 million was used for mergers and

acquisitions; and

®  approximately RMB48.4 million was used for enhancement of our sales

and distribution efforts.
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Report of Directors

Approximately RMB782.8 million was raised from the international placing
and public offer of the Company remained unused as at 31 December 2013,

which is deposited in the special bank account of the Company.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up

to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman and CEO)
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Meng Xianhui (Deputy General Manager)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Zhang Jionglong
Mr. Homer Sun
Mr. Eddy Huang (resigned on 4 September 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Bai Huiliang (resigned on 20 February 2014)

Mr. Xu Kangsen (resigned on 4 September 2013)

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (appointed on 4 September 2013)
Mr. Zhu Xun (appointed on 20 February 2014)

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
under the Section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of

this Annual Report.

Dr. Che Fengsheng, Mr. Homer Sun and Mr. Zhang Jionglong shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election, at the 2014
AGM.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun shall retire and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the 2014 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng and Mr. Meng Xianhui, being

the executive Directors, renewed their service contracts with the Company
on 27 October 2013 for a term of three years commencing from 28 October
2013, subject to termination before expiry by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other. Under these service contracts,
each of Dr. Che, Dr. Guo and Mr. Meng will receive a monthly salary
(including any director’s fees) of RMB100,000, RMB50,000 and RMB25,000,
respectively (such annual salary is subject to annual review by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee) and a discretionary bonus as may be decided by the
Board and the remuneration committee at their discretion, having regard to the

performance of the relevant executive Director.

Such executive Director shall abstain from voting, and not be counted in the
quorum, in respect of any resolution of the Board approving the determination

of the salary, bonus and other benefits payable to him.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong, being the non-executive Director, renewed his letter
of appointment with the Company on 27 October 2013, for a term of one
year commencing from 28 October 2013 and Mr. Homer Sun being the non-
executive Director, renewed his letter of appointment with the Company on 17
August 2013 for a term of one year commencing from 18 August 2013. The

non-executive Directors will not receive any remuneration from the Company.

Mr. Patrick Sun, being the independent non-executive Director renewed his
letter of appointment with the Company on 27 October 2013 and Mr. Tsang
Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun, being the independent non-executive Directors
entered into their respective letters of appointment with the Company on 4
September 2013 and 20 February 2014 respectively for a term of one year,
commencing from 28 October 2013, 4 September 2013 and 20 February 2014
respectively. The annual fee for Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and
Mr. Zhu Xun are HK$300,000, HK$300,000 and RMB240,000 respectively.

Saved as disclosed in this Annual Report, none of the Directors standing for
re-election at the 2014 AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than the statutory compensation.
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Report of Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
AND CONTRACTS

During 2013, no Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) are considered to have an interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group. Furthermore, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.
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HFHEETEFHRABRES - Ml DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
BBy B Al 2 b 2 BE AR R AT AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

REF—=ZF+ZA=1+—H AAFALEE As at 31 December 2013, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
R T BAT BN B A4 ) s H AT o] A B the following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
(7 28 5 i 75 B B8 e o (1 58 2% B B e il 1) debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
SEXVER) Z By~ MBI AR S P A AR of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
) JE 0 Bk 1 AL o 5 B R 191 565 352 IR register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
AP FM  BOREE b BT N T as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
8 9720y 2 e S J) (TR YESF A ) g A 4 ) Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model

FH 8 2 g AR WR Code”):
() EHERPBRA PR (i)  Directors’ interests in Shares
Ak
ety 4 % Approximate
HHEH T S Total Number percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity of Shares Shareholding
S5 SRR () 3,071,728,021 UFR) (FftzE4) 59.36% (I 1)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 2,725,131,019 B (A7) 27,150,002 (iR A)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 3,071,728,021 (L) (Note 4) 59.36% (L)
2,725,131,019 Shares (L) 27,150,002 (S)
LM AR T A (M3 2) 0.52% (RA)
28,700,002 [ (I %) 0.52% (8)

27,150,002 & (&)
Settlor of a trust (Note 2)
28,700,002 shares (L)
27,150,002 Shares (S)

Fic P

400,000 1B (4 )
Interest of spouse
400,000 Shares (L)

HAHE S (FHE3)
458,787,000 it (4F£7)
Other interest (Note 3)
458,787,000 Shares (L)
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Name of Director

SRAE
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mt. Meng Xianhui

S RE R
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

AR S

Nature of Interest/Capacity

Hala A
5,675,000 1§ (WF &)
Beneficial Owner
5,675,000 Shares (L)

R MERT A
156,012,000 & (475
Settlor of a trust
156,012,000 Shares (L)

HoAh R (Ff5Es)
3,027,941,021 It (£ 8
Other interest (Note )
3,027,941,021 Shares (L)

1?’*{2@@@ mu£7
56,590,000 It (178

Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7)

56,590,000 Shares (L)

HAHELR (Fsts)
3,071,728,021 It (48
Other interest (Note 8)
3,071,728,021 Shares (L)

LR (M 10)
99,220,000 A (15 A7)

Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 10)

99,220,000 Shares (L)

HAHER (st 1)
3,071,728,021 It (48
Other interest (Note 11)
3,071,728,021 Shares (L)

e R e

Report of Directors
[Epig:
Bty 4 % Approximate
Total Number percentage of

of Shares

3,071,728,021 (A (Fifzk6)
3,071,728,021 (L) (Note 6)

3,071,728,021 (F A7) (Hif5k9)
3,071,728,021 (L) (Note 9)

3,071,728,021 () (Bt &k 12)
3,071,728,021 (L) (Note 12)

Shareholding

59.36% (1)
59.36% (L)

59.36% (1A
59.36% (L)

59.36% (I H)
59.36% (L)
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@

2

(3)

“4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

[

H 5 JF B 4 % Plenty Gold Enterprises
Limited ([ Plenty Gold]) & # 1T 4 55%
DL K Network Victory Limited 2 E 317
WA E R A o B > HUSTHE A
B WL £ 1 Plenty Gold K Network Victory
Limiced 437l 7 A 19 4222 7 2,497,297,019
B B 227,834,000 B 3 o A A <

B B B E A {5 5L (Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited ([ % € A A
ADARZRENMMERTAZ— &
B B 52 sE A R 1Y 28,700,002 i
P () v 4 4 O 27,150,002 fi%
A AR A

AR 75 B B R I35 317 Jes18 k> o
UG T B AL 2 4 B el B A B A - 5
eI A o A A R E R
A HE 5 BB 7% B 45 19 141,290,000
it~ 161,687,000 % ~ 56,590,000 K  J&
99,220,000 % ff A HE 4

#£3,071,728,021 ] 03 W9 47 8 > #LUG T
BRI Pk R 5 BOARE 42 1 1L
% 141,290,000 & I 3 19 3 4 A 4
B HES o

MR 55 S & 0I5 317 S 31806 > 56
AR A R A B el S R 3
HEE L ~ R R R R
1 45 BB 2 A HE 45 19 2,754,231,021
J& ~ 117,900,000 % ~ 56,590,000 & K&
99,220,000 B S fr H HEAT HE 4 o

1£3,071,728,021 B3 A9 47 8 > 5 4E R
R R AR ST T AN AR £ (1
B 117,900,000 P B 3 10 i A5 4 A
Bt BHEA RS -

W 78 ek ST B Smarc Top Overseas Limited
2R EAT IR B A AN OBR
B 1A Smarc Top Overseas Limited FaEm
56,590,000 e BC i B A 1

R R 25 T 0 B0k 1 565 317 Besis bk
A S AR O S i 4 B el S T
A AR AR i E ek R
HE B8 AR AR A oM R A 4R
2,754,231,021 K ~ 161,687,000 fi ~
56,590,000 [ %2 99,220,000 i i 03 h B A
R4S o

Notes:

@

)

©)

7

Dr. Che Fengsheng is the beneficial owner of 55% of the issued share capital of
Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”) as well as the entire issued share
capital of Network Victory Limited. As such, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interested in the 2,497,297,019 shares and 227,834,000 shares held by Plenty Gold

and Network Victory Limited in the Company, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited (“Trustee Co”) is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the long position in 28,700,002 shares and the short
position in 27,150,002 shares held by Trustee Co.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interested in the 141,290,000 shares, 161,687,000 shares, 56,590,000 shares
and 99,220,000 shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 3,071,728,021 shares, Dr. Che Fengsheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 141,290,000 shares through

both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be
interested in the 2,754,231,021 shares, 117,900,000 shares, 56,590,000 shares
and 99,220,000 shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 3,071,728,021 shares, Dr. Guo Weicheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 117,900,000 shares through

both the nature of settlor of a trust and other interest.

Mr. Meng Xianhui is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Smart
Top Overseas Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 56,590,000 shares held

by Smart Top Overseas Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be
interested in the 2,754,231,021 shares, 161,687,000 shares, 56,590,000 shares
and 99,220,000 shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.
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(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

7E3,071,728,021 B - B0 4 A3 v » i 7 BE
S A A Pk B £ R LA AR VL
156,590,000 B B 43 019 45 AT BB ARL
R o

R M FE B A B Keen Mate Limited 235 E 3§
TTRANESHEA N WA 5 Keen
Mate Limited £ 199,220,000 H i 43
AR

HRIRRE 75 B MR 0155 317 Jes1s ik » iR
o FE R A 2 43 B R S THBE A - 8
MR - e SR R R A e
T A BB 2 A HE 45 19 2,754,231,021
i~ 161,687,000 % ~ 56,590,000 ix  J&
99,220,000 &t A 45 o

#£3,071,728,021 0 A9 47 48 > 3R M HE
B Bk I 5 SR AR 1
199,220,000 B AR HI6 h A BB
RS -

FRILINREERZE R B - 1
TS JMURE FRZE R RE -

o SR T A A o R

T 1
Name of
Associated EREEH
Corporation Name of Director
Plenty Gold HGTHE

Dr. Che Fengsheng
Plenty Gold FRAER

Dr. Guo Weicheng
Plenty Gold B ¢ 3 e

Mr. Meng Xianhui
Plenty Gold SR HE B

Dr. Zhang Jionglong

(ii)

e

(10)

1)

(12)

(13)

e R e

Report of Directors

Among the long position in 3,071,728,021 shares, Mr. Meng Xianhui is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 56,590,000 shares through

both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Keen Mate Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 99,220,000 shares held by

Keen Mate Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be
interested in the 2,754,231,021 shares, 161,687,000 shares, 56,590,000 shares
and 99,220,000 shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 3,071,728,021 shares, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is
interested in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 99,220,000 shares

through both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

The Letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such shares and the letter “S”

denotes the Director’s short position in such shares.

Directors’ interest in the shares of associated corporations

JRREREA 7 43 b

MR S Approximate

Nature of JBeAr % H percentage of

Interest/Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding

it dn 4,131,668 55.09%

Beneficial interest

| Eiki £ 1,892,542 25.23%

Beneficial interest

J EiLi £ 848,241 11.31%

Beneficial interest

it dn 627,549 8.37%

Beneficial interest
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PR ESCHTR A > A - ERITEAR K
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1 R AR5 e A AR R 25 B B 12 X v R 46
7 R 8y WA & A O R B A B 2 M i SR
(L R4t o 0 B M 191 - A B AR S o
BOE A < MR BOR ) - BT B TEAR IR
7 R INB RS 352 WediAr B2 8 it it 2 4t
WA BRI IR & A 7] S o fr 2
AR IR A -

HE O BB By s 05 Z B

F AT T AL E S - EEATHA R
HC B B AR T 4o T2 0 B A ) e
i or MR 6 2 B 5 DL B LI 4E T AT
(A HER] o AN ~ HPEBA R ~ SRR
&g RIS BUE % B > B A ST
ik N B RS UL S HER

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive and their associates
had any interests or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief
executive or their respective spouse or children under 18 to acquire beneficial
interests by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during
the Year. The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were not
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.
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Report of Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the following Shareholders, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5%
or more (including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company:

oea

Name
of Shareholder

Plenty Gold (HffzE 1)
Plenty Gold (Note 1)

MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. ({3 2)
MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. (Note 2)

Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia 11
Holdings (Cayman) Led. (fff3k 2)

Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia III
Holdings (Cayman) Ltd. (Note 2)

Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia I11, Inc (Hf3E2)
Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia I1I, Inc (Note 2)

Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia 111, LL.C. (Hf3E2)
Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia III, L.L.C. (Note 2)

Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia 111, LP. (ff7E 2)
Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia III, L.P. (Note 2)

MSPEA 111 Holdings Cooperatief U.A. (Htit 2)
MSPEA III Holdings Cooperatief U.A. (Note 2)

MS Holdings Incorporated ({7 2)
MS Holdings Incorporated (Note 2)

Moragan Stanley ([ff3F2)
Morgan Stanley (Note 2)

A
BRME /5 e 48 Approximate
Nature of Interest/ Total Number percentage of
Capacity of Shares Shareholding
HabaA 2,525,997,021 () (F3E3) 48.81%
2,497,297,019 % (48 2,525,997,021 (L) (Note 3)
Beneficial owner
2,497,297,019 Shares (L)
RAMERTA
28,700,002 1t (1) 27,150,002 (R A) (3 3) 0.52%
Settlor of a trust 27,150,002 (S) (Note 3)
28,700,002 Shares (L)
27,150,002 (R )
27,150,002 Shares (S)
£ 2N 271,250,000 (&) (F3E 3) 5.24%
Beneficial owner 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3)
S A 271,250,000 (B8 ) (Hf3E3) 5.04%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3)
S A 271,250,000 (B ) (Hf3E3) 5.04%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3)
LG 271,250,000 (48 ) (F3E 3) 5.24%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3)
S A 271,250,000 (B4 ) (Hf3E3) 5.04%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3)
LB 271,250,000 (48 ) (H3E3) 5.24%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3)
T A 271,250,000 (B4 ) (HfzE3) 5.24%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3) 5.24%
LB 271,250,000 (B8 ) (F3E 3) 5.24%
Interest in a controlled corporation 271,250,000 (L) (Note 3) 5.24%
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BifaE -

1)

@

(3)

Plenty Gold H % R A A& 2 7 2,497,297,019 & ik
By o HIR B H5A A8/ 7 28,700,002 BEAE 03 (4 &)
Je27,150,002 BB B (IR ) #E 45 R 2 5E N /LAY
ME— SR o G Plenty Gold W BRZEEAL
AR A1 28,700,002 % B A (47 ) K 27,150,002
IEREAY (IR R A HE 45

MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.([MSPEA Pharma
BV ) 7 MR B 49 1S 9 RN BRA R > il
MSPEA III Holdings Cooperatief U.A.([ MSPEA
111 Coopl) % & #E A ° MSPEA 1 Coop 4 # 1
o B L B A i Morgan Stanley
Private Equity Asia III Holdings (Cayman) Limited
(TMSPEA III Cayman|) % ¥ #E fi ° MSPEA III
Cayman 7 & B 2 1 5 5E 0 o7 9 28 66 4 A R
/AW > H Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia III,
L.P.(TMSPEA IIL) (¢ BEAR £ PP AR 35 2 ) A 2
{934 ) ] o MSPEA 1A %4 A% A\ & Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia III, L.L.C. ([ MSPEA III
GPJ) - ifi MSPEA 111 GP Y & #E i B 5 Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia III, Inc.([ MSPEA III
Inc.]) (% 38 B %5 %2 55 % B & 31 1 B9 £ 6
ffl) » H1 Ms Holdings Incorporated (—JiTH Morgan
Stanley 2 G HEA M4 7)) & EHEA © MSPEA 111
Coop > MSPEA III Cayman > MSPEA III * MSPEA
IIT GP MSPEA III Inc. * MS Holdings Incorporated
i Morgan Stanley % H # #i /3 A MSPEA Pharma
BV FFA B T A A

FHRTLIRRIBRR 2SR > 7R s)
RIARRBRZF R HIRE -

BREXHEEN R-F—=F+"A
=B AL R R IR RO BRI 336
Wriafr B 2 B MRC Bk > BT fr Ho At A £ 72
A ) A7 A B B o A AR B I
Wbl 336 BRac sk 2 HE dn SR A -

Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Plenty Gold directly holds 2,497,297,019 shares in the Company. It is also the sole
shareholder of Trustee Co which has interest in 28,700,002 (L) shares and short position
in 27,150,002 (S) shares in the Company. Accordingly, Plenty Gold is deemed to be have
interest in the 28,700,002 (L) shares and short position in the 27,150,002 (S) shares held by

Trustee Co.

MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. (“MSPEA Pharma BV") is a private limited liability
company established under Dutch law which is wholly-owned by MSPEA III Holdings
Cooperatief U.A. (“MSPEA III Coop”). MSPEA III Coop is a cooperative company
established under Dutch law and is wholly-owned by Morgan Stanley Private Equity
Asia I1I Holdings (Cayman) Limited (“MSPEA III Cayman”). MSPEA III Cayman is
an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and is
controlled by Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia III, L.P. (“MSPEA III"), a fund managed
by the private equity arm of Morgan Stanley. The general partner of MSPEA III is Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia III, L.L.C. (“MSPEA III GP”), the managing member of which
is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia III, Inc. (“MSPEA III Inc.”) an investment advisor
registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, which is wholly owned by
MS Holdings Incorporated, a wholly owned company of Morgan Stanley. Each of MSPEA
III Coop, MSPEA TII Cayman, MSPEA III, MSPEA III GP, MSPEA III Inc., MS Holdings
Incorporated and Morgan Stanley is deemed to be interested in the shares held by MSPEA
Pharma BV.

The letter “L” denotes the Shareholder’s long position in such shares and the letter “S”

denotes the Shareholder’s short position in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an

interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
recorded under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2013.
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Report of Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to
59 of this Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital were held by members of the public as at the date of this report as

required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be proposed at the 2014 AGM to re-appoint

PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR AGM

The 2014 AGM will be held on 30 May 2014. The register of members of
the Company will be closed from 9 June 2014 to 13 June 2014 (both dates
inclusive). In order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 pm on 6 June 2014.

VY B A I AR AT R 2 2013 4 JiE #i %

75



76

=R

Report of Directors

5455 9h BHLIBE SR8 el DA 52 W3R
191 B 8 ¥ S s B 4 4L e

AANFEMR ZF-TWENANEZZF—TE
AHT=H(BEERW A )G & 5oR S
Al o A B CROR S OB AT AL > B
AR SO R M BA B > R & — T 4R
ANAZN BRI = A0 S A N R
M IBCA 8 5 B RE ) i AR R B R A IR A A
stk 2 7 i 2 5 OK A R 183 SRR A L 228 -
A B B AL B AT 2R JRORAE — & — U R
AEREMET IEE > MR -F—HEAR
ZHHRET F-NEANA =R ASEL
7 A A BOR

REHE A
HHE LN
BT

—F—-NE=A+H

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
ENTITLEMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND AND BONUS
ISSUE OF SHARES

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 9 June 2014 to 13
June 2014 (both dates inclusive). In order to qualify for the final dividend and
Bonus Issue), all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on 6 June 2014. The
final dividend and bonus issue of shares is subject to the approval of shareholders
at the 2014 AGM, will be payable on 20 June 2014 to shareholders whose

names are shown on the register of members of the Company on 13 June 2014.

By Order of the Board
Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

10 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BRERAKE

To the shareholders of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 204, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’® RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10 March, 2014
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B e E A AR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

R+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
Bt “E=ZE R
Note 2013 2012
AR AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
W Assets
FEIR B Non-current assets
YIZE ~ B R Property, plant and equipment 6 1,441,677 924,052
&Y Investment properties 7 34,437 30,894
ITE B Intangible assets 8 2,880,622 3,735,030
- b fif A Land use rights 9 337,998 165,637
B 5 A RE SR Trade and other receivables 16 — 154,192
i RE £ VAR R R Investment accounted for
using the equity method 12 34,069 40,962
TEAE P A5 B E Deferred income tax assets 23 119,939 265,176
oA IE i) Other non-current assets 14 — 122,521
4,848,742 5,438,464
MBI Current assets
& Inventories 15 101,283 91,472
Z 5 I H A RE N R Trade and other receivables 16 1,398,041 769,120
] it o A Available-for-sale financial assets 13 776,074 717,921
BIA5 s M A = (8 1 7 A7 Term deposits with initial term of
over three months 18 233,651 898,560
i BB EY) Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,508,076 1,543,907
4,017,125 4,020,980
FRfEth & 2 R B AL G Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale 36 1,145,781 —
5,162,906 4,020,980
e E Total assets 10,011,648 9,459,444
T T BB Equity and liabilities
AR N HEASHE 2R Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
[iF&N Share capital 19 44,419 44,419
B - Share premium 19 5,573,951 5,573,951
HoAth ot Other reserves 20 89,329 65,256
PRE & Retained earnings
— JRURAHA TS — Proposed final dividends 32 108,824 300,151
—HAt — Others 2,065,782 1,100,551
7,882,305 7,084,328
Fed e hE Non-controlling interests 115,485 102,927
ARERS Total equity 7,997,790 7,187,255
DU B A R A R AW 2013 4 JE it
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aHEEAMRR
Consolidated Balance Sheet

mt—H=1+—H
As at 31 December
i =R —F—E
Note 2013 2012

ARHTFE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

=L Liabilities

B £ 4% Non-current liabilities

HRIE P 158 AR Deferred income tax liabilities 23 140,862 208,532

FoAh JE B £ ik Other non-current liabilities 21 63,227 207,407

B8 Borrowings 24 5,880 5,880
209,969 421,819

MBI Current liabilities

E 5 B HoAREAT IRk Trade and other payables 22 1,253,107 867,368

A Borrowings 24 180,800 767,234

R HA ir 1555 & 15 Current income tax liabilities 129,770 215,768

1,563,677 1,850,370

Liabilities of disposal group classified
TRt & 2 fr ik B A6 as held for sale 36 240,212 —

1,803,889 1,850,370

MER Total liabilities 2,013,858 2,272,189
T T B AR AR Total equity and liabilities 10,011,648 9,459,444
TG A Net current assets 3,359,017 2,170,610
BEERRE A E Total assets less current liabilities 8,207,759 7,609,074

56 89 2 204 B MY B 5 25 MU AE A F A B HR R 9 A1 The notes on pages 89 to 204 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

B AY o statements.

H79E 204 HRMBHREC R - F—WE=A The financial statements on pages 79 to 204 were approved by the Board of

T H&EEFGHE LB AT A EACEEE - Directors on 10 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.
T A
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
BH BH
Director Director
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HEAAR

Balance Sheet
R+ZHA=+—H
As at 31 December
Bt “EREgE CE-C4F
Note 2013 2012
AR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B ASSETS
IR & Non-current assets
ERN S Property, plant and equipment 6 10
RIHE A R E Investments in subsidiaries 11 208,617 208,617
208,623 208,627
TG Current assets
B 5y B HoAt YU R 3k Trade and other receivables 16 5,935,852 5,634,311
W B BB R =18 H 2 A Term deposits with initial term
of over three months 18 70,000 710,000
e KBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 17 37,174 19,527
6,043,026 6,363,838
MK Total assets 6,251,649 6,572,465
R EQUITY
JeAs Share capital 19 44,419 44,419
% 3 A Share premium 19 5,573,951 5,573,951
HoAh s Other reserve 20 14,357 7,678
B 2 A1 Retain earnings
— BEUR A SR I J 2 — Proposed final and special dividends 32 108,824 300,151
— HAts — Others 458,560 139,789
ARERS Total equity 6,200,111 6,065,988

ILE: e F 323 & JUEN Y]

2013 4 J§ &

81



HEARRE
Balance Sheet

mt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
e S®-=F SFf
Note 2013 2012
ANRHEFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

A LIABILITIES

B A AL Current liabilities

B 5 B H A e T HiR K Trade and other payables 22 51,538 11,631
[H4 Borrowings 24 — 494,846
e Total liabilities 51,538 506,477
HE 2 K B A Total equity and liabilities 6,251,649 6,572,465
TR Net current assets 5,991,488 5,857,361
AR W B £ R Total assets less current liabilities 6,200,111 6,065,988

55 89 2 204 BT M B 5 £ 55 B 5 i 2% 1 4H BB The notes on pages 89 to 204 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Iy o
79 F 204 AN M H MK DR —FE—E=A The financial statements on pages 79 to 204 were approved by the Board of
TH&RERHGMUER B A LRERESE - Directors on 10 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

BT P A

Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
#F #F

Director Director
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CLIENTLIEFS

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRETZA=Z+—HIL4EE
Year ended 31 December

B3k “FEF R4
Note 2013 2012
AR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue 25 4,732,700 3,042,531
B A Cost of sales 26 (1,032,986) (753,116)
EA Gross profit 3,699,714 2,289,415
HAthlg A Other income 25 19,720 5,825
HoAh s — 55 Other gains — net 25 399,006 271,406
7 8 A Distribution costs 26 (2,329,531)  (1,312,251)
TTHU 32 Administrative expenses 26 (326,827) (206,640)
S glienll Operating profit 1,462,082 1,047,755
I Finance income 29 120,887 131,456
RS BH 2 Finance expenses 29 (8,625) (7,323)
IR — 35 Finance income — net 112,262 124,133
A4 05 R A5 A RO Share of loss of investment accounted for
4% 4 1R using the equity method 12 (6,830) (6,347)
T I A W REE 2 1 s 4R Loss on dilution of interest in associate 12 (63) —
W B 458 1 ¥4 ) Profit before income tax 1,567,451 1,165,541
REYN Income tax expense 30 (257,368) (243,999)
A i A1) Profit for the year 1,310,083 921,542
DL AL S A - Profit attributable to:
VN/NEIE: ZEDN Owners of the Company 1,303,012 904,402
JEHE I Non-controlling interests 7,071 17,140
1,310,083 921,542
O 5 I A 2013 4 JE # % 83



CRIENTLIE s

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRETZAZ+—HIL4EE
Year ended 31 December
Wi e —2fF
Note 2013 2012

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

SENARNTIBER NIEAG R AN Earnings per share attributable to owners

(DA N BB 7)) of the Company during the year

(expressed in RMB cents per share)
T FCHE A I i 252 Basic and diluted earnings per share 31 25.18 17.48
A B ¥R Profit for the year 1,310,083 921,542
R YNE Other comprehensive income:
] F R E 15 7 19 Irems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
o B T A o A 4 Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 13 (1,021) (1,635)
]t 4 i A (1 A Change in value of available-for-sale

financial assets 13 2,074 1,021
G YN L Total comprehensive income for the year 1,311,136 920,928
VLR AN A Attributable to:
/NG ZSUN Owners of the Company 1,304,065 903,788
Fe R 45 Non-controlling interests 7,071 17,140
A 2 A B Total comprehensive income for the year 1,311,136 920,928

5689 & 204 EL ¥ B ¥ £y 55 A DF BA B R R 09 41 The notes on pages 89 to 204 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

JEBAY o statements.
BE+_A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
S =4S T T4E
2013 2012
ANREFT ANRETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
i Dividends 32 108,824 460,577
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR TR MEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
ERadie il
Bk R HeREG REEAM Non- bl 4]
i3 Share Share Other Retained b controlling Total
Note capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
ABETL  ARETL ARETT ARETZ ARKETL ARETL ARKTL
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i St Rl s P35 Balance as at | January 2012 44419 557391 153485 LI73679 6945534 48409 6,993,943
ELTTIUN Comprehensive income
FEERA Profic for the year = = — 904,402 904,402 17,140 921,542
ENLETTION Other comprehensive income
HEM i ESHEE Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 13 - — (1,635) — (1,635) — (1,635)
AT f B Y Change in value of available-for-sale
financial assets 13 - - 1,021 - 1,021 — 1,021
J AT A LS » MBI Total other comprehensive income, net of tax - - (614) - (614) i (614)
ELLoN ki Total comprehensive income = = (614) 904,402 903,788 17,140 920,928
AR R AR A ) Total contribution by and distributions

WA NG ST to owners of the Company

SHRAH recognised directly in equity
18 5 M 32 Bt 1 - Employees share award scheme:

—{E B IR E(E — value of employee service 28 s — 7,678 — 7,678 - 7,678
i3 Dividends 3 - i — (662409 (662409) — (662409
EREhEEE RS Transfer to PRC statuary resetve fund 20 — i 15,475 (15,475) - - -
AR A A Total contributions by and distributions

AR to owners of the Company — — 23,153 (677,879) (654,726) — (654,726)
— AL WA AR Non-controlling interests atising on

MR a newly established subsidiary - - - - - 4310 4310
R RERER T —% Changes in ownership interests in a

W A R i f 45 5 ) subsidiary without change of control 35 — — (110,268) = (110,268) 33,068 (77,200)
AR B AT Deregistration of a subsidiary - - (500) 500 - - -
SR A2 5 Total transaction with owners - - (87,615 677379 (764999) 37378 (727616)
REF—THEFZA=T—H%# Balance as at 31 December 2012 4419 5573951 65256 1400702 7,084328 102,927 7,187,255

VY B A AR AR 2

2013 4 J§ &

85



B B 2 4 ) %

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A TIHEH MER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FEE L
BA Rt bR REEA Non- At
iz Share Share Other Retained #3t controlling Total
Note capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity

ARKTZ  ARWTE  AEKTZ  ARETZ ARKFE  ARETZ  ARKETZ
RMB'000  RMB'00)  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ETTL/ON Comprehensive income
A Profit for the year = = 1303012 1,303,012 7071 1310083
LNLETTLION Other comprehensive income
HEM i E LG E Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 13 - — (1,021) — (1,021) — (1,021)
it ESHEEEEED Change in value of available-for-sale

financial assets 13 — - 2,074 — 2,074 — 2,074
H2ERASH - MEHE Total other comprehensive income, net of tax — — 1,053 — 1,053 — 1,053
RTRABH Total comprehensive income — - 1053 1303012 1304065 7071 131L,136
HER R R A AR Total contribution by and distributions

HH NI T to owners of the Company

SHRAH recognised directly in equity
{7 B (3 st 31 - Employees share award scheme:

— B IR (B ~ value of employee service 28 - - 16,589 - 16,589 - 16,589
1453 Dividends 32 — - — (522,677) (522,677) - (522,677)
HEINRLERES Transfer to PRC statuary reserve fund 20 - — 6,431 (6,431) - — —
R T BT A VE S Total contributions by and distributions

SHRAH to owners of the Company — — 23,020 (529,108)  (506,088) - (506,088)
R IR 7 E A Non-controlling interests atising on

FE IR 5 newly established subsidiaries - — - — - 5,487 5,487
LS EINULTE Total transaction with owners = = 23020 (529,108 (506,088) 5487 (500,601)
REZ—ZH+ZA=1—H## Balance as at 31 December 2013 4419 5573951 89329 2,174,606 7,882,305 115485 7,997,790

55 89 & 204 EL ¥ Bt ¥ £y 055 A OF BA B R R 09 4L The notes on pages 89 to 204 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

R - statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BETAZT—HIREE
Year ended 31 December

R = =L
Note 2013 2012
ARHEFLE  AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFEHBSRE Cash flows from operating activities
BRSNS Cash generated from operations 33 1,800,618 1,283,628
O BT e B Income tax paid (289,985) (237,564)
R E LN B & T Net cash generated from operating activities 1,510,633 1,046,064
S B Bl Cash flows from investing activities
A 4 R i PR 2 1 A 5 Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries
in prior years 22 (20,000) (1,180,000)
Wi i — Z I N Acquisition of an associate 12 — (47,309)
S B — 5% O J ) A R S MRE £ Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary — (77,200)
Proceeds from disposal of property,
HEME - RBUF KA S A plant and equipment 33(a) 1,488 4,098
RARERUSIA i Fﬁﬁ'ﬁ*—)‘( Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 33(b) 1,415 22,787
B/ (I PIE RMER=MHA  Decrease/(Increase) of term deposits
14 72 A7 2K with initial term of over three months 18 664,909 (898,560)
i T A o e Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets 13 (774,000) (716,900)
R 2 S 5 A 7 A5 R Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity
financial assets — 36,393
WEE I3 - BB K fh Purchase of property, plant and equipment (846,125) (529,229)
0 B T Purchase of intangible assets (234,498) (185,420)
i ol P Acquisition of land use rights 9, 14, 22 (87,955) (80,655)
Ji L {7 P A O Prepayment for acquisition of land use rights (24,853)
H & Tk F)T 3 H Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets 716,900 788,919
B AR Interest received 87,349 123,838
P95 B) i ) B4 Net cash used in investing activities (490,517)  (2,764,091)

ILE: e F 323 & JUEN Y]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BETA=ZT—HIREE
Year ended 31 December

R O = =
Note 2013 2012
ANRHEFL  AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT B) Bl Cash flows from financing activities
T B A FOR Repayment of borrowings (704,148) i
ER=VREE O Proceeds from borrowings 180,800 767,234
JCAL A BB 2 R 7 A Y Non-controlling interests arising
PR 4R on establishing new subsidiaries 5,487 4,310
AT Dividends paid 32 (522,677) (662,404)
B AT ALE Interest paid (8,058) (360)
WEEE (TH), BEAMB4EFH  Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities (1,048,596) 108,780
B4 KB &S E s F 3 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (28,480)  (1,609,247)
ERBL A KBS EY) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,543,907 3,153,154
ERBERBEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 1,515,427 1,543,907

589 & 204 H MM 2E A & A P I s F H 40 The notes on pages 89 to 204 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

TRy o statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an

exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are research
and development, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Plenty Gold
Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands on 10 March
2004.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, P.O. Box HM 1022, Hamilton HM DX, Bermuda.
The address of the principal place of business of the Group is 21 Floor,
Building 2, Zhubang 2000, West Balizhuang, Chaoyang District, Beijing
10025, PRC.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 28 October 2010.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in units of
Renminbi (“RMB”) thousand Yuan, unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 10 March 2014.

ILE: e F 323 & JUEN Y] 2013 4 JE i
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. BEEHBORBR

A S S5 DR BR ) B 2wt BOR RO
T3 BRAAFBMS  FEBORTE 2
) B AE BE R B RO -

2.1

A BB A I B R T AR R
U 5 e o 9 ) T I i o o o
SULJ) B o B b B R 1 R
FRA B R > EAMG
EMERE (& A-FERR) g -

5 B I R B K o A I A
WM A T EEN G
JNJE A L 7E 1B FF A 56 [ 1Y i L
FARFE P AT B o W R R TR
I B 48 A e 1 AR G 0 I
I KA ) e e
B o 4 25 o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, which are

carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates
and judgements are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in Note 4.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2013, are currently relevant and have no material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

o Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement
presentation’ regarding other comprehensive income.
The main change resulting from these amendments
is a requirement for entities to group items presented
in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or

loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments).

. IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds
on existing principles by identifying the concept
of control as the determining factor in whether an
entity should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance to assist in
the determination of control where this is difficult to

assess.

. IAS 28 (Revised) ‘Associates and joint ventures’
includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as
associates, to be equity accounted following the issue
of IFRS 11.

ILE: e F 323 & JUEN Y] 2013 4 JE i
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’
includes the disclosure requirements for all forms
of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, structured entities and other

off balance sheet vehicles.

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement’, aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRSs. The requirements, which are
largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use
is already required or permitted by other standards
within IFRSs.

Annual improvement 2012 — Amendment to IFRS
13, ‘Fair value measurement’. This amendment is a
clarification that there is no change in measurement
requirements for short-term receivables and payable

when the effect of not discounting is immacterial.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the
Group

A number of new standards and amendments to standards
and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2014, and have not been applied in preparing

these consolidated financial statements.

o IAS 32 (Amendment) ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation’ on asset and liability offsetting is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

. Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 on
‘Consolidation for investment entities’ is effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

o IAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets’ on
recoverable amount disclosures is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

. IAS 39 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ - novation of
derivatives is effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2014
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the

Group

IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Amendment to IAS 19 regarding defined benefit
plans is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014

Annual improvements 2012 is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Annual improvements 2013 is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

Management does not anticipate that the application of the

new standards and amendments will result in a material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2. TLHEEFHEORBE &) 2.

2.2 KHEBAFHE

2.2.1 & 2.2.1 Consolidation

W Jag 2 1 )% S A
1l AR B B (A A A
) o HALEEAARER
THZHEARER 2
52 10 42 1 L e S RE R > 3
B E R R
25 R o A% A T B 3
HHA I o A R
R EALE A G
/AR o BEFJE 2 ] 7 12 i B
b2 B IE A AN o

@  EHE

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the

ability to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

7K 55 [H 1 A I TR A The Group applies the acquisition method to
WA G mtik account for business combinations. The consideration
A /AN & ) transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fOAG B A 4 ] e fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
B~ RO O i incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
WA Nz B8 R the equity interests issued by the Group. The

JBERE ) 23 - H o BT i
e 1 AU 8 B 4 AR AC

consideration transferred includes the fair value of

any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

18 % Pk A AT T consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
El AN ATE - acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
TEET A P o iy i B assumed in a business combination are measured
w] i Fl B E DA R BT initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
ARIEN B E KR A The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
18 125 DAL ik i the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
HEIH AT EHFHE - either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
A A [ L 8 I )i proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
FEME 5N T (B B 4% JE acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

2 T HEE 4 JRE A 5 i

i A A T

MR LG 5T

I O 1A 1 T

o

Fie R A R E A Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

IRF S8 o
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Conrinued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income (Note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

®)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s

accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiaries in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise
the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes

goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified

to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of profit/(loss) of investment accounted for using equity method’ in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

2.3

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are

recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the

board of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s

functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and

qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘finance (expenses)/ income — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of

comprehensive income within ‘other gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the

dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly factories and
offices. Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and

equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they

are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Buildings 10 — 35 years
Production and

electronic equipment 3 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 — 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents properties and plant under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction
and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until the relevant assets are completed and put into operational

use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other

gains — net’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, comprising office buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and that is

not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using
a straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over
the estimated useful lives of 20 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision
are included in the statement of comprehensive income when the

changes arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-

controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (‘CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense

and is not subsequently reversed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)  Research and development

(i)

(if)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with
the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
products) is capitalised under the category of
“product development in progress” if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible,
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete the development, and the cost can be
reliably measured. Upon the commencement of the
commercial production of a product, the expenditure
on development activities is transferred to “deferred
development costs” and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of its expected benefit. Research
and development costs comprise costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities
or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such

activities.

Deferred development costs that are acquired by
the Group are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The value in use model is used for the impairment

assessment by the management of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Research and development (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure on development activities
after its purchase or its completion is recognised as
an expense when it is incurred unless it is probable
that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate
future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standard of performance and this expenditure
can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If
these conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure

is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

Amortisation of deferred development costs is charged
to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 5

to 15 years.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical

cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination are

recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks

have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks

over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)
(d) Computer systems

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

(e)  Contractual customer relationships

The contractual customer relationships have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method

over the expected life of 5 years.

The amortisation period and amortisation method of
intangible assets other than goodwill are reviewed at least
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when

the changes arise.

Land use rights

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land. It is stated at cost and charged to the
statement of comprehensive income over the remaining period of

the lease on a straight-line basis, net of any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.11

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.

Disposal group held-for-sale

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

Financial assets
2.12.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.
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BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.12.1 Classification (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’
and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.15 and 2.16).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it

within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.12.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as ‘change in value of available-for-

sale financial assets’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan or investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an

instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the
case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost

of finished goods and work in progress comprises research and

development costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs

and related production overheads (based on normal operating

capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as

current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with

original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or awards are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associate. Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal

of the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which

the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in the retirement insurance and
medical insurance scheme organised by the local social
security bureau pursuant to the relevant provisions. The
Group is required to make monthly contribution in respect
of the above insurance scheme to the local social security
bureau based on the monthly salaries of its employees. The
Group has no further liabilities other than the above defined
contribution. The Group's contributions under the scheme
are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are

discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a

past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Employee leaves entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

2.22 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share based payment transaction

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(awards) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the awards is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards

granted:

. including any market performance conditions (for

example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);

and

J including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

(for example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of awards that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the

specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share based payment transaction
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service

commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of awards that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to

equity.

share-based payment transaction among group entities

The grant by the Company of awards over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a

corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value

where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received

and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over

the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are

intended to compensate.
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2. FEGGHEORBEE @) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 WA HERR

2.24 Revenue recognition
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of

each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of pharmaceutical
products in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered products
to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until
the products have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective

evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b)  Rendering of services

The Group provides processing service for subcontracting
manufacturing and packaging services to third parties.

Service income is recognised when the service is rendered.

(c) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the

original effective interest rate.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by

the Company’s shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including currency risk, price risk, cash flow interest

rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is RMB. All of the revenues of the Group
are derived from operations in the PRC. The financial
instruments of the Group are mainly denominated
in RMB. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The main foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group were certain cash
and cash equivalents (Note 17), borrowings (Note
24), other receivables and other payables which were
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”),
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD") and Singapore Dollars
(“SGD”). In the opinion of the executive directors of
the board of the Company, the Group does not have

significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedge policy.

As at 31 December 2013, if the currency had
weakened/strengthened by 3% (2012: 3%) against
USD with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
have been approximately RMB4,432,000 (2012:
RMB1,154,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, borrowings,

other receivables and other payables.

As at 31 December 2013, if the currency had
weakened/strengthened by 3% (2012: 3%) against
HKD with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
have been approximately RMB33,000 higher/lower
(2012: RMB19,250,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of HKD-denominated cash and cash equivalents,

borrowings and other payables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, if the currency had
weakened/strengthened by 3% (2012: 3%) against
SGD with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
would have been approximately RMB15,000 (2012:
RMB16,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of SGD-

denominated cash and cash equivalents.

(if)  Price risk

The Group is not exposed to any significant equity

market risk, nor exposed to any commodity price risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The interest-bearing assets of the Group mainly
include the available-for sale financial assets, cash
and cash equivalents and term deposits with initial
term of over three months, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 13, 17 and 18.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in Note 24. All
the borrowings issued at variable rates expose the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2013, if interest rate on borrowings
has been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all
other variables held Constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been RMB779,000 (2012:
RMB3,607,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate

borrowing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other

receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed with
state-owned financial institutions in the PRC and high-
quality international financial institutions outside the PRC.
There was no recent history of default of cash equivalents

and bank deposits in relation to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to
ensure that certain cash advance has been received upon
the agreement of the related sales orders with customers.
For those with credit period granted, the credit quality of
the counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. It also
undertakes certain monitoring procedures to ensure that
proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses credit
risks and estimates the recoverability of groups of trade
receivables bearing similar credit risk based on historical

data and cash collection history.

Available-for-sale financial assets are short-term investments
placed with state-owned financial institutions in the PRC
and high-quality international financial institutions outside
the PRC. There was no recent history of default and the
executive directors of the board of the Company are of the

opinion that the credit risk related to the investment is low.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the
debtors is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, relationship with the Group, credit history and
other factors. Management will also regularly review the
recoverability of these other receivables and follow up the
disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive directors

of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the

default by counterparties is low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit

risk.

(¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining
sufficient cash. The Group maintains sufficient cash balances

to provide flexibility in meeting its day to day funding

requirements.

The Group had net current assets of RMB3,359,017,000
which included cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,508,076,000 and term deposits with initial term of
over three months of RMB233,651,000 as at 31 December
2013. The executive directors of the board of the Company

are of the opinion that the Group maintains an adequate

liquidity reserve.
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1
(c)

A0 5 B3 R RS S AR
SHEARNAEBA RS

Bro RN S#AE
AR BRI BB B - i

NEER Z SR NN /S
12 A R EHI R 5 R AR

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company's

financial liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period

at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months

equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is

not significant.

HIRTHAS B -
18R 1E24EH 2ESHEN
Less than Between Between
lyear 1and2years 2and 5 years
ANBETE ARWTIT ARKTIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB 000
EH Group
NF =4 At 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—H
B 5 T Fopth REAF R AR Trade and other payables 602,028 — —
FHEHEZ FREHZ Liabilities of disposal group
AfE classified as held for sale 109,204 — —
ERss Borrowings 181,888 5,916 —
e it 3 At 31 December 2012
+ZH=Z+—H
Z 5 B H A EAT R K Trade and other payables 727,829 — _—
&4 Borrowings 774,400 375 5,916
A H] Company
e X S At 31 December 2013
+ZH=Z+—H
B 5 B Ho A e AT Bk Trade and other payables 51,538 — —
R4
+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2012
B 5 o Fopth A R K Trade and other payables 11,631 — —
=Rz Borrowings 498,358 — —
IR e 9 AR A 2013 4 Jif # % 131
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3%

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group has sufficient cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2013 and 2012. The executive directors of the board
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group does not have

significant capital risk.

mrt+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
S A TR AE
2013 2012

ARWHTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 1,508,076 1,543,907
Less: Borrowings (Note 24) (186,680) (773,114)

1,321,396 770,793

3.3 AFfEAE
TR DA (B AFEARZ
SR LR Z T o RFEFFE W
e

o AR E R SR S B T
ZRKETAREIAE R —5R) -

o HESARZWHZME
A% ) BT (B4 5 4 5 5
HIBEZH RS
Pridife) (58 —#%) -

o EESAMZIIFERAE
BT 35 B (B A Al B 2
)2 2B(E=M) -

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as

follows:

U Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

U Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

U Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

3).
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that

are measured at fair value at 31 December 2013.

Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 13)

EA

Level 2
—Gi—=hE [EEE— kD
2013 2012
AR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
776,074 717,921

Sl R A 0 5 i 35 R Y LY
WOER S ES R - AR
E$3 T i B2 Y T HE 75 T B
T B - Sl 2 R e
BAGEE o i TR Z A TEBTEBTE
BRZYATBEE > AR TARA
B

AP 4G e Al TR 2 B (50l
£

o MR TR B E R AL 5
HAH -

o FEEH A FEEER B
ZLUC AR i AR B A LR
Heng 2 HiE -

o EBBNEALZ AT
WA R R R - B
(B (LB B -

o A IR B &R R
YA ) T3 P E R T 4
TRZATE

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an

active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These

valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market

data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity

specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar

instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on

observable yield curves.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to

present value.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial

instruments.

ILE: e F 323 & JUEN Y] 2013 4 JE i

133



134

B 785 it o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

R At KA i

A R A A R BB o Y
Bl A R o 1R D B B PR A
AR o AR KA & E BT 6 4 BUAE B A
B B A R (AR o) R R R R £
Al BB R o

A BN B A AG R (B RO > I
BERAEERULEMER > G
TEA B U0 B 2 S R A S A 1 5 BT
.

() RSB B AWM A AT
P il P 2
7455 SR A D A
7 R s T A e
B A TD R A
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)

Impairment of deferred development costs and product
development in progress

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash
flows of each pharmaceutical patent or licence in capitalisation of
development costs. These estimates are based on projected product

lifecycles experienced in the pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations
and competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will recognise impairment loss on the capitalised development
costs when future cash flows are less than expectation and fall

below the amount of related development costs.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
the Group would have recognised no impairment loss on the

development costs (2012: nil).
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For the year end 31 December 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Goodwill impairment test

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
indication that the goodwill may be impaired in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-

use calculations.

The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2013 were
RMB2,226,936,000 (2012: RMB2,707,435,000). Details of the
estimates used to calculate the recoverable amounts are disclosed in
Note 8.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
Group would have recognised no impairment loss on the goodwill
(2012: nil).

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2013 and
2012, the Group would have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill (2012: nil).

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment

The estimate of useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment was made by the management with reference to
the established industry practices, technical assessments made on
the durability of the assets, as well as the historical magnitude and
trend of repair and maintenance expenses incurred by the Group.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in responses to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual value are less than those previously estimated or
it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic

assets that have been abandoned.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognised when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome
of their actual utilisation may be different. Details of the deferred

taxation are disclosed in Note 23.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the board of the Company. The executive directors of the
board of the Company reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has determined

the operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors of the board of the Company considers the
business from product perspective. The Group is engaged in only one
business segment, the research and development, manufacturing and
sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2013, none of the customers of the Group from whom the

revenue amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2012: None).
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Yok ~ B Bt — A4 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE
GROUP
EER
SR
Production
and  HARM Kl fRLE
#5  electronic Office Motor  Construction it
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

ARBTE ARKTT ARKTT ARKTT ARETT ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

REZ-ZHE—f-H At 1 January 2012
A Cost BIALS 131,653 11,174 19432 064,998 564,672
2tk Accumulated depreciation 2,153 (69,771) (5,33) (7,957) — (45414
JRI Net book amount 265,262 71,882 5,641 11475 64998 419,258
RE-Z-2H1CH
Zt—HIAEE Year ended 31 December 2012

IR Opening net book amount 265,262 71,882 5,641 11475 64,998 419258
BRI (k) Transfer to investment properties (Note 7) (24,869) - - — (24,869)
A Additions 17,566 22,268 2,537 1239 488483 532,093
BHAHE Reclassification 51,920 1,246 - - (53,166) -
hE Disposals - (3,647) 79 (372) - (4,098)
BROMELEZ RS Transfer from disposal group classified

as held for sale 24,091 16,169 248 953 — 41 457
R Depreciation charge (19,407) (15,454) (2,039) (2,889) — (39,789)
R Closing net book amount 314,563 92,460 6,308 10406 500315 924,052
RZZ—"H+ZH=F—H  At31 December 2012
%S Cost 413493 180,674 14,43 20,120 500315 1,128,845
ZHTE Accumulated depreciation (98,930) (88,214) (7,9%9) 9,714) - (204,793)
e Net book amount 314,563 92,460 6,308 10406 500315 924,052
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6.

WX B RRfi—A%EM 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE

(45) GROUP (Continued)
EaER
R
Production
and  HAGM KE  FRIR
HE  electronic Office Motor Construction et
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ANBWTL ARWTFT ARWTT ARETZ AREFT AREFL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
BE_F—=k
FZAEF—HIEEE Year ended 31 December 2013
ERIRMHE Opening net book amount 314,563 92,460 6,308 10,406 500315 924,052
BREHENE () Transfer to investment properties (Note 7) (5,182) — — — — (5,182)
RE Additions 818 15,746 2421 250  83L,188 852,763
e Disposals — (965) (15) (508) = (1,488)
HEERHENERES Transfer to disposal group classified
(f5E 36) as held for sale (Note 36) 0318)  (17,637) (1,740) 97 (45,751)  (285,743)
FERS Depreciation charge 20391) (17,463 (2,236) (2,635) — (42,725)
AR Closing net book amount 269,490 72,141 4,738 9,556 1,085,752 1,441,677
PW_F—==#+"H=+—H  At31 December 2013
Rk Cost 376373 162,512 14358 21,702 1,085,752 1,660,697
23t Accumulated depreciation (100,883)  (90,371) (0,6200  (12,146) — (219,020
R 70 Net book amount 269,490 72,141 4,738 9,556 1,085,752 1441677
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - THE
GROUP (Continued)

Depreciation expense of the Group was included in the following

categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

BE+ - H=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
S =4S TR TAE

2013 2012

ARWHTE  ARKTL
RMB’000  RMB’000

e A Cost of sales 14,188 11,221
I3 SH A Distribution costs 147 69
iyl ba Administrative expenses 28,390 28,499

42,725 39,789

R-E-=ZF+"A=+—HHEZL
7 3 BELAE A v e T ) R

BE-Z-=HF+ZA=1+—H  KH
T H £ A K % 68,065,00070 (=% — =
AF 0 KR 71,905,000 70 ) 4 300 06
RS - ANFEFGUTERR S K
B W53 KA B S S

Construction work in progress as at 31 December 2013 mainly comprises

new pharmaceutical manufacturing plant being constructed in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2013, buildings with net book values of
approximately RMB68,065,000 (2012: RMB71,905,000) have no
property title certificates. The executive directors of the board of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is lawfully and validly

entitled to occupy or use these properties.
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7. BEWE-AEH

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - THE GROUP

=F =g —F-_iF
2013 2012
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
T BF
Buildings Buildings
A At Cost
it —H— B4 R Opening balance at 1 January 30,894 6,834
WS Y3~ R R (3T 6) Transfer from property, plant and equipment
(Note 6) 5,182 24,869
E Depreciation (1,639) (809)
P H=1—HWERLER Closing balance at 31 December 34,437 30,894
RT+ZA=1+—H At 31 December
A Cost 43,320 38,138
2t Accumulated depreciation (8,883) (7,244)
IS TTRE Net book amount 34,437 30,894

A S T AR 0 468 2 L 5 0 B AL 4 Wi A £
A Y SEE B 1 A B AR R IR
RBUEYIE o BEWEALR PR -

AEHBRE - F-=F+_A=+—0
ZEREMFEZ NTELHNREE 66,486,000
To(ZF— 4 0 AR #58,096,000 70)
JIRAAFEREGNITERESZEB LA
G A (L R A 1T 9 £ 8 B S 4 3
W E YR E o

(a) TAARZEREE B A B

The Group's property interest held under operating leases for the purpose

of earning rentals is measured using the cost model and accounted for as

investment property. The investment property is located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property of approximately
RMBG66,486,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB58,096,000) has

been determined by the executive directors of the board of the Company

with reference to the valuation performed by independent qualified

professional valuers and the market value of similar properties.

(@ Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment

properties

BET-H=+—HIL4E

Year ended 31 December
—ER-EE CF-TF
2013 2012
AR¥FIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

WA (B 5E25) Rental income (Note 25) 3,079 2,371

R I A R PR Direct operating expenses from property
HAEEE X that generated rental income (1,639) (809)
1,440 1,562
SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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7.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — THE GROUP (Continued)

(b) Leasing arrangements

Some of the investment properties are leased to tenants under long-
term operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Minimum
lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties are as

follows.

Minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases of
investment properties not recognised in the financial statements

are receivable as follows:

PTHZA=1+—H
As at 31 December
SEEe=kE | Eas Tl
2013 2012

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

RN Within 1 year 5,179 3,841
1 224N 1 year to 2 years 1,099 3,841
2E3EN 2 year to 3 years - 2,281

6,278 9,963

SR BITE A B S RE A 1% LR T
FEMTWT

FEHBIFA
A 50 4F LL R AR 4

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book

values are analysed as follows:

R+ZHA=+—H
As at 31 December
- St S St
2013 2012
ANRHFL AR¥TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

In PRC, held on:
Leases within 50 years 34,437 30,894
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8. MpWam — AEM 8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — THE GROUP
TR FEE HEAT T
WA ERRE
v4al A Deferred Product
H%  Customer development development Heh At
Goodwill  relationship costs  in progress Others Total
ANRETT ARETE ARETE ARETT ARBTT ARBTL
RMB'000  RMB'O0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
REZ-ZH—f—H At 1 January 2012
Rk Cost 2,645,905 54941 425815 178,804 2173 3321638
ZEHER Accumulated amortisation - (27,370)  (108,887) - (3,935  (140,212)
BE Impaitment (37,060) = (1,063)  (69,156) —  (107.279)
JR A Net book amount 2,608,845 27,571 315,865 109,648 18218 3,080,147
BE-z-Z
FIRAZEF—HIEE Year ended 31 December 2012
AR (8 Opening net book amount 2,608,845 570 315865 109,648 18218 3,080,147
WA Additions - 35199 - 18,212 218 370,420
i Transfer — — 100 (100) — —
itk Disposal - — - (5,74) (37) (5,782)
W Adjustment on partial disposal
— KB AT R of a subsidiary in 2011 98,590 — — — — 98,590
Transfer from disposal group classified
BRARELEZFEEA as held for sale — - 291,857 = — 291,857
RO (3 26) Impairment charge (Note 26) — — — (12500 — (1250
B Amotisation charge — 60%5)  (38575) — (3,030)  (87,700)
LR Closing net book amount 2707435 333466 569,247 109,513 15369 3,735,030
W_F—"4F+"H=+—H  At31 December 2012
WA Cost 2744495 406931 727837 191171 22354 4,092,788
ESig 47 Accumulated amortisation = (BAS)  (157520) — (6,985)  (237977)
B Impairment (37,060) — (1,063 (81,659) —  (119,781)
i i Net book amount 2,707,435 333466 569,47 109,513 15369 3,735,030
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G — AREM ) 8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — THE GROUP (Continued)
% i
BA  EREE
%FH%  Deferred Product
%  Customer development development Hi At
Goodwill ~ relationship costs  in progress Others Total
ANBHTL  ARWFT ARWFT ARKFZ AREFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
REZ=E
FZAZt—HIEEE Year ended 31 December 2013
R (E Opening net book amount 2,707,435 333,466 569,247 109,513 15369 3,735,030
WE Additions - 27,001 - 2314 183 49,498
i3 Transfer - - 2,700 (2,700) — —
e Disposal — — — (1,307) ?3) (1,310)
HEERENE Transfer to disposal group classified
ZrHREA (W 30) as held for sale (Note 36) (480,499) — QL) - ®  (752,236)
RS2 (F:E 26) Impairment charge (Note 26) — — — 6,979 - 6,979)
B S Amortisation charge = (88,093) (51,638 — (3,050)  (143,381)
SRR A Closing net book amount 220693 271774 248580 120,841 12491 2,880,622
RZZ—=H+"H=+—H  At31December 2013
WA Cost 226399 433932 428616 209478 2521 3358543
Zit s Accumulated amortisation — (162,158  (178973) = (10030 (351,161)
Bl Impairment (37,060) — (1,063) (88,637) — (126,760)
HRT R (E Net book amount 2,226,936 271,774 248,580 120,841 12491 2,880,622
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8. MOBHA—ALM ) 8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — THE GROUP (Continued)
() HAMITY A T A (@)  Other intangible assets mainly comprise trademark and software.
15 -
(b)  AEE B B S S TE T B A B (b)  Amortisation charge of the Group was included in the following

AR ds 2RI A

categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

BRE+H=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

R -ZE CEFE-TF
2013 2012
ANR#EFLE ARETL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
S A Cost of sales 137,399 83,875
FTEU B 3 Administrative expenses 5,982 3,825
143,381 87,700
() T 2 AR B Y B 4 e AR B () Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
(THAEEARN]) - BT (“CGUs”). A summary of the goodwill allocation is as follows:
o

Rt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
G St S St O
2013 2012
ANRETFL AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

e U R R A R ]

Beijing Sihuan PharmaceuticalCo., Ltd.

(MR ) (“Beijing Sihuan”) 294 294
TEYIDY B 56 4 47 B/ 7] Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

(TRYNmEER]) (“Shenzhen Sihuan”) 11,836 11,836
ORI SR R R Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

([ ARIOER 1) (“Jilin Sihuan”) 2,126,800 2,126,800
IR LA TR A A Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Led.

([ ) (B3 36) (“Jilin Sichang”) (Note 36) — 480,499
REMBELEARAF Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

([ ]) (“Changchun Xiangtong”) 57,136 57,136
AV A A R A Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

(TAS G RE ) (“Benxi Hengkang”) 30,870 30,870

2,226,936 2,707,435
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R S0 M0 o) B < A A6 T A
BRI R -

RS R E R RS T

MoF—==ZFF=H=F+—H  Asat31 December 2013

B 25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE=B A= — A LA
For the year end 31 December 2013

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — THE GROUP (Continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for the pharmaceutical business in which
the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations were as follows:

WIMR  RRMR O EWMR O RAME  HHNR KREE
Shenzhen Beijing Jilin - Changchun Jilin Benxi

Sihuan Sihuan Sihuan  Xiangtong Sichang  Hengkang

Wit Long-term growth rate 3% 3% 3% 1% 3% 1%
A% Gross profit margin 15% 15% 94% 57% 85% 86%
% Discount rate 19% 17% 16% 14% 19% 19%
MEF—"4+-H=+—H  Asat31 December 2012

frdi R % Long-term growth rate 3% 3% 3% 1% 3% 1%
% Gross profit margin 15% 28% 94% 65% 88% 82%
fisx Discount rate 19% 17% 16% 14% 19% 19%

A BRI B T I 2 A A8 2 0 A1 4% 3
A B o

B L 43 TROR A R B R U i UL R
TH R A B AR o BT8R A i as
38 R SAT SR P — B By
PR T B0 1 B8 25 B BRI - 0 S AT B I
o FR R E R

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within

the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross profit margins based on past
performance and their expectations of market development. The revenue
average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in
industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific

risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries.
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For the year end 31 December 2013

9.

S A R BE — AR B 9.  LAND USE RIGHTS — THE GROUP
NR¥FIr
RMB’000
R-F—"FE—J—H At 1 January 2012
JRAS Cost 97,651
LS 3 Accumulated amortisation (8,739)
W 5 (E Net book amount 88,912
RE-F——H+-HA=+—HILHE Year ended 31 December 2012
SEA) MR T A Opening net book amount 88,912
nE Additions 80,655
3106 Amortisation charge (3,930)
AR AR MR A Closing net book amount 165,637
PoF-TEFZH=4—H At 31 December 2012
A Cost 178,306
Ry Accumulated amortisation (12,669)
W TR A Net book amount 165,637
BRE-F =4+ A=1+—HILHE Year ended 31 December 2013
AF A0 M T Opening net book amount 165,637
WE Additions 258,446
B EREL G 2 FrE B (B 36) Transfer to disposal group classified
as held for sale (Note 36) (77,970)
S BA 2 Amortisation charge (8,115)
AF R MR T Closing net book amount 337,998
W_F—=F+_H=+—H At 31 December 2013
A Cost 356,132
ST Accumulated amortisation (18,134)
HR TV Net book amount 337,998

A RS R B 5T AR A 50 AR 1
£ P

BHEZ—ZH+-HA=Z+—H80 > EH
(A N R 236,568,000 0 (. F —
A NR 21,829,000 78 ) 2 1 i fil A HE
0 RS - AN R EE YT ESE R
B> ARSEB AW LA R S %%
oL

The land use rights represent land use rights in the PRC with a lease
period of 50 years.

As at 31 December 2013, land use rights with net book values of
approximately RMB236,568,000 (2012: RMB21,829,000), have no
property title certificates. The executive directors of the board of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is lawfully and validly

entitled to occupy or use these land.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY - THE

2 GROUP AND THE COMPANY
(a) AGEHE @ Group
Bk
JE R 3% ]t i
Loans and Available- At
receivables for-sale Total
ANRETL ARFFT AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E =8 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—H
B AR E Assets as per balance sheet
Ak G Available-for-sale financial assets — 776,074 776,074
B 5 I FoAth W R Trade and other receivables
(N 48 TR K0 ) excluding prepayments 1,105,999 — 1,105,999
M2 fy R = A A Term deposits with initial term
PR RN of over three months 233,651 — 233,651
B kB EEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,508,076 = 1,508,076
5 Total 2,847,726 776,074 3,623,800
HR 8 A
LA
S AR
Other
financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
AR T
RMB’000
B EARERIIARE Liabilities as per balance sheet
HE Borrowings 186,680
B 5 I A £ Bk Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities
N RS =L )] 596,447
At Total 783,127
DY B A AR W 2013 4 B i %
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For the year end 31 December 2013

10. 4k T H 280 — A4 P B AR

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY - THE

/A\ ﬁ] (#) GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Continued)
() AEE (#) (@  Group (Continued)
JRES IR CIEEdiE=
Loans and Available- HEr
receivables for-sale Total
ANREFIL  ARHEFLT ARKEFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
“F-"H+TZA=1T—H 31 December 2012
BEAGRIIE E Assets as per balance sheet
A B 4 Available-for-sale financial assets . 717,921 717,921
B 5 K oAt AR X Trade and other receivables
(AEFEFEAFR) excluding prepayments 833,477 — 833,477
B12L B 0 R = T 1Y Term deposits with initial term
R of over three months 898,560 — 898,560
B kBG4 EY Cash and cash equivalents 1,543,907 — 1,543,907
st Total 3,275,944 717,921 3,993,865
Bl A
SN
il R
Other
financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
AR EF
RMB’ 000
B A ERNIIA S Liabilities as per balance sheet
HE Borrowings 773,114
B 5 B Fo A A R Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities
(& EE) 727,829
At Total 1,500,943
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For the year end 31 December 2013

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY - THE

/A\ﬁ] (#) GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Continued)
(b) AAF (b) Company
Bk R O
Loans and receivables
R =g R4
2013 2012
ANRETFL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
R RS Assets as per balance sheet
B 5 B HAb BEUUIR K
(CREFE AT IH) Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 5,935,852 5,634,311
¥ B3R 48 = H 92 1473 Term deposits with initial term of over three months 70,000 710,000
B4 LB E%EEY Cash and cash equivalents 37,174 19,527
At Total 6,043,026 6,363,838
el A A AL
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
—EFE-=E CF -
2013 2012
AT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA EERIIAR Liabilities as per balance sheet
[E84 Borrowings — 494,846
B 5 B HABRE A iRk Trade and other payables excluding
(A ER AR non-financial liabilities 51,538 11,631
st Total 51,538 506,477
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For the year end 31 December 2013

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE COMPANY

1. REEA A8 - A2 1L

#t+=ZHA=+—H
As at 31 December
S =4EN ST
2013 2012
AR  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
FE LT By (F BiAS ) Unlisted shares, at cost 208,617 208,617

(@) WA 7] B (a)
ARARZF—ZHF A= —
FI 0 25 B 4 O T 0T
2B hAREEAR -

Investment in subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2013, all of which are limited liability companies.

150

i
EL 1) EEE L e i A R/ R A (%)
YNGR Principal activities Place of incorporation Issued/ Interest
Name and place of operation and kind of legal entity registered capital held (%)
Directly held
TR (i) H A T RE i 10,000 7T 100
Sun Moral International (HK) Led. Investment holding in Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000
(“Sun Moral”)
Indirectly held
R R A A (TR ]) TR B R i AREEAA TR 200,000,000 € 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical PRC, limited liability company RMB200,000,000
(“Hainan Sihuan”) products in PRC
MR EA R TR A R R i AREEAA B 50,000,000 72 100
Beijing Sihuan Manufacturing of pharmaceutical PRC, limited liability company RMB50,000,000
products in PRC
E R RN AR A TR B R BT - AREEAF ARM1,000,000 78 100
(MEHMRERD) Provision of information support PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Information services in PRC
Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan Information”)
P P DRI ST T B TR e R AR B - AREEAF 6,000,000 76 100
([ D3R ML DB ) Provision of research and development PRC, limited liability company RMB6,000,000

Hainan Sihuan Cardiocerebral Vascular

Drugs Research Institute
Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan
CVD Research”)

services in PRC

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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(#)
(a)

TP FOF e 2 ] 4 (4

Aw& TR

Name

YN BREAEA RAT)
Shenzhen Sihuan

ISR B R IR (T ISR ])
Xuanzhu Pharma Co., Ltd.
(“KBP BioSciences”)

PSR AR A 7]
( FeSfi a8 )

Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Gaobo Jingband”)

B E AR AT
(e a2 )

Beijing Ao He Research Institute
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Ao He Research”)

LR ER A RA A

=
5
TaF
e

Beijing Gao Duan Wei Ye Pharmaceutical
Technical Co., Ltd. (“Gao Duan Wei Ye")

SRERAERAR (£
Dupromise Holdings Limited (“Dupromise”)

AR AT
Jilin Sihuan

(Continued)

B 25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

(a) Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

BT SE S

Principal activities

and place of operation

TR B R

Marketing of pharmaceutical
products in PRC

TR A BT R
Research and development of

pharmaceutical products in PRC
TR R

Manufacturing of pharmaceutical

materials in PRC

e B R A
Provision of research and development

services in PRC

TRA B 4 ) 6

Cooperation with other research

companies in PRC

AR

Investment holding in PRC

T R R

Manufacturing of pharmaceutical
products in PRC

i AR e A

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity

T AREEAT
PRC, limited liability company

- AREEAA
PRC, limited liability company

- AREEAR

PRC, limited liability company

- AREEAF
PRC, limited liability company

> ARFAA

PRC, limited liability company

RELHER
BVI

T AREEAT
PRC, limited liability company

CBT/FHREA
Issued/

registered capital

NE 50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

NE#50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

NE#30,000,000 7

RMB30,000,000

NEH3,600,000 78
RMB3,600,000

NEH5,000,000 7

RMBS,000,000

170
USD1

NE 50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE COMPANY

i
(%)
Interest

held (%)

100

100

100

60

100

100
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For the year end 31 December 2013

1. BB A AR BE - AT 1L

(#)

(a)

TP FiF e 4 ] 4% ()

NGk

Name
REMBEEARAT
Changchun Xiangtong

EEEREA R (RAEE])
Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Tonghua Jida")

TS C TR A A A (IS E A )
Smart Baskets Investment Limited

(“Smart Baskets”)

Indirectly held
HHERREARAF
Jilin Sichang

BRALSRERRAR (EHELE])
Hainan Litzman Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Litzman”)

MR O A R R B I LA RA R
(T AR ])

Meihekou Herbal Primary Product Processing
Co., Ltd. (“Meihekou Herbal")

AR A AT
Benxi Hengkang

BRI RA R (iR )
Jilin Zhen'ao Technology Co., Led.
(“Jilin Zhen'ao”)

(Continued)

(a) Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

EEER LA
Principal activities

and place of operation
A R R
Manufacturing of pharmaceutical

products in PRC

B AR
Marketing of pharmaceutical

products in PRC

TR BB
Investment holding in PRC

R T B
Manufacturing of pharmaceutical

products in PRC

TR BT R B AR Y
R4
Project preparation for manufacturing

of pharmaceutical products in PRC

TR e 7 A B A
T &
Project preparation for manufacturing

of pharmaceutical products in PRC

T B R
Manufacturing of pharmaceutical

products in PRC

TR R fa R A T
Further processing of agricultural and

sideline products in PRC

i AR e A

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity

il
PRC

- AREEAA
PRC, limited liability company

b sy
BYI

- AREEAR
PRC, limited liability company

W > HRFEAR
PRC, limited liability company

Bl AREEAR
PRC, limited liability company

i AREEAF
PRC, limited liability company

- AREEAA
PRC, limited liability company

TBT /R EA
Issued/

registered capital

NE 16,880,000 C
RMB16,880,000

B 12,000,000 7C
RMBI2,000,000

1€
USDL

B 28,300,000 70
RMB28 300,000

NE#19,500,000 78
RMB19,500,000

B 200,000 0
RMB200,000

AB%21,500,000 78
RMB21,500,000

NE#50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE COMPANY

e
(%)
Interest

held (%)

80

100

100

81

100

100

100

100
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1. BB A AR BE - AT 1L

(#)
(a)

TP FOF e 2 ] 4 (4

A4k

Name

HARHEAAR R & T RRPHE RA T
([E SR

Jilin Sihuan Laifuka Electronic
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Jilin Sihuan Laifuka”)

TR B R E TR R A R A
([ mEAARF])

Beijing Sihuan Laifuka Electronic
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Sihuan Laifuka”)

R TRERRAA (ELRR))
Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Tonghua Tianshi”)

R SRR T B AR A A A
([ mBR T ])

Beijing Sihuan Haisikang Electronic
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Sihuan Haisikang)

TR R BB A R A
([EFmEB AT ])

Beijing Sihuan Gaobo Institute Of Drug
Research Co., Led.
(“Betjing Gaobo Institute”)

SRR EM I TARAR
([ ])

Longjing Tongda Agricultural And Sideline
Products Processing Co., Ld

(“Longjing Tongda")

B 25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =t = L

For the year end 31 December 2013

(a) Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

FEER LA
Principal activities

and place of operation

T B R
Sale of medical supplies in PRC

TR ARt R A
Sale of medical appliance in PRC

B BREE

Construction of medical project in PRC

TR BB

Promotion of technology in PRC

T B RIS
Provision of research and development

services in PRC

R PR AT AR E A
Further processing of agricultural and

sideline products in PRC

i AR e A

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity

T AREEAT
PRC, limited liability company

W AREEAH
PRC, limited liability company

- AREEAR
PRC, limited liability company

- AREEAF
PRC, limited liability company

Bl AREAEAR
PRC, limited liability company

W AREEAT
PRC, limited liability company

CBT/FHREA
Issued/

registered capital

E3,000,000 70
RMB3,000,000

E31000,000 76
RMB3,000,000

NE10,000,000 78
RMB10,000,000

AE10,000,000 78
RMB10,000,000

B 500,000 7T
RMB500,000

ERS,000,000 7C
RMBS,000,000

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE COMPANY
(Continued)

i
(%)
Interest

held (%)

100

100

81

56.9

100
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11. RIBA G MEE —AAd 11, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY
(#) (Continued)

(a) TR AR BB (4) (@)

Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

154

i fi b
FEEH RS LA B B M i T T /g A (%)
UNTEZ Principal activities Place of incorporation Issued/ Interest
Name and place of operation and kind of legal entity registered capital held (%)
Fibd TR AT * ([ HhET ) T e B AREEAR AR 50,000,000 7 100
Jilin Yigian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of pharmaceutical PRC, limited liability company RMB50,000,000
(“Jilin Yigian") products in PRC
TARBRHA A A * [ EMIRRHE ) R G W AREEAF B 10,300,000 8 51
Jilin Sihuan Technology Co., Ltd. Promotion of technology in PRC PRC, limited liability company RMB10,300,000
(“Jilin Sihuan Technology”)
H IR TSl AR A A * TR B AL HE > HRFLAH 2,000,000 72 27.03
([ ]) Promotion of technology in PRC PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000
Jilin Sihuan Haisikaier Technology
Co., Ltd. (‘Jilin Haisikaier")
BRI A A * (TR ) iailetid 2 HE  AREEAHE B 500,000 78 100
Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Led. Promotion of technology in PRC PRC, limited liability company RMB500,000
(“Zhen'ao Pharm”)
TR R A RAT ([HWEE]) B R PRC, limited liabilicy company R 50,000,000 78 100
Jilin Detong Pharmaceutical Technical Manufacturing of pharmaceutical il ARFEEAR RMB50,000,000

Co., Ltd.(‘Jilin Detong”)

products in PRC

© o RAREATRRE-F-=
= BRI

S

These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2013.
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(b) HERIEERRER
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115,485,0007G > % H A R ¥
70,673,000 TG £ 5 AR R o HoAfft
JB /A I IR PRI RE £ S A K -

EONIN ]

e k& BEXARE
1,078,258,000 G (& — —4F + A
F #925,609,000 7T ) £ £ 1 B £
Ao WA A A AR 5 R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

The names of certain companies referred to in the financial
statements represent management’s translation of their Chinese
names into English as no English names have been registered or are

available for them.

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost, which is the fair

value of the consideration paid.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest for the year is RMB115,485,000,
of which RMB70,673,000 is for Jilin Sichang. The non-controlling

interest in respect of other subsidiaries is not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of RMB1,078,258,000 (2012:
RMB925,609,000) are held in China and are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the

country, other than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with

material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Jilin
Sichang that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

Group.
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11. RIBA G MEE —AAd  11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY

(#) (Continued)
(b) HEARIFEVERMESR 4 (b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)
BEAERBE Summarised balance sheet
P+ =ZH=1+—H
As at 31 December
R -ZE CF T4
2013 2012
AR ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
HE Current
HE Assets 46,554 35,122
=U Liabilities (178,398) (72,572)
A B E T Total current net liabilities (131,844) (37,450)
F i Non-current
BE Assets 635,451 477,071
£ 1 Liabilities (197,336) (161,842)
A U B Total non-current net assets 438,115 315,229
B E Net assets 306,271 277,779

156 SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2013



11, 7 B 2 vl g B B — A2 ]

(#

(b)

B 25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE COMPANY

(Continued)
BRI e AR (A7) (b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)
BT s Summarised statement of comprehensive income
BETH=—HIEE
Year ended 31 December
—ar—=lr | e s
2013 2012
ANR#EFLE ARHTL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
& Revenue 179,554 65,773
I T 45 o T i ) Profit before income tax 38,725 22,857
P B 52 Income tax expense (14,984) (4,342)
o R S8 S I BRBLAZ M A Post-tax profit from continuing operations 23,741 18,515
e K] Total comprehensive income 23,741 18,515
B & P R A 1 Total comprehensive income allocated
2T W AR to Non-Controlling Interests (4,510) (3,518)
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11. RIBA G MEE —AAW 11, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE COMPANY

(45) (Continued)
(b) HEARIFEVERMESR 4 (b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)
B e R R Summarised cash flows
BET A= —HIREE
Year ended 31 December
TR —-ZE CE—TAF
2013 2012
ANBETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
REFEHB SRS Cash flows from operating activities
BRI A Cash generated from operations 70,222 2,801
EAHFLE Interest paid (4,384) (212)
O A BT e B Income tax paid (13,407) (1,805)
MmN £ F % Net cash generated from operating activities 52,431 784
BEEB B A& H Net cash used in investing activities (185,938) (153,286)
RIS B AR
B4 Ui A Net cash generated from financing activities 133,112 154,487
RekBReEEY
(D) /s Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (395) 1,985
FBE BB E5EY  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,746 5,761
FRBEG KRB E%MEY)  Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7,351 7,746
gl R T A I A ] A i A The information above is the amount before inter-company
EHH o eliminations.
SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year end 31 December 2013

INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

“ER-=EE CF -

2013 2012

ANRHFL ARETE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

it — A — BBk Opening balance at 1 January 40,962 —
Wi g Acquisition — 47,309
JRE A — [T Wi ) B AR 46 75 s 4R Share of post-tax operating loss of an associate (6,830) (6,347)
i — [T 2 ) 1 5 4 s 1 Loss on dilution of interest in an associate (63) —
Rt H=1+—HrFERLEH Closing balance at 31 December 34,069 40,962

RZF— 4+ A > A% EKEOrion
TC Holdings Limited ([ Orion]) K H A&
i J 2 ) Ly A R A R A
) A B S D 30%
R £ -

W E—ZFNH > Orion$% I B R AE
116,000,000 3 7 B9 % AN K 15 E
FAS 4 [ JE {5 Orion #E 75 B 30% F F& 2
16.67% ° MEAK Orion VF &2 ) H 40 A TE
M AR 2 I 25 AR 2 A W
BN E R 25 B 0 S 1 o

Orion £ Fh N7 &) HL 35 03 3 4 77 35
1g o

Sl A AT IR A A T 2 R RE 5 1 AR
AR o

T 3CHB Orion $R FiIHE 4 ¥5 A BRMN A 25
FHIEE -

In October 2012, the Group acquired 30% interest of Orion TC Holdings
Limited (“Orion”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Shandong Hengli
Pharmaceutical Technical Co. Ltd., which mainly engage in research and

development of pharmaceutical products in PRC.

In June 2013, the controlling shareholder of Orion made an additional
capital injection of USD16,000,000 and as a result of which, the Group's
share of interests in Orion decreased from 30% to 16.67%. The different
between the percentage of share of net assets of Orion before and after
the capital injection was recorded as loss on dilution of interest in an

associate.

Orion is a private company and there is no quoted market price available

for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the

associate.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Orion which

is accounted for using the equity method.
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12. SRBERRE AR B E (42) 12. INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

BEEABEEME Summarised balance sheet
mrt+=_H=+—H
As at 31 December
=& =& —F 4
2013 2012
ANREFIT ANRETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
TLE Current
G Assets 114,146 106,261
=i Liabilities (743) (675)
AR P E Total current net assets 113,403 105,586
i) Non-current
G Assets 84,559 60,339
=i Liabilities (8,658) (44,458)
M ) B TR Total non-current net assets 75,901 15,881
B Net assets 189,304 121,467
2V W gs Summarised statement of comprehensive income
BE+T+_HA=1+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 December
Sl — T i
2013 2012
ANRWFL  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue — 214
CRIREGIEY, i Loss before income tax (31,362) (21,154)
S AR BH 3 Income tax expense — —
PR s 1R Loss from continuing operations (31,362) (21,154)
2 s 4E AR Total comprehensive loss (31,362) (21,154)
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BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

12. INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the

carrying amount of its interest in associates

2= —EF-_F

Summarised financial information 2013 2012
AREFL ARETFE

RMB’000 RMB 000

Opening net assets 121,467 142,621
Capital injection by shareholder 99,199 —
Loss for the period (31,362) (21,154)

Other Comprehensive Income — —
Currency translation differences — -
Closing net assets 189,304 121,467

NS AFIMHER (CF =
16.67% ; —&—_4F 1 30%)
7 2

W T {E

Interest in associates

(2013: 16.67%; 2012: 30%) 31,557 36,440
Goodwill 2,512 4,522
Carrying value 34,069 40,962
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BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE

For the year end 31 December 2013

13. WA A Y A — A

13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS — THE

GROUP
RT+H=+—H
As at 31 December
—FE = ZE-T4F
2013 2012
ANRETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
#*—H—H At 1 January 717,921 780,135
wE Additions 774,000 716,900
(== Disposals (717,921) (780,135)
A AT R Net gain from change in fair value
N 538 Bl 9 A 2 T AR of available-for-sale financial assets 2,074 1,021
m+r—H=+—H At 31 December 776,074 717,921

AT A A AR AT

e BE

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:
Rt=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—R-=E ST F
2013 2012

AR T ARWTL
RMB'000  RMB’000

Short-term investments 776,074 717,921

% AR J 17 1R A T T S R R e
5 T H A SRAT R S B A
BEEN RS MEEENRE - 2%
BEYLARBFHE -

R 2N T T FE I F 2 £ 51 3R
K 4.949% (ZF— 4 1 3.69%)FHH °

JASR A O B K f LB 5%
ZHRT{H -

Y 0 A 0 7 90 (P 3 o O E
(5 BE R 2% E BT (5 A)
BT 05 R 4 D I JEE S R
W RTAG © %5 4 R 20 0 O R e
{H -

The amount represents short-term investments placed in certain PRC
state-owned banking institutions and reputable international financial
institutions outside of PRC with maturity within 6 months and non-

determinable return rate. These investments are all denominated in RMB.

The fair values of these investments are based on average estimated return

rate of 4.94%(2012: 3.69%).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying

value of these investments.

The credit quality of available-for-sale financial assets that are neither past
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings
(if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

None of these financial assets is either past due or impaired.
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14. HAb I3 B & i — AL 14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS — THE GROUP

I5.

Rt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
N St N St o
2013 2012
ANRETFL  ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

oAb i B 5 Other non-current assets — 122,521
7 TR R VA g i - b fet P RE 2 TR RO o The amount represents prepayment for acquisition of land use rights.
R -A4LEH 15. INVENTORIES - THE GROUP

R+ZA=+—H

As at 31 December
S& =48 T T4
2013 2012

ARWHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

JE A R Raw materials 11,774 24,030
TR Work in progress 29,697 18,973
S Finished goods 59,812 48,469

101,283 91,472
A7 B8 B W 8 2% B ST s AT 8 4 A The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of
M 4 % A N R %764,645,000 G (. & sales” amounted to RMB764,645,000 (2012: RMB586,690,000).

— 4 NR%586,690,000 JC) ©
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For the year end 31 December 2013

16. B 5 B S0 A ME WMk

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AL AR
Group Company
Rt+ZH=+—H i YR = (| — [
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R -EE R ZFR-ZE R4
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANBEFILT ARETIT AR¥TFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB 000
BN — 5 =) Trade receivables — third parties 867,716 599,582 — =
R Y 8 AR R Amount receivable from partial
JE R (a) disposal of Jilin Sichang (a) 165,572 154,192 = —
T AR Prepaid value added tax 103,554 20,409 = =
AT HLL 1 B E Prepayments to suppliers 96,544 69,426 — —
KR Prepaid income tax 91,944 — — —
WS R 2~ 13 (b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) — — 3615948 4,002,343
JRE Az e 2 ) e B Dividend receivable from subsidiaries — — 2319411 1,625,411
oAt FE Wi S Other receivables 72,711 79,703 493 6,557
1,398,041 923312 5,935,852 5,634,311
W IR R Less: non-current portion:
A B T B Amount receivable from partial
RENIE 2K () disposal of Jilin Sichang(a) — 154,192 — —
B3 oy Current Portion 1,398,041 769,120 5,935,852 5,634,311

(a)

(b)

B4 8 5 MR IO R JRE AR AR I
3698 KA B B 2w AR ik
AR A FEA A —4F
BHR -F—=F1+-H=1—H
BB A R By 7,200 (ZF — Z4F
TZHA=Z+—H 1 7.22%) °

i 2 B 24 9 KO8T 9
B I - TSR ER R
7 -

()

(b)

Amount receivable from partial disposal of Jilin Sichang represents
the consideration and interest not yet received relevant to the
partial disposal mentioned in Note 36, which will be settled
within one year and bears effective interest rate of 7.22% as at 31
December 2013 (31 December 2012: 7.22%).

The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are interest-

free, unsecured, repayable on demand and fully performing.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



B 25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R
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16. ¥ 5 B Ju Ao HE WOk (42 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
o 360 10 7 SN A 3 ) B 5 e L A JRE i R Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
RBEEHTF ARG RGN - B8 assessed by making reference to historical information about default rates,
T A R A S R R S R reputation, liquidity and other financial information of the counterparties.
it
2 b e F A R i BE Sk 2 R T (B DL T A & The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in
WeaH : the following currencies:
ALEH AR H]
Group Company
RTZA=+—H R+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
“g- % CF CF-Sf SRk
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARWTL ARKTLT ARBETLT ARKETT
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000

N RMB 1,393,926 921,929 5,935,852 5,634,311
ES USD 4,115 1,383 — —

1,398,041 923312 5,935,852 5,634,311

AEBBZTEFNGEERNF WA 2 The Group’s credit terms granted to customers range from one month
—4E o IREY DN — M E 5 IR R to one year. Trade receivables that are aged less than one year are not
B A o & 5 M i R SR 1 R 88 40 A A considered impaired. The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
T

R+ZHA=+—H

As at 31 December
=& =4 TFE T4
2013 2012

ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

3ME A LAY Within 3 months 632,298 563,994
32 6fHH 3 to 6 months 105,537 32,607
N ESE 6 months to 1 year 129,420 2,666
AERL b More than 1 year 461 315

867,716 599,582
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16.

B 5 B A OIR K (40)
R-ZF—=F+"A=+—H  BHE
Wi B 3N R 153,095,000 76 (& — =
4 NE 6,559,000 70 ) E i #1H & 3
{H o ZFFHIHMEZ 2B L MR
T 44 56 10 40 5 K BB IR > SR R A
REG SRS I AT i ] o

255 B o USRS BB M T AN

o

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of RMB153,095,000 (2012:
RMB6,559,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent wholesalers for whom there is no significant
financial difficulty and based on past experience, the overdue amount can

be recovered.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

m+ZH=+—H

As at 31 December
=& =& —F 4
2013 2012
AREFLE ARETE
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
3% 6MHA 3 to 6 months 38,527 3,739
6fE A & 14 6 months to 1 year 114,107 2,505
iV More than 1 year 461 315
153,095 6,559

718 39 70 17 90 (L P 0 B SR K 2 R
BHERM 2% 8 F 5 A WXL E
SERHEAT AL

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information about

counterparty default rates:

mt+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
—G—=h |EEE D
2013 2012
ANREFT ANRETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
H—4 Group 1 699,308 592,862
| Group 2 15,313 161
714,621 593,023
o FH-RAETEERZEF (6 . Group 1 — customers (less than 6 months) with no defaults in the
AAMUT) » past.
o EOH-BAYEERZEE (6 o Group 2 — customers (more than 6 months) with no defaults in the
il A LA E) - past.

RoF-SER-F T
S H o SE AR E A
ST B - U5 MR Bk S R -

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, no trade receivables were impaired

and no provision was made. The trade receivables are fully performing.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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17. HEeRBL5EY 17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NS AR
Group Company
H+ZA=+—H BT+ZH=1+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
SRS CETH SRS ST
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANR#ETFE AREFLT AREFLT AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
[ A B Cash on hand 204 266 107 43
AT Bank deposits 1,507,872 1,543,641 37,067 19,484
1,508,076 1,543,907 37,174 19,527

o FE—-ZFEFH=1+—H  Hib
TR EBAER R 1.26%(—F——
0 1.72%) o

Bla RBlE S EY LT 1 B EHE -

The effective annual interest rate of other bank deposit as at 31 December
2013 was 1.26% (2012: 1.72%).

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

AR A ]
Group Company
R+=ZHA=+—H P+=ZHA=+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
RS DR DRSS DR
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANREFT ARETT ARETFLT AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’ 000
N RMB 1,506,196 1,541,446 36,597 18,934
eI HKD 1,324 1,851 63 44
M o SGD 490 524 490 524
F*7 USD 66 86 24 25
1,508,076 1,543,907 37,174 19,527

IV 4 2 301 0 B0 (L ) B < S Bl S W)

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents that are neither past due

M 15 BE R 3B E B ER (ER) nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if
ol T 5 A BE RN DAY T s B R available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.
Al
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17.

18.

B4 EBE%5EY ) 17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
EMBEERERPERRE MREEE Reconciliation of the cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year in
YIRS T the consolidated statement of cash flows is set out as below:
AL
Group
RTZA=+—H
As at 31 December
—F-ZE R0
2013 2012
ANRETL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
FFAEEABRNB S Cash and cash equivalents included
LB &5 EY in the balance sheet 1,508,076 1,543,907
FEATRIE B AR Y B Cash and cash equivalents included
B EY (5T 36) in the assets of disposal group (Note 36) 7,351 —
1,515,427 1,543,907
A3 hNa8=fHMWEY 18 TERM DEPOSITS WITH INITIAL TERM OF

ik — AN B AR ) OVER THREE MONTHS - THE GROUP AND THE
COMPANY
A4 AAH
Group Company
W+=ZA=+—H Bt+ZH=1+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
SRSE CFCF CRSE CF 0
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARWTIL AEKFLT ARBETLT ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’ 000

HI25 2 30 R = A Term deposits with initial term

i A of over 3 months 233,651 898,560 70,000 710,000

A—E—=E+-A=+—0 K The effective annual interest rate of the term deposits as at 31 December
SR A % B 3.05% (B — T 4F 2013 was 3.05% (2012: 2.95%) and denominated in RMB.
2.95%) RUAARHFHE -
RN HEEGITEERS > W5 AW The executive directors of the board of the Company considered that
= B R A S S T B the carrying values of the term deposits with initial term of over three
—E =+ A=+ — A WA FEA months approximated their fair values as at 31 December 2013.
F o
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19. WA R RiiE — A4EE K 19 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM — THE
Y, /35 | GROUP AND THE COMPANY
BRR
W MEER
W W
#HE  Number of

Number of  issued and

authorised  fully paid B AR B ¥
ordinary ordinary Share Share At
shares shares capital  premium Total
TH TR ARETFT AREFT ARETT
000 ‘000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
WZE—"MF—H—HK  Asat1 January and 31 December 2012
+ZH=+—H (HK$0.01 per share)
(T .0.01 5 78) 10,000,000 5,175,024 44,419 5,973,951 5,618,370
RZF—=F—H—H As at 1 January and 31 December 2013
Et+-A=+—H (HK$0.01 per share)
(B E0.01#7T) 10,000,000 5,175,024 44419 557391 5618370
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20. JLARRRAE BRI B A — &A% 20. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS -
P B AR 2 W) THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
AL Group
TREEA
R Retained
Other reserves earnings
mEEE WG
ffie  BEEE
PRC  Available-
statutoty for-sale %N i
reserve financial Capital it
fund assets reserve Total
ARBTT ARETL ARBFTT ARETLT AREFTT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
WZF—ZFE—H—H At 1 January 2012 151,850 1,635 — 153,485 1,173,679
FERF Profit for the year — — — — 904,402
N SAS AR (FF5E32)  Interim and special dividends (Note 32) — — — — (662,404)
NI 2 MBAR  Change in ownership interests in
i HERE 4 a subsidiary without change of control — — (110,268) (110,268) —
{5 M fry 52 -1 — Employee share award scheme
1 5 s (B 1 (Fh 3 28) — value of employee service (Note 28) — — 7,678 7,678 —
AL — R B A Deregistration of a subsidiary (500) = = (500) 500
T 4 R R Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets — (1,635) — (1,635) —
Wt R E Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATEEE) (e 13) financial assets (Note 13) - 1,021 - 1,021 —
WS Ok R Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund 15,475 — — 15,475 (15,475)
ﬁA — A+ = A =+4—H At 31 December 2012 and
F—=#—H—H 1 January 2013 166,825 1,021 (102,590) 65,256 1,400,702
A Profit for the year — — — — 1,303,012
SRR E (MF3E32)  Interim and special dividends (Note 32) — — — — (522,677
1 B M1 42 Bt 1 Employee share award scheme
— 1R B IRFSEE (F5E 28)  — value of employee service (Note 28) — — 16,589 16,589 —
HET L ESREE Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets — (1,021) — (1,021) —
L ESHEREL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ANTEES (e 13) financial assets (Note 13) — 2,074 — 2,074 —
WS kR Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund 6,431 — — 6,431 (6,431)
RZZF—=4+ ] =+—H At 31 December 2013 173,256 2,074 (86,001) 89,329 2,174,606

170
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20. HAbREHE R B A — A% 20. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS —
P B A2 W] (40) THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Conrinued)
AT Company
bR REEA
Other Retained

reserve earnings

ABHTE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

WZEF—"F—H—H At 1 January 2012 — 502,729
A Va5 | Profit for the year — 599,615
B (B 3E 32) Dividends (Note 32) o (662,404)
1§ 5 1% 3 5% By st ) — Employee share award scheme — value of

18 B MR (A (K5 28) employee service (Note 28) 7,678 —
hNoE—-—HE+ - H=+—H K At 31 December 2012 and

X —=H—H—H 1 January 2013 7,678 439,940
A FE i ) Profit for the year — 650,121
B (B 3E 32) Dividends (Note 32) - (522,677)
1 B SR 0y 5% i st — Employee share award scheme — value of

18 B MRS 18 (8 (Fff 5k 28) employee service (Note 28) 6,679 —
P E—=F+_"H=+—H At 31 December 2013 14,357 567,384
RN T R B R AT v R The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to follow the laws
5] 2 k5L DA Je L% 8 0 ALk = AR A ) o and regulations of the PRC and their respective articles of association.
2545 Y B /A ) 28 48 LR B AR B Y 4l ) These subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of their net profits
HE M0 DR ERES HEZES for each financial year to the reserve fund until the balance of such fund
AN HA A MEARRKS0% - ik has reached 50% of their respective registered capital. The reserve fund
5 4 8 A N BUAE: P TR R o ik v s AL can only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
WA RS B3l ia sk IR g o % authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The reserves
TR 4 7R ] B A 1) B R4 TR (5 % B 4 fund is not available for distribution to shareholders except in the case of
AR) o liquidation.
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21. FeAb IR o) £ 6 — A4 M 21. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES — THE GROUP
A4
Group
RE=HET—H

As at 31 December
—Gr—clE | EEE— e
2013 2012

ARHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

R & H MR Deferred gain on partial disposal of
Z RIS g (P EE 36) Jilin Sichang (Note 36) — 193,590
A B HE 2 IR AE A4S (a) Deferred revenue for sales of distribution right (a) 63,227 13,817
63,227 207,407
()  HIEMEETRYEE R (@) It represents the cash advances received for sales distribution
s EFHE = I & B o rights of certain pharmaceutical products to third parties for 5
BANC R AR e Y e T & years. The revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of
EHE o comprehensive income based on straight line basis.
SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

For the year end 31 December 2013

AL A4
Group Company
R+ZH=+—H Rt+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R -EE R ZFR-ZE R4
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANBEFLT ARWTT ARWTFLE ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
5 METHESR Trade payables 36,555 36,207 — —
JREG 4 B s Accrued marketing service fee 395,335 329,923 — =
o B % IR Advances from customers 229,969 88,668 — —
A EEMRNRZ Deferred gain on partial disposal
RN (B3 36) Jilin Sichang (Note 36) 193,590 — — —
JEEA5F 3 (BB Value added tax payables 139,682 16,071 — —
JE ARt 42 4 Deposit payables 74,664 73,434 — —
JEFTHE ATk AL AT Accrued performance bonus
to directors 51,200 4,800 51,200 4,800
s - 0 O HEE A SRR Amount payable regarding
land use right 47,970 — — —
BUN SR B A P2 Advance of compensation from
i A B R government for demolition
of existing premise 36,638 30,000 — —
JEE % P I R R AR Payable of purchase of
customer relationship — 185,000 — —
W B S 2 ) Y Amount payables due to the
JEAT AR acquisition of subsidiaries — 20,000 — —
F A REA HRAR Other payables 47,504 83,265 338 6,831
1,253,107 867,368 51,538 11,631
B2 5 Ko JEL At JE AF B 22k 1 A 1 (1 B LR T The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their carrying
{HARA: o amounts.
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22. E5 B I AbREAT IR () 22. TRADE AND OTHER PAY ABLES (Continued)
L 5 A e ) SRS A At The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:
R+ZH=+—H

As at 31 December
—G—=hy | SEE—— kD
2013 2012

ARETE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

6fH AN Within 6 months 29,287 30,078
6EH 214 6 months to 1 year 1,203 711
TR E More than 1 year 6,065 5,418
36,555 36,207
i B A Y T AT R M R S A TR MR Amount payables due to the purchase of inventory not yet paid and were
1248 B 24T o expected to be paid within 12 months.
2 5 T A R AT B 2 ) B TR DA R B &2 The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in the
LS following currencies:
AL AT
Group Company
R+ZA=+—H Rt+=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
—&F—-= —F-_F ZF—-= —EF T
2013 2012 2013 2012

AEBTE ARETT ARBTTE ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000

N RMB 1,252,786 860,471 51,538 5,162
eI HKD 16 6,496 = 6,469
i USD 305 401 = —

1,253,107 867,368 51,538 11,631
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23, BRI R— A 23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP
W A0E il 15 B0 2 A0 A I A5 B & 15 4 The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
mr liabilities is as follows:
mrt+=_H=+—H

As at 31 December
=& =4E T4
2013 2012

ARWTE  ARWTFT
RMB’000  RMB’000

BTG Deferred income tax assets
— I TE—4E A [m] — to be recovered within 1 year 91,351 241,498
— R E — to be settled after 1 year 28,588 23,678
119,939 265,176
B FRABL A R Deferred income tax liabilities
— I TE—AE N4 — to be settled within 1 year (41,917) (99,109)
— R EE — to be settled after 1 year (98,945) (109,423)
(140,862) (208,532)
WAL FRARRL (BL6R) A — B Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets — net (20,923) 56,644
AT AR R P B B AR IR The gross movements on the deferred income tax accounts are as follows:
BET A=+ —HIAEE
Year ended 31 December
—ar—=tr e
2013 2012
ARHEFT AR¥TI
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
m—H—H At 1 January 56,644 (43,650)
(Charged)/Credited to statement of
N T AR (F08) /B (FFE30) comprehensive income (Note 30) (167,758) 175,987
BT Payment of withholding tax 25,000 —
WEZE (B REREZ Transfer to/(from) disposal group classified
P B A1 (B 3E 36) as held for sale Note 36) 65,191 (75,693)
wt+—-HA=+—H At 31 December (20,923) 56,644
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23, EHEPB — AEE ) 23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued)
RAEFNIEEFFEHEE LABEER W The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
(R SR — B 5w e HE [ A B i 4H 4 year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
B the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

RIE ARG B Deferred income tax assets
ot
— KR SHn
YA il ki il
FERE SHER MR B A
Deferred ~ ARZBLA &7 Unrealised
gainon  Unrealised — E#iREH profit of
partial profitof ~ Marketing sales of
disposal of intra-group  service fee distribution it
a subsidiary sales accrued right Total

ARHTE  ARETE ARKTT ARKTZ ARKTx
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000

R=F—"4—H—H At 1 January 2012 23,678 45,805 — — (9,483
Credited to consolidated statement

R B2 R AT of comprehensive income - 135,311 60,382 = 195,693
R_F—_4

FZAZF—H At 31 December 2012 23,678 181,116 60,382 = 265,176
R-F—=f£—H—H At 1 January 2013 23,678 181,116 60,382 = 265,176
REREE IR (Charged)/Credited to consolidated statement

(8) /&7 of comprehensive income — (140,999) (11,649) 7411 (145,237)
REF—=4

+=A=+—H At 31 December 2013 23,678 40,117 48,733 7411 119,939
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BB 28 (A7)

A5 ] 40 308 A A JE A0 o ik ) 5 B A I o T
0 B > U T A 9 45 A R A 1
B o AN A ERGRITER M
R HE S 2 A5 T A5 2R R A B Ik >
ALK _FE—=F T _H=1T—Hif
A e R BB I s 18N IR 93,101,000 76
(ZF— % ANR¥63,143,00070)
B AR A T A5 e A9 N RS 23,160,000
(= F — 2 N R 24,428,000
TG) o w%5E 1R TT DAY T DG B R R I
WA o G A BB 854,000 T~ AR
22,395,000 76 ~ AR #43,597,0007C ~ A
R 11,871,000 70 & A %5 14,384,000 G
AR ZF— U4~ ZF—HAE - =
TN 2R LERFE—NER
1) -

23.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future
taxable profits is probable. Due to the fact that the executive directors of
the board of the Company are not certain on whether future taxable profit
would be available, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB23,160,000 (2012: RMB24,428,000) in respect
of tax losses amounting to RMB93,101,000 (2012: RMB63,143,000) as
at 31 December 2013 that can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income. Losses amounting to RMB854,000, RMB22,395,000,
RMB43,597,000, RMB11,871,000 and RMB 14,384,000 will expire in
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, respectively.
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23, BB — AE M ()

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued)

BB HAE Deferred income tax liabilities
e I J
A EAREH
g ]
Hs
Wk E LR ithholding
AP R tax of the
Fair value  unremitted
gain arising earnings
from of a PRC At
acquisitions subsidiary Total
ANREEFE  ARETLT  AREFL
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
(Hit)
(Note)
% ——4E—H—H At 1 January 2012 56,503 56,630 113,133
HEARELEL Transfer from disposal group
e B A classified as held for sale 75,693 — 75,693
(Credited)/Charged to
S e consolidated statement of
(BRE),/ S8 comprehensive income (12,294) 32,000 19,706
Wo_EF—-—"#£+"H=+—H At 31 December 2012 119,902 88,630 208,532
RE-F—=HF—H—H At 1 January 2013 119,902 88,630 208,532
HBEERELREL Transfer to disposal group classified
T B 4L (M5 36) as held for sale (Note 36) (65,191) — (65,191)
(Credited)/Charged to
consolidated statement of
A2 % (B5E) /S8 comprehensive income (10,479) 33,000 22,521
BB K Payment of withholding tax — (25,000) (25,000)
R_F—-=%+"A=+—H At 31 December 2013 44,232 96,630 140,862
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BB AR (A7)

R FF LA+ A N H B0 Hr
A 3 17 75 0 15 A 4 (B g g5 )
R FFNFE— A — BB BT
2wl EE M EE EIRRE > &
109 0 TE 0 BL - A S B4R K E R
e M T LA A v I B A S BT O
FEBL L2 s E o A BB
BiRAE A 10%B E5% - WE_-F—=
FHZA=Z+—H1EE > HENRE
RTRBZBEBHEMBLER % (%
— T 5g) .

WoF—=F+H=1+—H  &&£HE
ST R A R ) AE ] T R R R T
1) 283 71 8 1 A0 A B T B AR
#96,630,000 0 (= F — 4 AR
88,630,000 TG ) o A Ji 4 H Jig 3 o [ DL AP
() ¥ 4 R 0 A i TR T 0 £ o U
A PR 8 LA W] T A AR N & R L v
1 % 1 49 N R #1,668,138,000 6 ( = &
— T 4E T KR 940,472,000 70 ) Jo A &
0 B S IR BUR > I SR HE AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to Detailed Implementation Regulations (“DIR”) for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, a 10% withholding tax is levied on the dividends
declared by the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. If a foreign investor is
incorporated in Hong Kong and meets the conditions or requirements
under the double taxation arrangement entered into between the PRC
and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding tax rate will be reduced to 5%
from 10%. The withholding tax rate levied on the dividends declared by
Hainan Sihuan to Sun Moral is 5% for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: 5%).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group recognised relevant deferred tax
liabilities of RMB96,630,000 (2012: RMB88,630,000), on the earnings
anticipated to be remitted by a PRC subsidiary in the foreseeable future.
No withholding tax has been provided for the earnings of approximately
RMB1,668,138,000 (2012: RMB940,472,000) which are expected to be
retained by the PRC subsidiaries and not to be remitted out of the PRC
in the foreseeable future based on management’s estimated requirement
for funding outside the PRC and the dividend distribution policy of the
Group.
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For the year end 31 December 2013

24, AEER— ARSI B A A ]

24. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

AR ARAH
Group Company
R+HZA=Z+—H R+ZA=Z+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
gty Zae——he —oe—ciliE BEEss i
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARETILE ARWTT ARETLE ARKTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’ 000

FE R Non-current
— HA K (a) — Other loans (a) 5,880 5,880 = —
llhi Current
— AT HER b) — bank borrowings (b) 180,800 704,148 — 494,846
— HAth B3k — Other loans — 63,086 — s
186,680 773,114 = 494 846

(a)

7% 55 CH AR AR B R v
IR MR RS R
RoF—=ZHF+-A=+—HWME
BRI K £ 6.4000 (& — 4+
H=Z4+—H :691%) °

AE =t A=t —HE
AT 5B A R # 180,800,000 TG
(ZF— 4« ARH209,301,000
JC) AR B IR SR - i %
— =4+ H =t BT S
ARBET(CF—4F AR¥
494,847,000 JG) 2 SEARHH {5 6 -

(a)

(b)

These amounts mainly comprised the borrowings from Langfang
Gaobo Jingband’s non-controlling interest, which bear effective
interest rate of 6.40% as at 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012: 6.91%) and will be repaid in 2015.

Bank borrowings of RMB180,800,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: RMB209,301,000) were guaranteed by the Company
without pledge. Bank borrowings of RMB nil as at 31 December
2013 (2012: RMB494,847,000) were unsecured borrowings.
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24, B —AEH @) 24. BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)
WoE—=FE+"H=+—H > ~&H At 31 December 2013, the Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:
P SERERE AT

A A
Group Company
;= REZAZA—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
MR b iR
Bank borrowings Others loans Bank borrowings
“F-=E XK “R-EE CR-CF “F-=F “FF
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
NRHTFE ARFTE ARWTE AEWTT ARETT ARETZ
RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
151 Within 1 year 180,800 704,148 - 63,086 - 494,846
1524 Betweenl and 2 years - i 5,880 = - -
255 R Between 2 and  years - - - 5,880 - -
180,800 704,148 5,880 68,966 - 494,846

HENTFHEMNRE1.02%( =% ——
1 2.08%) °

WK > AEBFEOHRE KA
AT E R F R E R mBR AT

The borrowings bear average interest rate of 1.02% (2012: 2.08%)

annually.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and

the contractual repricing dates at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
w+ZHA=+—H

As at 31 December
—ai—=lE [EaE s
2013 2012
ANREFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEETYEN 6 months or less 186,680 773,114

MR BB AER - R A FE
BLHLHR T (E AR -

The fair value of the borrowings approximated their carrying amount, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.
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24. 8 —AREH ) 24.

AL SR IR E AT 5 B e

BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

ALEE AAH
Group Company
S Y= I e =| wt+=ZA=Z+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
SREE ST SRSE CFF
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANREFILE AREFL AREFLT AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
EH USD 180,800 47,132 = =
NG RMB 5,880 68,966 = =
Ev HKD — 657,016 — 494,846
186,680 773,114 — 494 846

25. Wed - HABBOA R 25

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS -

% — B NET
BETAZ+—HIREE
Year ended 31 December
TR CEFE T
2013 2012
ANR#FLE ARETT
RMB’000  RMB' 000
Wit - Revenue:
40 B Sales of pharmaceutical products 4,732,700 3,042,531
H AL A Other income:
B G R Sale of distribution right 16,641 3,454
HERA Rental income 3,079 2,371
19,720 5,825
Hof Wtz — 4 - Other gains — net:
BUR A B Government grants 407,408 260,472
& YA Processing fee income 2,747 2,742
L TR L 4 L 2 i Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 1,021 1,635
A T e i i Gain on disposal of intangible assets 105 17,005
e Donation (8,263) (2,163)
HoAts Others (4,012) (8,285)
399,006 271,406
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26. EXPENSES BY NATURE

BETAZT—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
N St S St O
2013 2012
ANRETFL ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

88 B A Research and development costs
ﬁﬁﬁ 2 Research expenses 31,990 15,379
0 SIE BR % AR R B (FfH 5t ) Amortisation of deferred development costs (Note 8) 51,638 38,575
83,628 53,954
T35 4 B BB S Marketing and promotion expenses 2,046,769 1,209,945
B A Raw materials used 742,578 561,675
1 B AR A BA S (Pt 5E 27) Employee benefit expenses (Note 27) 240,465 122,679
TV 5 5 Amortisation of intangible assets excluding the
(A ELF5 A A2 B 8 LA 5 amortisation of deferred development costs
(Wf5ES) (Note 8) 91,743 49,125
= LA Business tax and surcharges 76,654 47,267
OB 2 Office expenses 71,438 32,947
AL BH S Transportation expenses 56,506 17,278
2 iR B 5 Travelling expenses 44,987 22,307
Y3k - R B ST 8 (M3t 6) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 6) 42,725 39,789
SR B A R A B L Changes in inventories of finished goods and work
in progress 22,067 25,501
eSS Entertainment expenses 21,331 5,343
& 5 B Advertising expenses 18,348 7,810
A B AT Operating lease payments 16,096 3,410
B B Professional services expense 13,184 13,384
i RSB (P 9) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 9) 8,115 3,930
TV & WA (Bt 3 8) Impairment of intangible assets (Note 8) 6,979 12,502
12 5 T 4 Auditors’ remuneration 3,565 3350
BB AT (M5 7) Depreciation of investment properties (Note 7) 1,639 809
HoAth Others 80,527 39,002
YR RA ~ 2B A K Total cost of sales, distribution costs and
780 B 3 4R administrative expenses 3,689,344 2,272,007
DY B A AR W 2013 4 B i %
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27. @ B R A B 3 (6 15 3 3
A B )

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS)

BETH=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—ER-=F —F -

2013 2012

AR¥FIT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TER#EHE Wages and salaries 194,446 90,020

g PR BT E Ak Contribution to social insurance scheme 19,412 15,947

=Wl Staff welfare 10,018 9,034

A D 2 T A RSB Y Share-based compensation expenses charged to

AR B B ) el 1 consolidated statement of comprehensive

bR 3 (B & 28) income (Note 28) 16,589 7,678

240,465 122,679

(a)

252 ) v [ Y A R M B2 B
R B T BT A SR 0 1 2 AR K
SRR o A ) o B I O

1] % AT BB B 3T I BB AR AR
| > R ALK 3 T BURF 2 1 Y
TR B FHEE T AL LR -

(a)

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds, which are
calculated at certain percentage of the average employee salary as
announced by local municipal government, to the scheme to fund

the retirement benefits of the employees.
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

WAL ) ) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTYS) (Continued)
b)) EHHEWE (b) Directors’ emoluments
BE_F-=F1t"HA=t—HL The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
FESERNFMMT 2013 is set out below:
FRAEAL
Mg ¥4 Performance At
HRUEH Name Fees Salary bonuses Total
AR T ARWTT ARETFT ARETIL
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
i Director
AT Executive directors:
HBTHB L (f3)  Dr. Che Fengsheng (Note i) — 1,200 25,600 26,800
SRARER A Dr. Guo Weicheng — 600 15,360 15,960
mERLE Mt. Meng Xianhui — 300 10,240 10,540
FHATHES - Non-executive directors:
IRAMFE R A Dr. Zhang Jionglong — — — =
BRalsEE Mr. Homer Sun — — — —
w ek (FFE i) Mr. Eddy Huang (Note ii) — — = =
WL ATES Independent non-executive directors:
FRERE Mr. Patrick Sun 236 — — 236
HEREE Mr. Bai Huiliang 240 = = 240
TRFEARSEE (M5Ei)  Mr. Xu Kangsen (Note ii) 180 — — 180
WO SEA (i) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Note iii) 77 - - 77
733 2,100 51,200 54,033
VB S O AR A 2013 4 JiE # % 185
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27. MEBBABW L (LIEHEF K 27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES INCLUDING

AT PRI 4y ) 40) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTYS) (Continued)
(b) HHFEME ) (b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
BE_F _#+t_A=t—Atk The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
EEAERNHMA T 2012 is set out below:
BAEAL
14 ¥4 Performance st
EHRIEA Name Fees Salary bonuses Total

ANRETE ARETFT ARKTL ARETIE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Y Director

HiES Executive directors:

BT A (f5Ei)  Dr. Che Fengsheng (Note i) — 1,200 2,400 3,600

FPAEIR A Dr. Guo Weicheng = 600 1,440 2,040

.- Mr. Meng Xianhui — 300 960 1,260

FHATHER - Non-executive directors:

SR HE R A Dr. Zhang Jionglong — — — —

Bkt Mr. Homer Sun — — — -

o e (EE i) Mr. Eddy Huang (Note ii) — — — —

B AT ES - Independent non-executive directors:

FE A M. Patrick Sun 244 — — 244

HERLE Mr. Bai Huiliang 240 = = 240

TRIEARIEAE (MEEi)  Mr. Xu Kangsen (Note ii) 240 — — 240

724 2,100 4,800 7,624

()  HEABAEI LR (i)  Dr. Che Fengsheng is also the chief executive of the Group.
THAR -

(i) AL RIRRARSGEC (i)  Mr. Eddy Huang and Mr. Xu Kangsen have resigned on 4
R -ZFSHA M HBHE - September 2013.

(i) GEHREER-FT-=FN (iii)  Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong was appointed as independent non-
AV H AL fy A B S executive director of the Company on 4 September 2013.

HEMATES -
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTYS) (Continued)

(o)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2012: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining two individuals

during the year are as follows:

BET A= —HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—ER-ZE FE-CF
2013 2012
ANRHFL ARETFE
RMB’000 RMB 000

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances

oAb Al Bl S B A 22 and benefits in kind 3,710 2,561
H 4 AL TR E The emoluments fell within the following bands:
HE+T-H=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E = TE -4
2013 2012
| 45 4 [ Emolument bands
Z % 1,000,000 # 0 Nil - HKD1,000,000 = =
1,000,001 # G % 1,500,000 #c  HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1 2
1,500,001 #ICZE 2,000,000 76  HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 — —
2,000,001 #IC % 2,500,000 C  HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 1 =
2 2

BEF-SER R
A=t B A
SR A LR A
S LR T S KR - 75 A
38R 4 A LA
A B -

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no payments
had been made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid
individuals in respect of inducement to join or compensation for
loss of office, and no directors or the highest paid individuals

waived any of the emoluments.
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27. @ B R A B 3 (6 15 3 3
RBP4 ) a0

(d)

3 28 A1l A L T

B S H AL g B AR A

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTYS) (Continued)

(d

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

Key management compensation excluding Directors

ZR-ZE DT
2013 2012
ARWTFE  ARWTFL
RMB’000  RMB’000
8,452 6,666

28. DAJBAR 2o 20 £ ik

(1)

B A5 S B it )

AN T AT BRAUR A AR =
F—FAEH A H BT R
M 30% - B137,500,000 A
(327 B B A B L i A B A
SCHRLRR) PR AN AR B 5 48 B it
(TRZHTE ) - Fatd 5 Mo &
SO AR B L TR SR
DAY eI YNGR G 8254 /N
SO EE - DAFA AN A K
FORE AR A 5 o

— RAE 5B IR A BE B B AN
FRARA(EEAR ) CEZE
FyiRARaT IR T Ry (B R
T BEFEN o AR AT IR
(B Plenty Gold ~ B T 4 T 25
MEME ) E R AL F R ZF
ZHEAAZ T AR EFEBE AR
5 A PR B 8 KB TR AR A
733,750,000 i & 173 1 3 T 15 o€
NHEl e RZF—Z4E—AZ+H
H > MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V. li] g B i 5 58 JB) =+ 8 = K A
413,750,000 i A% 2 ® ik A3 (G [
Plenty Gold & fiy - %t Ml 7 B MK
%1 1) o {5 ¥ /A ® J3 H Plenty Gold
DA o WAL FE TR
il o T By B AE AR £ 8 L RE 4L JE)
At B (G LA E o

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

@)

Share award schemes

Certain shareholders of the Company adopts an employee share
award scheme (the “Scheme”) in relation to an aggregate of no more
than 30% of the aggregate of shares in issue on 25 October 2010,
representing 37,500,000 shares (subject to the terms of the Scheme
and the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules). The purpose
of the Scheme is to reward participants who have contributed or
will contribute to the Group and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the

benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

A private trust company established in the British Virgin Islands
(“Trustee Co”) has been appointed as the trustee to hold the
Reserve Shares (as defined below) under the scheme. Certain
shareholders of the Company, namely Plenty Gold, Dr. Che
Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng transferred 33,750,000 shares
of the Company to Trustee Co prior to the Company’s primary
listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 28
October 2010. On 25 January 2013, MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V. contributed an additional 3,750,000 shares of the Company
(together with the Plenty Gold Shares, the “Reserve Shares”) to the
Scheme. Trustee Co was fully owned by Plenty Gold and controlled
by certain shareholders of the Company. The Reserve Shares are

intended to be the trust assets for a management incentive scheme.
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For the year end 31 December 2013

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(1)  Share award schemes (Continued)

The Company measures the services received from its employees

in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-settled

share-based payment transactions, with a corresponding increase

recognised in equity as a contribution from the major shareholders.

No new share will be issued by the Company under the Scheme

and there is no dilution impact to earning per share calculation as a

result of the Scheme.

(i) Share award movement

The summary of the share awards have been granted to certain

employees of the Group are as follows:

T4 e
BRET ORISR
T WA (TH)
Exercise Number
price in of awards
B HH HKS$ per granted
Grant date share award (thousands)
—EFE—"H=H=1+H 20 March 2012 3.19 14,150
X = NLAZ R 27 September 2013 3.19 19,750
R —=Ft+H-+—H 21 October 2013 0.7 2,050
35,950
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28. DA 2 SRS 0 W ) 3K (a0 28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)
(i) A B 5 B (45 (i) Share award movement (Continued)
¥ A% H 1) 17 54 4 ) Ak B S L Movements in the number of share awards outstanding and their
A BRI AT E T related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
B2
frEE T
Average
exercise
price
in HK$ per HE) (F47)
{351 Employees share award Awards(in thousands)
S =4l T4
2013 2012
w—H—H At 1 January 3.19 7,484 —
£ Granted 3.19 19,750 14,150
B Granted 0.70 2,050 —
i Exercised 3.19 (1,134) (6,666)
BiL Forfeited 3.19 (150) —
wrHZH=+—H At 31 December 28,000 7,484
AT B 16 K8 B I REST- 24 A & 5 The related weighted average share price at the time of exercise was
J3.47 ¥ 70 - HK$3.47 per share.
28,000 T 4 4 K 4% 1 2 B > Out of the 28,000 thousand outstanding awards, 3,533 thousand
3,533 T 3880 o] T 4708 o awards was exercisable.
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(i1)

it Ay 538 i 5 B (4)

RN BRI R B A R I 5 B
T D 2 T W i 2% T B R LB S A
R 516,589,000 70 (=& — Z4F
NE#E 7,678,000 7C) - M HE £ A1
TRERRFH IR 4 W oy T 2 JBE AR

TR 1 R A 4 £ 4 1) 21 38
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For the year end 31 December 2013

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(i) Share award movement (Continued)
During the year, total expense amounting to RMB16,589,000
(2012:RMB7,678,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for share awards granted to
employees with a corresponding increase recognised in equity as a

contribution from major shareholder.

Share awards outstanding at the end of the year have the following

H I B ATAE IR - expiry date and exercise prices:
2]
Fr v T
Exercise
price in iR m M H (T4)
HKS$ per  Number of awards vested
5 H 5 Expiry date share award (thousands)
—F = ZE -
2013 2012
R —tHF=A=+—H 21 March 2017 3.19 6,200 7,484
“F =/ ENLHZ+RH 26 September 2018 0.70 2,050 —
ZEZ =) ENLAZHARH 26 September 2018 3.19 19,750 —
28,000 7,484
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28. PAIBCAY Ry B A 5K (a0) 28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)
(iii) SR 5 h B A FAH (iii) Fair value of share awards
ANAFEFGHITERCMHA IH The executive directors of the board of the Company have used the
2R 28 A B B N S s B Binomial Model to determine the fair value of the awards granted,
BB A TE - AAFER G which is to be expensed over the vesting period. Significant
AT A T AR R DR judgment on parameters, such as risk free rate, dividend yield
S 4 JR B A 26 IR 2R R TE A and expected volatility, is required to be made by the executive
R 45 22 1 ) S B > S 2 directors of the board of the Company in applying the Binomial
HIBEE R o Model, which are summarised as below.

BET A=+ —HILEE
Year ended 31 December

R TR
2013 2012
? S S

+H=+—H H=+tH =H_-+H
gl B £

B4y 58 it JBE Ay 38 it B A7 5 i
Share awards Share awards  Share awards
granted on  granted on granted on
21 October 27 September 20 March

TR B B Y i T Closing price at the grant date 5.78 W0 5.18 %70 3.13 %70

B A R Risk free rate 1.00% 1.21% 0.74%

i d5¢: Dividend yield 1.98% 1.97% 1.14%

TR (2) Expected volatility (a) 41.81% 42.07% 48.99%

(a) e R T A o] ) (a)  The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation
Z A BB - IR of expected share price returns, is determined based on the
AN F R H average daily trading price volatility of the shares of the
% B R o E Company.
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29. N K B X 29. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES
BRETZA=Z+—HIEEE
Year ended 31 December
ZE=E —F-_F
2013 2012
ANR¥EFL  ARFTFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AT Bank charges (567) (340)
FLE B Interest expense (8,058) (6,983)
IS B Finance expenses (8,625) (7,323)
FEE 5 5 Exchange gain 23,179 4,618
FLRAA Interest income 97,708 126,838
BB A Finance income 120,887 131,456
B WA T Net finance income 112,262 124,133
30. i fHBL X 30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

AEEBE_F-=FLF-ZFILE

BRI BT BLBA S AT R

is analysed as follows:

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 2013 and 2012

BRETH=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—aE—=r [ Ees s
2013 2012
ARETFIE ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AP HABLIE - Current tax:
39 7R 85 ) A B A IE Current tax on profits for the period 212,361 419,986
AR (2) Reversal of over provision (a) (122,751) —
B 391 750 4 2 Total current tax 89,610 419,986
IEIERLIE Deferred tax:
7 I 2 B I A R [ Origination and reversal of temporary differences 86,161 (175,987)
BB R B 2 (a) Effect on change of effective tax rate (a) 81,597 —
9 S A5 A A Total deferred tax 167,758 (175,987)
Jfe 4518 A 52 Income tax expense 257,368 243,999
DY 3R RE A AR A 2013 4 JE # %
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30. Wi BB 3 a0) 30.
oA 45 I 8 3 ) 0 TEL B T )
B B0 3 0 - B B
BB > BEIT

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

BET-HA=F+—HIEEE
Year ended 31 December

194

—gE—=hE s =
2013 2012
ANREETFL  AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
I 5 iy ¥ A Profit before tax 1,567,451 1,165,541
o B TE R 2% 259 Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax
(ZF— 24 25%) st HBIA rate of 25% (2012:25%) 391,863 291,385
THIE H BB R Tax effects of:
— TR BOF G 2 D — Withholding tax on the earnings expected
BRI P 0B (BT 23) to be remitted by subsidiaries (Note 23) 33,000 32,000
— BB A — Income not subjected to tax — (5,609)
— B Z AR HERR BT IE A L — Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (4,482) (24,708)
— [ BB 2 — Effect of preferential tax rate (131,157) (56,123)
— AR R ] (a) — Reversal of over provision (a) (122,751) —
— BB R A (1) — Effect on change of effective tax rate (a) 81,597 —
— AR B 32 — Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5,693 4,687
— T RR AR A T 5 — Tax losses for which no deferred income
B M BLEIA K tax asset was recognised 3,605 2,367
Jii #A PR Income tax expense 257,368 243,999

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



30. Pifa BB 3 )

(a)

(b)

FEEBR T ZE AR
JR 58 R = % — AR 159 B i
EFEEEB R G LRK - ALK
J& /A FlZ — Tonghua Jida HY H1E 4R
KB B EE -

Fin 45 A B =%

()  BARENRBH
AR A i A N AE % ) A R
I 3 260 40000 A o 5 0 (— %
— A ) .

(i) AR
F A AR 4 B 1 4 A Sl 4 A A
AR ERR L A 5 Ol i
FHR T M AR B M F
— T4 ) o

Gii) PR ZERT AL ([P B A
EPiRsi])
o B i 2 BT A5 B T e A SR
BRI N 4wl RS P AR
1) SR B U A FHE B > 3
Kk B PR 5
ZH AR BB R o] g A B AE
bk

o

A% T B o B 2 ) AR
PRCrR 3 N R 640 B 4 3€ P
L) T 259% BB 3 i
B SRR -

AL T HEARGES
P 6 A A
BAEA AR =4
A ESE S i
i o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—=ZF A= —HILEE
For the year end 31 December 2013

30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Coatinued)

(a)

(b)

The amounts represent the impact of change in PRC corporate

income tax for one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Tonghua Jida,

after the completion of the registration of high-tech enterprises

preference tax rate at 15% in respect of 2012 with the tax bureau
in May 2013.

Income tax expense

(i)

(ii)

(ii1)

Bermuda profits tax

The Group has not been subject to any taxation in this

jurisdiction during the year (2012: nil).

Hong Kong profits tax
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group

had no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2012: nil).

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the
companies now comprising the Group derived from the
PRC, adjusted for those items, which are not assessable or
deductible for the PRC CIT purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and
paid the corporate income tax in accordance with the

Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at 25% tax rate.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-
tech enterprises. Accordingly, those subsidiaries’ corporate

income tax for 2013 was provided at the rate of 15%.
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30. Pifa BB X )

30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(b)

Pl Bt bR 2 (42)

Gv) DR B YRR A A v
AR B BB R
W T I S F R AR
NAE— B — B % 2 AR 1 i A
1] 411 B 45 0 DR M S A
109 MTEFORE © A S B %
B A A s T B 2
HH (2] B A V5 BT 7 Y B R
P s e - IR TR
BRI 10% W E 5% -

31. HRAN

(b)

Income tax expense (Continued)
(iv) PRC withholding tax on retained profits

According to applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profits derived after 1 January 2008
are subject to a 10% withholding tax. If a foreign investor
is incorporated in Hong Kong and meets the conditions
or requirements under the double taxation arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant

withholding tax rate will be reduced to 5% from 10%.

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) FHEAK (@) Basic
SHIENAVEZN/NCIE % DN A Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
i B DA 1A 8 AT 0 420 o attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
Y EGHE - number of ordinary shares in issuance during the year.
BET A=+ —HILAE
Year ended 31 December
—ER-=EE CF T
2013 2012
Y/NEIE ZEPN v Profit attributable to owners of
(AE#T ) the Company (RMB’ 000) 1,303,012 904,402
AENREARATACETT  Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
S AT 4 P (P i) issue for basic earnings per share ('000) 5,175,024 5,175,024
BT (AR Basic earnings per share (RMB cents per share) 25.18 17.48
(b) HE (b) Diluted

BB SR F R
A 48 T B R »
AR A R -
B L PR 0 5 AL

There is no dilution to earnings per share during 2013 and 2012
because there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares issued by
the Company during these years. The diluted earnings per share

equal the basic earnings per share.
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32. B

R ZE—ZFE R R AR R E
a0 B N R ¥ 522,677,000 78 KA R
662,404,000 G ° H F T EKME _F
—Z#+ZA=Zt—HIEFEERNHSE
i BN R 108,824,000 7C - i [7] 5 1 i
A 4 i e T {E B B 0.01 W G B
e AT JBE 3 408 B 9 AL I B AT - A BRI S
B F—DERH =+ B RAE K
 FARE o A MBI B R R
B

32. DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2013 and 2012 were RMB522,677,000 and
RMB662,404,000 respectively. Final cash dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2013 of RMB108,824,000 was recommended by
the board together with a bonus issue of 1 bonus ordinary share at par
value of HK$0.01 each for every 1 existing ordinary share. Such dividend
is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 30 May 2014. These

B 25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year end 31 December 2013

financial statements do not reflect this final dividend.

BET-H=1—HIL4EE
Year ended 31 December

RS T4
2013 2012
ANRBEFL  ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
URASH A e 5 M A M A R Final dividend paid of RMBS.8
S8 (ZFE—T4F : AR¥25%) (2012: RMB2.5) cents per ordinary share 300,151 129,376
R T RIRA AR RR Second special dividend paid of RMB7.2 cents
T g M N R 7,203 per ordinary share for 2011 — 372,602
A R BB @R AR 4.3 Interim dividend paid of RMB4.3
(ZF—24F ANE¥3.14) (2012: RMB3.1) cents per ordinary share 222,526 160,426
522,677 662,404
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33. BEAEAENIL

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

BRETZA=+—HIEEE
Year ended 31 December

—F=F —ZF-_F
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W BT 4585 i s ) Profit before income tax 1,567,451 1,165,541
KLV IHH % Adjustments for:
— W12k - R DA IR (ST 26) — Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 26) 42,725 39,789
—BREYFEIE (3 26) — Depreciation of investment property (Note 26) 1,639 809
— TV B (5 26) — Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 26) 143,381 87,700
— )% % WA (T 26) — Impairment of intangible assets (Note 26) 6,979 12,502
— - b fef RS (B 3T 26) — Amortisation of land use rights (Note 26) 8,115 3,930
— AL — Z I F e R (FitaE 12) — Share of loss of an associate (Note 12) 6,830 6,347
— A — T B A T R 4 — Loss on dilution of interest in associate (Note 12)
B R (5 12) 63 —
— HEMY G I (b) — Gain on disposal of intangible assets (b) (105) (17,005)
— T A 4 R A — Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (1,021) (1,635)
— B R 2B 0 E Y — Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity
financial assets — (158)
— LU0y By BT A 15 B S — Share-based compensation expenses 16,589 7,678
— F B BA 57 (BfFaE 29) — Interest expense (Note 29) 8,058 6,983
—F B (B 29) — Interest income (Note 29) (97,708) (126,838)
BRGNS ER SN E Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,702,996 1,185,643
BEEE R AGEE) - Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—-hKE — Inventories (20,023) (33,819)
— B 5y K E A FE R IR K — Trade and other receivables (383,674) (192,772)
— B ) B H At e AT Hiz K — Trade and other payables 501,319 324,576
BB B e Cash generated from operating activities 1,800,618 1,283,628
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33. BMEBEAENBE @) 33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)
@ IEHESEERY S BEWE- (@)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal
7 B st B T S Ak TR AL of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BET A= —HILEE
Year ended 31 December
B =g ZZ-T4F
2013 2012
ANREFLE ARFTFT
RMB’000 RMB 000

R T V(L (P 3 6) Net book amount (Note 6) 1,488 4,098
B ~ R KR A e Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — —

B - B K Proceeds from disposal of property,
M BT A plant and equipment 1,488 4,098
by NEHEEREED  HEREE (b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal
FE I BT 18 SR L4 of intangible assets comprise:
BET-H=Z1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
R -=EE R0
2013 2012
AT AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ST T (Fff sk 8) Net book amount (Note 8) 1,310 5,782
B T i Gain on disposal of intangible assets 105 17,005
H B ST W ) P Ak Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 1,415 22,787
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34, R 34. COMMITMENTS
N L] Group

(a) BEARKYE (@)  Capital commitments
AR IR B FT AV H N R A A Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting
AP period but not yet incurred is as follows:
Rt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F CF -
2013 2012
ANBRETLT AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
E Y& Property, plant and equipment 310,748 476,810
L& — PP E Intangible assets — product development in progress 20,481 19,003
331,229 495,813
(b) REMERE (b)  Operating lease commitments

2 A BIAR A S T 50 4 L o
HEETHAEYHE - HEMRA
—ERIAE > BRZ WA ek T 4%
T REL S0 R Je 3 R A

AR A T A0 L B Ao R

The Group leases various office premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 5
years and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end

of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

RARF BT cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Rt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
R =g DR
2013 2012
ANBWTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—4FERAN No later than 1 year 5,333 780
—4ELL EWAERLA Later than 1 year and no later than 2 years 900 860
WAL Later than 2 years 1,200 2,100
7,433 3,740
ARAH Company
R v S AT o] oK A RIS A T The Company does not have any material capital commitments or
TR - operating lease commitments.
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I 050 58 7 ) R R R A ] A R
1 WO

R —TAE A A G I 1L SR
RSN 409 W R AE - R ELAE Ay AR
77,200,000 7G © LI SREFATIA %38 5) 2 15 1
R AR 2GS AR > AEERE
PR HE 45 TR T RR D T AR AR A AR A
B A 48 i PP BRI B o 4R A 1L SRR AT
() FT 7 HE A i 58 TS AR 0 WIS N B A
RE4R P R E At T

35.
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TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary without

change of control

In August 2012, the Group acquired an additional 40% equity interest
of KBP BioSciences for a purchase consideration of RMB77,200,000.
As a result of this transaction, KBP BioSciences became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group and the Group recognised a decrease in non-
controlling interests and an increase in equity attributable to owners of
the company. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of KBP
BioSciences on the equity attributable to owners of the Company during

the year is summarised as follows:

RoF—a
+ZH=+—H
As at
31 December 2012
ANRBTT
RMB 000
FIT WSS 12 FECARE £ S T (i Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests acquired (33,068)
O A FEHE PR RE £ AR A Consideration paid to non-controlling interests (77,200)
JARE A FRE R 1Y L Excess of consideration paid recognised
C AT E TR 4 within equity (110,268)

Y SR R0 A PR S 2013 4F J§ 8 % 201
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36.

A B EA

REF——FL R AEBEB =
HRSREEFRARTILERS R
FT ek (T kD) AR > RS
1% LB & 08 A B 637,500,000 TG
A 1 Ui PR DY R 509 1 B HE o
R TN e T 3 6 A0 LR R
AR R R 19% (155 — RIE & )
Fe319 (155 R IE B 1) o 58 Bi50% 1
FBC 0 i A > 5 AR D R A B A SR I KL
WA R LR R o o —
Ao H0 R 19% B HE C 5% 8 & R E
N R %242,250,000 70 # 3% > H P AR
#100,000,0007C & i = F — — F Ut
B o 199 1 i A X 18 B PR HE 1B BN IR M
193,590,000 7T Z [H] ) 2= B8 A MR £y % 48 it
% o

REF— =5 AR R
M EA S R R R E =% — U4
T2 A=t H B RS R TE
HRAMBEE 2 ENBOMERR Z
BRI - AAFEEGUITES
RAETYREMR —F =41+
St —HZEM 120 A R - F
R-ZF—ZHF+ZA=Z+—H > BIEK
BB R AR R
BE AR BT BFHERE -

36. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD-FOR-SALE

In July 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, Shandong Buchang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Shandong
Buchang”) (the “Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agreement, Shandong
Buchang will conditionally purchase 50% equity interest in Jilin
Sichang for a cash consideration of RMB637,500,000. The transfer
of equity interest will be completed by 2 steps, which represent 19%
(“First Disposal”) and 31% (“Second Disposal”) equity interest of Jlin
Sichang respectively. After completion of the 50% share transfer, Jilin
Sichang will be jointly controlled by the Group and Shandong Buchang.
In November 2011, 19% of equity interest of Jilin Sichang had been
transferred at a cash consideration of RMB242,250,000, of which an
amount of RMB100,000,000 has been received in 2011. The difference
between the consideration of the 19% interest and value of the equity

interest amounting to RMB193,590,000 was recorded as deferred gain.

The Group and Shandong Buchang mutually agreed in 2013 to extend
the Second Disposal to an earlier day between 31 December 2014 and
the 60th Business Day after Shandong Buchang consummate the initial
public offering in the PRC. The executive directors of the board of the
Company are of the opinion that the Second Disposal will be completed
within 12 months as at 31 December 2013. Accordingly, the deferred
gain was reclassified as current liability and the assets and liabilities of

Jilin Sichang were presented as held for sale at 31 December 2013.
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36. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD-FOR-SALE (Continued)

) MENBEZFEEHEE (a) Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale
IS
—_FE4
+=A
=+—H
As at
31 December
2013
AR T T
RMB’000
Y& Intangible assets 752,236
E Y& Property, plant and equipment 285,743
5 Inventories 10,211
- i1 Land use rights 77,970
B KA &5 EY Cash and cash equivalents 7,351
HAh & = Other assets 12,270
st Total 1,145,781
b FEhEzEREHAR (b) Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale
iy
“EZ4
+=H
=t—H
As at
31 December
2013
AR T
RMB’000
H 5 B FE A A R Trade and other payables 111,935
AL 5B B Deferred income tax liabilities 65,191
(s Borrowings 63,086
5 Total 240,212
DY B A AR W 2013 4 B i %
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37. BRI B 5

BRI RE 22 (RERTE HBUAEAL) ~ Mat27
(EF R TEREEME) KM 28 (LUK
1 o SRR 158 50) B 48 8% EORLOD > IR R
R -EZE+ A= -HESE -
FrZH=+—HILFE > ALK

HAb R BT 5 -

38. &idLHRIH

RoZ—4E—HZH > SHUERHEG
R S A T AR S A BT ST IR HE I
e o DA R B e 1 R i B A 4996 ik
W EEAE A AR ¥53,572,000 7C ©
IR ZC 15 > TR e TR A A A A

)2 BB A A o

38

38.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the information as disclosed in Note 22 (accrued performance
bonus to directors), Note 27 (directors’ and key management’s
emoluments) and Note 28 (Share-based payment), the Group had no
other material transactions with related parties for the year ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 2 January 2014, Jilin Sihuan entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Mr. Gao Jianhua (7 % ) and M. Wang Fuping (£
18°F), to acquire an additional 49% equity interest in Langfang Gaobo
Jingband for a purchase consideration of RMB53,572,000. As a result
of this transaction, Langfang Gaobo Jingband became a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group.
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